MBERARTT
SUN HUNG KAI & CO. LIMITED

(Stock Code 1 86)

A2 YEARS OF
SUN HUNG KAI
FINANCIALL

ANNUAL REPORT 2008
SEE N T




Creating Your Wealth
for 40 Years




Sun Hung Kai & Co. was formed by Mr. Fung King Hey, Mr.
Kwok Tak Seng and Mr. Lee Shau Kee. In 1973, Sun Hung
Kai Securities Limited was incorporated.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (the “Company”) was formed
and listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS”)
positioned itself as one of the first underwriters and
approved overseas agents in the Shanghai and Shenzhen
Stock Exchanges.
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A New Seage In The Open Door Poliey
SHKIS was approved as a B-share seat holder of the Ty
Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges. =
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Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”), via its wholly-owned
Alled Properties () Limied subsidiary, acquired the Fung family’s equity interest in the
BAME(EB)ERAR Company.

SHKIS was approved as a Foreign Share Broker and
Lead Underwriter by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission.

SHKOnline.com was launched and was among the first
batch of brokers offering straight-through Internet-based
order processing.

The Group diversified its operations by establishing

its wealth management and alternative investment

businesses.




Sun Hung Kai International Bank [Brunei] Limited was
officially opened, and the equity interest of APL in
the Company increased to approximately 74.99% (now
approximately 63.45%).

The Group entered the Consumer Finance area by acquiring
UAF Holdings Limited, and built its China strategy through
a JV with Zhe Jiang Province Yongan Futures Broker
Company Limited.

=

The Group celebrated its 40th Anniversary with the launch
of its “Creating Your Wealth For 40 Years” platform, and
formally opened its flagship SHK Wealth Management
Centre in Hong Kong.

The Group entered a strategic partnership with Dubai
Investment Group and was named “Best Broker Hong
Kong” by FinanceAsia, an award it also won in 2008.

COU NTRY
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Corporate
Profile

Celebrating our 40th Anniversary since founding in 1969,
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (the “Company”, and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), which operates under
the name Sun Hung Kai Financial, is the leading non-bank
financial institution in Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2008, the Group had approximately HK$50 billion in assets
under management, custody and/or advice, and more than
HK$11 billion of shareholders’ equity. Listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 86), the
Group has an extensive branch and office network in over
60 locations in Hong Kong, Macau, China and Singapore.
The Group’s core areas of focus include:

. Wealth Management & Brokerage
. Asset Management

° Corporate Finance

o Consumer Finance

. Principal Investments

We intend to remain at the forefront of the region’s financial
services industry by maximising customer satisfaction,
stakeholder value and the strength of our name;
aggressively expanding our customer asset base through
constant product innovation, service enhancement and the
enlargement of our distribution network; ensuring a strong
technological base to empower us and our customers, and
finally, retaining and attracting the best talent by offering
continuous training and career development in a collegiate
and merit-based environment.

We will implement this strategy by ensuring that we remain
focused on our five guiding principles: Excellence; Integrity;
Prudence; Professionalism; and Innovation, which will play a
crucial role in ensuring the Group’s continued success.

To mark our four-decade heritage in Hong Kong and
formalise our community outreach strategy, we will unveil
a new charity foundation, which will focus our efforts on
several key areas, which include microfinance, investor
education, community healthcare and the environment.
Through a range of partnerships with global and local
charities, we will strive to improve the lives of others and
play a leading role in the community, supporting those who
have helped us become Hong Kong’s leading non-bank
financial institution.

Standing by vou for Njﬁearﬁ through
prosperity and a

versity
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Financial Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Percentage
Change
increase/
2008 2007 (decrease)
Revenue (HK$ Million) 2,785.4 4,630.7 (39.8%)
Consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$ Million) 346.5 1,897.6 (81.7%)
Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$ Million) 11,345.5 12,191.6 (6.9%)
Total assets (HK$ Million) 19,438.2 21,816.7 (10.9%)
Number of shares in issue 1,716,032,916 1,679,791,779 2.2%
Net asset value per share (HK$) 6.6 7.3 (9.6%)
Return on equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company (%) 3.1% 15.6% (80.1%)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 20.4 124.6 (83.6%)
Dividend per share (HK cents) 10.0 35.0 (71.4%)
Share price
High (HK$) 10.50 13.94 (24.7%)
Low (HK$) 1.94 6.41 (69.7%)
Profit After Basic Earnings Revenue Consolidated Profit
Taxation Per Share Attributable To
Equity Holders Of The
Company
HK$ Million HK cents HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ‘,3
5 2 8
2,500 S 150 g 5,000 < 2,000 -
2,250 ~ 135 S 4,500 1,800
2,000 120 4,000 < 1,600
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1,250 75 2,500 3 1,000
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Share Of Revenue 2%
Of Different

Segments In 2008 19%

49%

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

19%

Wealth Management,
Brokerage and Margin Finance

Asset Management
Corporate Finance
Consumer Finance
Principal Investments — Healthcare

Principal Investments — Others

For the year ended 31 December

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Milion  HK$ Milion HK$ Million
(Note a) (Note c) (Note d)
RESULTS
Revenue 807.0 793.6 1,984.4 4,630.7 2,785.4
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company 378.7 401.5 451.6 1,897.6 346.5
Retained profits carried forward 2,098.8 3,657.2 3,905.2 5,232.4 5,350.9
At 31 December
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Milion HK$ Million
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current assets 2,827.1 3,270.6 6,911.3 10,919.6 9,132.6
Total assets 6,312.9 7,387.3 17,111.6 21,816.7 19,438.2
Current liabilities 1,159.5 1,429.7 3,056.4 2,960.8 3,376.7
Total liabilities 1,321.6 1,546.1 6,871.4 7,793.3 6,410.9
Notes:
(@)  The comparative figures of 2004 have been restated to conform to the changes of accounting policies as a result of the adoption of new and

revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards effective from 1 January 2005.

The comparative figures of 2005 have been changed to conform to the reclassification of amounts due from (to) associates as separate line

items in the consolidated balance sheet adopted in 2006.

The comparative figures of 2006 have been restated as a result of subsequent adjustments to the acquisition of subsidiaries.

The comparative figure of 2007 revenue has been changed to conform to the reclassification of a gain on the fair value change of warrants

of a listed associate as a separate item in the consolidated income statement.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008
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Letter to

Our Shareholders

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

Dear Shareholders,

As we celebrate our 40th Anniversary in Hong Kong, | am
pleased to report that Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
operating under the Sun Hung Kai Financial (“SHKF”) brand,
has returned a commendable set of financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

This was a year of unprecedented global turmoil and
volatility, which precipitated the collapse of several iconic
Wall Street institutions and sparked a broader economic
meltdown. As confidence soured during the early stages
of the year, equities markets around the world witnessed
widespread investor uncertainty. Increasingly seeking the
relative safety of cash and other low risk instruments,
jittery investors continued to withdraw from the markets
and deleverage their portfolios, fuelling a downward spiral
that arguably was at its worst during the second half of
2008. This breakdown of the financial system was further
exacerbated by a marked slowdown in consumer spending
coupled with rising unemployment, factors which placed
further pressure on corporate earnings globally and pushed
the real economy into a recession.

“We will remain focused on our
core businesses, take advantage
of our balance sheet to look at
potential acquisitions and maintain
an appropriate cost containment
discipline to emerge stronger from
this financial crisis.”

Mr. Lee Seng Huang
Executive Chairman



However, our heritage in Hong Kong, embodied by our
commitment to “Creating Your Wealth For 40 Years”,
combined with the continuing support of our loyal customers,
allowed us to mitigate the worst effects of this ongoing
financial crisis. Demonstrating the strength of our diversified
business model, which consists of five core areas: Wealth
Management & Brokerage; Asset Management; Corporate
Finance; Consumer Finance; and Principal Investments; we
increased our focus on our key business lines and reviewed
our cost base. During this tumultuous year, we focused
on maintaining a disciplined balance sheet, continuing our
prudent approach to growth and further strengthening
our risk management framework. This pragmatic course
of action resulted in a robust balance sheet with reduced
overall debt, an improved cash position and ultimately, a
respectable profit.

While we were able to mitigate, to some extent, the negative
effects of the markets, our results for the year were not
immune to the deteriorating market conditions, reflecting
similar trends experienced by businesses globally.

During the period under review, the Group’s revenue
declined to HK$2,785.4 million (2007: HK$4,630.7 million),
while our profit before tax dropped to HK$533.0 million
(2007: HK$2,193.8 million). There are several non-recurring
charges which should be considered when assessing these
results, which are further explained in the “Results” section
of the Management Discussion and Analysis. Broadly,
excluding these charges, the Group would have achieved
a profit before tax for 2008 of HK$1,236.2 million, a
commendable result considering this once-in-a-generation
operating environment.

These results will allow us to continue to execute our
long-term strategy. We will endeavour to take advantage
of the quieter markets to position our business to capture
future growth opportunities by enhancing our infrastructure,
stepping up our customer and staff recruitment efforts and
remaining vigilant with regard to our costs. Our technology
platforms are being upgraded to realise greater efficiencies
and create an improved customer experience, and we
are continuing to streamline our internal operations with

a view to delivering the highest levels of customer service
expected of us as Hong Kong’s leading non-bank financial
institution.

CREATING YOUR WEALTH FOR 40 YEARS

This year we celebrate an important milestone — our 40th
Anniversary. Representing a new chapter in our evolution
from a small stockbroker to the dynamic financial institution
that we are today, this achievement would not have been
possible without the continuing support of our valued
customers and our enduring relationship with the people
of Hong Kong.

Our customers We will continue to place our
customers at the heart of everything we do.

During the period under review, our customer-focused
strategy resulted in approximately 8,500 new accounts
opened, with our clients benefiting from a range of new
“customer care” initiatives, including among others, the
revamp of our communications literature, processes and
channels, the launch of our first “WealthSmart” customer
newsletter and the redesign of our online trade portals,
which will be completed this year.

This commitment to our customers guided our response
following the collapse of Lehman Brothers in September
last year, an unforeseen event which produced ripples
across the global financial system. In the days and weeks
following the investment bank’s failure, we worked tirelessly
to ensure our affected customers were updated with
critical developments as they came to light, redoubling our
communications efforts through our personalised Investment
Consultant channel, distributing FAQs and customer letters
and establishing a dedicated hotline.

In January this year, the Group voluntarily announced it
would initiate a repurchase scheme in order to assist our
eligible customers with Lehman Brothers Minibond holdings.
The initiative attracted an overwhelmingly positive response
from our clients and the broader Hong Kong community.
The repurchase initiative was substantially completed in

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008
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early March, approximately three weeks ahead of schedule.
Importantly, this repurchase initiative did not materially affect
our financial strength or our plans for future expansion.

Our growth We will continue to build on our solid
foundations and further strengthen our reputation as a
leading provider of investment products, services and
solutions in Hong Kong.

Our front-line Investment Consultant team grew by 6%
during the year under review, while our branch network
expanded by approximately 10% during the same period
to more than 60 offices in Hong Kong, China, Macau and
Singapore. Notably, our Consumer Finance business, which
operates as United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”), increased
its revenues and opened two new branches in Hong Kong
and eight in Shenzhen. It was also the first year that UAF
turned a profit in China. In addition, we opened the doors of
our flagship SHK Wealth Management Centre, which forms
a key element of our future expansion plans.

During 2008, we also boosted our multi-service offerings
through the launch of a number of cross-selling and
up-selling customer activities, in conjunction with an
extensive and ongoing Customer Reactivation Programme,
which reactivated more than 1,000 inactive customers
and generated significant new turnover. To unify our
online strategy and operations, a new e-Business unit was
established from our SHK Online and SHKFG platforms.
This integrated unit will be supported by the completion of
our new online trading platform this year, which will provide
our customers with improved execution performance and a
wide array of advanced functions.

Our people Wwe will continue to adhere to our
philosophy of “quality business by quality people”.

This focus on quality formed the backbone of our drive to
attract, retain and reward the best talent that Hong Kong
has to offer. Recognising that our long-term business
success is closely linked to the quality of our people,
we continued to review our remuneration benchmarks
over 2008 to ensure our competitiveness in attracting
top quality employees. As financial institutions globally
reduced their headcount, we sought to tap a growing pool
of professionals seeking new opportunities, unveiling an
aggressive recruitment drive and an internal staff referral
programme to capitalise on these opportunities.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited  Annual Report 2008

Our remuneration review also resulted in a number of
improved benefits for staff across the Group, a process
which will continue to evolve as we strive to position
ourselves as an employer of choice in Hong Kong.
Importantly, we also deepened our staff training and
development platform as part of our effort to provide
attractive career development opportunities in a merit-based
and collegiate environment.

Our heritage We will continue to connect with the
people of Hong Kong.

The last 12 months saw the Group embark on a range of
brand building initiatives, which included sponsoring key
industry events, leveraging seminar speaker opportunities,
reaching out to universities, launching advertising campaigns
and deploying public relations initiatives.

Our most recent advertising campaign, titled “Creating Your
Wealth For 40 Years”, pays tribute to our customers and
the people of Hong Kong, and seeks to raise awareness
of our 40-year heritage while at the same time anchoring
the Group as one of the market leaders when it comes to
value creation. Further activities are in the planning phase
and are expected to launch this year.

Pleasingly, our efforts to build our brand have been well
received. In addition to receiving our seventh consecutive
“Caring Company” status from the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service, the Group was again named “Best Broker
Hong Kong” by FinanceAsia, the region’s leading financial
publication. This award recognises our strong brokerage
business and the depth of our equities research offering.
Furthermore, The Asset awarded us their “Trailblazer 2008”
award for our role in launching the region’s first property
derivative, while Economic Digest and Sing Tao Daily also
recognised the strength of our name with two key brand
awards. Our strong performance over 2008 was also
recognised by The Banker, a leading magazine for the
investment, retail and commercial banking sectors globally
and part of the Financial Times Group, which included us
for the first time in its “Top 500 Global Financial Brands”
ranking.



Our community We will continue striving to be a
responsible and caring corporate citizen.

As we celebrate our 40th Anniversary, we believe it is
now an opportune time to formalise our corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) platform and re-focus our efforts on
giving back to the community. This year, we will launch
a new charity foundation focusing on several key areas,
including microfinance, investor education, community
healthcare and the environment, among others. A number of
initiatives are being planned to support the launch, including
charitable external programmes to foster the integration
of the charity into the Hong Kong community, alongside a
range of internal activities aimed at energising our staff and
building and sustaining the charity’s momentum.

Our charity foundation will reinforce our existing CSR
platform. In preparation for its launch, we have been
working hard to build our relationships with key global
and local charities. During 2008, we initiated an Internal
Staff Appeal for victims of the Sichuan earthquake, raising
HK$2.5 million for the Hong Kong and Macau Red Cross
organisations. In addition, we supported a range of other
charity campaigns during 2008 with our partners, including
ORBIS Hong Kong, UNICEF, Ho-Sum, HOPE Worldwide
and Crossroads Foundation. This “partnership” approach
will continue to develop as we further shape our CSR
platform.

THE ROAD AHEAD

With the global financial landscape undergoing a
fundamental reorganisation and the international economy
contracting markedly, we expect a challenging year ahead.
Accordingly, we will remain focused on our core businesses,
take advantage of our balance sheet to look at potential
acquisitions and maintain an appropriate cost containment
discipline to emerge stronger from this financial crisis.

On 27 March 2009, Mr. Amin Rafie Bin Othman resigned his
position as a Non-Executive Director and alternate Director
to Non-Executive Director Mr. Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain
Ali Kamkar. On the same date, Mr. Fevzi Timucin Engin
was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director
and alternate Director to Mr. Kamkar, and Mr. Josefh
Kamal Eskandar was appointed as alternate Director to
Mr. Engin.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr. Othman
for his services to the Group during his tenure, and extend
a warm welcome to the Board to Messrs. Engin and
Eskandar.

Finally, | would like to extend my appreciation to all our
stakeholders for their continuing involvement with and
support of the Group over a difficult 2008.

Lee Seng Huang
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 April 2009

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008
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Management
Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded
a profit before tax of HK$533.0 million (2007: HK$2,193.8
million). Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$346.5 million (2007: HK$1,897.6 million),
while earnings per share was HK20.4 cents (2007: HK124.6
cents).

Profit for the year included several non-cash charges, which
require further explanation. Firstly, there was an impairment
charge of HK$69.0 million (2007: HK$84.0 million) relating
to the carrying value of intangible assets, specifically
the value of the customer relationships of the Group’s
Consumer Finance business, which was acquired in 2006.
Furthermore, ongoing amortisation charges of intangible
assets totalling HK$212.4 million (2007: HK$252.8 million)
also impacted the Group’s profit. These charges are of a
non-cash nature and do not affect the underlying operating
cash flow of the Group.

The 2008 results also include an unrealised loss of
HK$284.1 million (2007: HK$36.1 million profit) arising from
the fair value change of warrants of our listed associate,
Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“Tian An”).
Pursuant to an open offer of shares in Tian An in December
2007, the Company was allotted 89,409,119 new warrants
for 89,409,119 new shares successfully subscribed by
the Company. In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, all warrants were classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”, which were
initially recognised at fair value at the allotment date and
subsequently reassessed at each balance sheet date.
The fluctuating value of these warrants will continue to
affect future income statements until they are sold or
exercised. This loss however, is completely offset by our
share of results of Tian An, which saw an unrealised gain
of HK$794.4 million (the Group’s share was approximately
HK$291.0 million) as a result of the change in fair value
of these warrants issued pursuant to the open offer.
Consequently there is no net financial impact to the overall
profitability of the Group.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

The Group’s short-term investments in equity, funds and
other financial instruments excluding the warrants of a listed
associate amounted to HK$294.6 million (2007: HK$885.3
million), reflecting both realised and unrealised losses
totalling HK$421.8 million (2007: HK$303.9 million profit)
as a result of declining market prices.

If the above-mentioned profit or loss items were excluded,
the Group would have achieved a profit before tax of
HK$1,236.2 million (2007: HK$2,226.7 million).

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK5 cents per share. The proposed final
dividend, together with the 2008 interim dividend paid of
HK5 cents per share, represents a total dividend for 2008
of HK10 cents (2007: HK35 cents) per share.

MARKET REVIEW

The worsening global financial crisis fuelled a sharper
than expected economic downturn over 2008, particularly
during the second half of the year. Frozen credit markets
and declining corporate earnings led to diminishing investor
confidence, and ultimately, a widespread sell-off in equities
markets internationally. Despite a range of government
stimuli aimed at supporting markets and boosting economic
confidence, investor sentiment remained fickle, with
many exiting the markets in favour of cash and other low
risk instruments, thus exacerbating the markets’ steep
declines.

This deteriorating global environment significantly impacted
Hong Kong and China. During the year, Hong Kong's
benchmark indices plunged on the back of the broader
economic meltdown, with the Hang Seng Index (“HSI”)
closing at 14,387 points, a 48% decline from 31 December
2007. The Hang Seng China Enterprises Index dropped
51% to 7,892 points during the same period.



Hit by an export slowdown, softening domestic consumption,
and falling asset prices, growth in Hong Kong declined in
2008, for the first time since 2003. Hong Kong’s gross
domestic product (“GDP”) was lower in each of the last
three quarters of 2008, with the most significant contraction
in the final quarter. This left GDP in the fourth quarter of
2008 some 9.4 percentage points below the corresponding
period of 2007.

In China, the benchmark Shanghai Stock Exchange
Composite Index finished at 1,821 points for 2008,
representing a 65% drop from its 2007 close. Critically,
GDP growth in China also fell to 9% for 2008, as exports
contracted sharply. This was the first year of single digit
growth since 2004. China has responded with a range of
measures, including monetary expansion and a large fiscal
stimulus, to support its economic growth.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite a year of unprecedented turmoil, the Group’s
diversified business platform, which consists of Wealth
Management & Brokerage; Asset Management; Corporate
Finance; Consumer Finance; and Principal Investments;
was instrumental in cushioning the impact of the financial
crisis on the Group. The Group remains in a strong financial
position as a result of its long-term, balanced approach to
growth, and its commitment to a disciplined balance sheet
leaves the Company well-placed to capture future growth
opportunities.

Wealth Management & Brokerage

Building on its successful customer recruitment strategy,
the Group’s integrated Wealth Management & Brokerage
division opened almost 8,500 new accounts during a
challenging year. Investor demand for capital preservation
and lower risk profiles helped the Wealth Management
division achieve a steady performance, which partially offset
the declining turnover and commission levels experienced
by the Brokerage division, a downward trend echoed at
financial institutions globally.

To improve co-ordination and strengthen its overall retail
platform within the Wealth Management & Brokerage
division, the Group integrated its execution only service,
SHK Online, with SHKFG’s online platform, forming a new
e-Business unit. The new e-Business unit will streamline
the Group’s online trading operations, while capitalising on
an investor trend towards do-it-yourself trade execution by
offering a range of enhanced products and services. The
Group’s broader online trading platform turned in a steady
performance over 2008. This helped mitigate the reduced
revenue for SHK Online, which was impacted by the global
financial crisis.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008
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+336%

The Group’s Euro Futures contracts
increased significantly over 2008.
In addition, the Group’s USD

Futures contracts rose 93%, and its
leveraged foreign exchange business
grew 18%, among others.

A sharp contraction in demand for commodities during
the second half, combined with a stronger U.S. dollar,
sent oil prices plunging to their lowest levels since 2004,
bottoming out at US$32.4, down from an intra-year high
of US$147.3. Pleasingly, the Group’s trading volumes of
overseas commodities almost doubled for the year on the
back of increased demand for hedging instruments, with a
336% increase in Euro Futures contracts and a 93% gain
in USD Futures contracts. The Group’s leveraged foreign
exchange business also showed significant growth with an
18% rise in contracts, while precious metals saw a 10%
increase in London Gold contracts as investors flocked to
more traditional instruments.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited  Annual Report 2008

Riding on this increasing demand, the Group further
developed its investor education “simulation game” platform.
Gold Trader formed the most recent instalment of the
Group’s simulation game experience, which also includes
the popular FX Trader and Futures Trader platforms.

China Xin Yongan Futures Company Limited, the Group’s
25% owned joint venture (75% owned by L& K%L
HIE &4 BR AT Zhe Jiang Province Yongan Futures
Broker Company Limited) doubled its paid-up capital to
accommodate an increase in trading volume and a larger
client base. The joint venture achieved close to 100%
return on equity for shareholders in the first full year of
operation.

The Group’s securities broking and third party execution
business slowed in line with the overall market, as the
initial public offering (“IPO”) boom witnessed in previous
years subsided. According to Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, main board listings dropped almost 43%
to just 47 for 2008, a number which included the movement
of 18 companies from the Growth Enterprise Market.
During the 12 months ended 31 December 2008, the
Group participated in 20 issues of new share offerings,
sub-underwriting and placements for clients, compared
with 101 in 2007.

The Group’s increasingly stringent loan policies, which
reflect the challenges posed by the current operating
environment, coupled with declining investor confidence
and lower trade volumes in the fourth quarter of 2008, saw
the Group’s margin lending slow during the year, with its
loan book dropping to approximately HK$2,246.5 million
(2007: HK$3,116.5 million).

During 2008, the Group’s Research division attended
approximately 200 company visits and corporate
presentations; published nearly 500 equity comments
and analyses; distributed close to 340 strategy, sector
and company reports and conducted numerous seminars
and press conferences. The team’s top 20 calls of 2008
outperformed the HSI by between 45% and 141%.



Network expands

The Group’s distribution network
also expanded over 2008, with
the opening of the flagship SHK
Wealth Management Centre in
Causeway Bay a key milestone.

Ll

The Group’s Wealth Management division executed a series
of strategic business initiatives during the year, aimed at
strengthening its sales force and expanding its market
share. A high profile recruitment drive was launched as
the year drew to a close, and the division soft-launched its
flagship SHK Wealth Management Centre in Causeway Bay,
one of Hong Kong’s premier business and leisure districts.
The Group also stepped up its involvement in investment
seminars, and deepened its existing business relationships
to ensure the division is prepared for the inevitable market
turnaround.

The Wealth Management division’s investment-linked
product business grew in terms of number of policies.
However, its revenue from wealth management products
fell by approximately 30% as a result of the adverse market
conditions during the second half of the year.

The Group’s Insurance division performed steadily during
the first half of 2008, although declining premiums globally,
a contraction in insured property values and a general
slowdown in demand for insurance across all sectors
impacted the division during the final stages of the year.
On a positive note, the division’s customer retention ratio
exceeded 95%, a strong result in a difficult market. The
Group will continue to identify new business opportunities
as it focuses on promoting credit and professional liability
insurance, while striving to enhance its customer service by
improving operational efficiency.

Asset Management

The Group’s Asset Management division experienced a
challenging second half, with the market downturn combined
with increased hedge fund redemptions globally presenting
a difficult operating environment. Nonetheless, the Group’s
largest hedge fund, the SHK Corporate Arbitrage Manager
Fund, generated a positive return of approximately 19%
over 2008, while the majority of the Group’s other global
funds outperformed many equity indices. Connecting top
tier hedge fund managers to Asia Pacific investors remains
the Group’s core value proposition, and it plans to further
extend this solid business model with the launch of two
or more global hedge funds on its Asset Management
platform.

Corporate Finance

During the year, the Corporate Finance division successfully
launched and sponsored the IPO of iOne Holdings Limited,
a financial printing services provider, by way of placement
and public offer on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The division was also appointed as Independent Financial
Adviser to Shanghai Zendai Property Limited on its
discloseable and connected transactions. Furthermore, it
acted as underwriter for the IPOs of Artini China Co. Ltd.,
Tianyi Fruit Holdings Limited and iOne Holdings Limited,
as well as acting as underwriter for the open offer of Long
Success International (Holdings) Limited and for the rights
issue of Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation.
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In addition, the division completed secondary placements
for several listed companies, including TS Telecom
Technologies Ltd., Sino Katalytics Investment Corporation
and Dore Holdings Limited, and underwrote numerous fund
raising exercises. The Group will continue to seek mandates
for fundraising and corporate advisory opportunities from
local and mainland enterprises.

The Group’s Institutional Sales unit, which services
institutional clients in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and
Japan with primary and secondary deals, has continued to
identify new business relationships in the Asia Pacific and
Europe markets, and remains poised to capitalise on the
opportunities presented by a market recovery.

+35%

Weaker equity and debt capital
markets globally drove a strong
year for the Group’s structured
finance business, which recorded
a 35% increase in its loan book
over the year.
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The weaker equity and debt capital markets benefited the
Group’s structured finance business over 2008. During the
period under review, the Group’s loan book saw a 35%
increase to HK$802.8 million (2007: HK$596.3 million).

As part of the Group’s broader China strategy, an investment
consultancy company was established with Guangdong
Zhongshun Paper Industry Group Company Limited to
capture capital market business opportunities in the Pearl
River Delta region. The Group has also strengthened
its network in major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Nanjing, Guangzhou and Shenzhen to support its business
development strategy in these respective locations.

Consumer Finance

During the year under review, United Asia Finance Limited
(“UAF”), the Group’s Consumer Finance division, achieved
double-digit growth in both its loan portfolio and interest
income.

UAF’s profit after tax reached a record high, although
this represented a modest increase when compared with
2007, which included a gain on disposal of The Hong Kong
Building and Loan Agency Limited (“HKBLA”). Excluding
the HKBLA gain in 2007, profit for the year would have
increased by 20%.

Profit attributable to the equity holders of UAF of HK$763.8
million was forecast for 2008 when UAF was acquired by
the Group in 2006. This compares to an actual profit of
HK$505.9 million for 2008. The difference is mainly due to
a drop in interest yield compared to the forecast, higher
impairment allowances on loans, increased expenditure on
operating overheads, which include establishment costs,
and the expansion of its China operations. The drop in
interest yield and the higher impairment allowances may
have a continuing effect on the profit forecast made at the
time of acquisition for the remainder of the forecast period
to the end of 2010.



10 new branches

During the year, UAF, the Group’s
Consumer Finance business,

showed double-digit growth, with
several branch openings in Hong
Kong and China.

UAF added two branches in Hong Kong and eight in
Shenzhen during the period under review, extending the
company’s total branch network to 53 outlets, comprising
41 in Hong Kong and 12 in China. Since making its debut
in the mainland market in mid-2007, UAF has demonstrated
promising growth and potential. UAF will continue to
allocate management resources to reinforce its position in
the mainland and to expand its capabilities to tap further
market opportunities.

The global financial turmoil, particularly over the final
quarter of 2008, adversely affected UAF’s performance,
leading to weaker growth in its loan business and higher
charges related to bad debt provisions. With unemployment
expected to continue rising and financial markets likely to
remain strained during 2009, UAF will continue to adopt a
cautious approach to ensure potential loan delinquencies
are minimised, while at the same time enhancing its
marketing platform to help alleviate the effects of the
weakening economic environment.

Principal Investments

The Group’s principal associated company Tian An is mainly
engaged in high-end residential and commercial property
development in China, along with property management
and hotel operations. Tian An turned in a solid performance
for the period under review, with profit attributable to equity
holders of Tian An remaining steady at HK$711.1 million
(2007: HK$703.0 million). Tian An’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2008 was HK$473.3 million (2007:
HK$670.7 million for continuing operations and HK$192.5
million for discontinued operations), a decrease of 29%
compared to the continuing operations of 2007.

Profit for 2008 included several non-cash items, including
a gain of HK$794.4 million representing the change in fair
value of a derivative financial instrument liability in respect of
warrants issued by Tian An. This item has been discussed
in the “Results” section of the Management Discussion and
Analysis. In addition, Tian An also noted an exchange loss
of HK$109.6 million mainly on its Hong Kong Dollar and
United States Dollar bank deposits during 2008, due to the
fact its functional currency is Renminbi. It also experienced
a decrease in fair value of its investment properties of
HK$187.3 million compared to a gain of HK$171.5 million
in 2007. If these non-cash items are excluded, as well as
the profit of HK$137.8 million from the discontinued cement
operation in 2007, the profit attributable to equity holders of
Tian An for 2008 would have decreased by 57%.

Total gross floor area (“GFA”) sales for Tian An declined
slightly to 93,400 m? in 2008 (2007: 102,400 m?). A total
GFA of approximately 180,700 m? (2007: 87,900 m?) of
residential/commercial property was completed during the
year under review, representing an increase of 105% (mainly
from jointly controlled entities) over the previous year. By
the end of 2008, a total GFA of approximately 403,800 m?
(2007: 363,000 m?) was under construction, representing
an 11% increase over 2007. Tian An currently has an
attributable GFA landbank of approximately 6,157,100 m?,
consisting of 290,100 m? of completed investment properties
and 5,867,000 m? of properties for development.

While the China property sector will likely remain flat
with occasional bright spots over 2009, Tian An remains
confident in the long-term growth prospects of the property
market. Tian An’s strong cash position will allow it to
capitalise on the opportunities presented by the recovery
of the property market as it occurs.
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During the period under review, the Group continued to
crystallise the value of its investment portfolio, with the
disposal of its interest in Quality HealthCare Asia Limited
(“QHA”) to a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited, a sale which generated a gain of
HK$163.4 million.

As part of its unlisted investments portfolio strategy, the
Group will continue to identify and evaluate potential
opportunities which offer attractive valuations, focusing on
industries that demonstrate strong underlying fundamentals,
stable cashflows and sound management.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As of 31 December 2008, the equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$11,345.5
million, representing a decrease of HK$846.1 million or
approximately 7% from the previous year. The Group
continued to maintain a strong cash position and had
short-term bank deposits, bank balances, treasury bills and
cash amounting to HK$1,738.9 million (at 31 December
2007: HK$1,639.9 million). The Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, loan notes, short-term loans and three-year
bonds due to fellow subsidiaries amounted to HK$4,494.1
million (at 31 December 2007: HK$5,074.3 million). Of
this, HK$1,734.7 million (at 31 December 2007: HK$624.7
million) is repayable within one year, and HK$2,759.4 million
(at 31 December 2007: HK$4,449.6 million) repayable after
one year.

The liquidity of the Group as demonstrated by the current
ratio (current assets/current liabilities) decreased to 2.70
times as at 31 December 2008 compared to 3.69 times as
at 31 December 2007.
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The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total bank and other borrowings, loan notes,
short-term loans and three-year bonds due to fellow
subsidiaries over the equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company) improved to approximately 40% as at
31 December 2008 (at 31 December 2007: approximately
42%).

Capital Structure, Bank Borrowings and
Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

During the year, 35.8 million shares of par value HK$0.2 each
in the capital of the Company were issued for HK$210.6
million as a result of the exercise of the Company’s warrants
by warrant holders. The Company also issued a total of 16.0
million shares under the 2007 final scrip dividend and 2008
interim scrip dividend schemes. The Company repurchased
15.6 million shares during the year for a total consideration
(including expenses) of HK$49.0 million. The appointed
trustee of the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme (“EOS”)
also acquired 3.9 million shares of the Company through
purchases on the Stock Exchange for the awarded shares
of the scheme. Details regarding share capital are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the three-year bonds as shown in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements and secured
instalment loans as shown in note 33, the Group’s bank
and other borrowings and short-term loans due to a fellow
subsidiary were on a short-term basis and in HK dollars
as at 31 December 2008. They were charged at floating
interest rates. There are no known seasonal factors in the
Group’s borrowing profiles.

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure
to cater for its recurring operating activities and present and
potential investment activities, meaning it will be subject to
reasonable exchange rate exposure. However, the Group
will closely monitor this risk exposure as required.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly Controlled
Entities

On 26 June 2008, the Group completed its disposal of the
entire issued share capital of Wah Cheong Development
(B.V.l.) Limited (“Wah Cheong”) and the assignment of a
HK$271.4 million loan for an aggregate consideration (before
expenses) of HK$470.7 million. As of the completion date
of the disposal, Wah Cheong was beneficially interested in
approximately 51% of the issued capital of QHA.



Other than the above disposal, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or
jointly controlled entities during the year.

Segment Information

Detailed segment information in respect of the Group’s
revenue and segment results are shown in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Charges on Group Assets

Listed shares with an aggregate value of HK$1,033.0
million were pledged by subsidiaries for bank loans and
overdrafts. Investment properties, buildings and interests
in land of the Group with a total book value of HK$205.9
million were pledged by subsidiaries to banks for instalment
loans granted to them with a total outstanding balance of
HK$124.6 million as at 31 December 2008. The entire share
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary, UAF Holdings Limited,
was also pledged as a share mortgage for the bonds issued
by the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

Details regarding the contingent liabilities are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES, LITIGATION AND
MANAGEMENT OF RISKS REVIEW

Human Resources and Training

The Group continued its efforts to be recognised as an
“employer of choice” in Hong Kong over 2008 with a series
of proactive measures aimed at attracting, retaining and
rewarding Hong Kong'’s brightest talent.

As at 31 December 2008, the total headcount of the Group
stood at 1,789 employees (2007: 2,819 employees). This
reduction in headcount followed the Group’s disposal
of its interest in QHA during 2008. Staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments), contributions to retirement benefit
schemes and expenses recognised for the EOS amounted
to approximately HK$604.6 million (2007: HK$837.5
million).

The Group operates different compensation schemes,
reflecting the different roles within the organisation. For
sales personnel, the package may consist of either a base
pay and commission/bonus/sales incentive, or alternatively,
it may be a straight commission arrangement. For non-sales

personnel, compensation is comprised of either a straight
base pay, or where appropriate, a base pay with a
discretionary bonus/share-based incentive.

In addition, under the EOS, which was formally adopted on
18 December 2007, selected employees or directors of the
Group (the “Selected Awardees”) are awarded shares of
the Company. Following management’s recommendations,
a total of 3,958,000 shares were granted to Selected
Awardees in 2008. As at 31 December 2008, outstanding
awarded shares under the EOS (excluding shares awarded,
but subsequently forfeited) were 3,848,000 of which
135,000 shares were awarded to a Director.

Staff recognition

The Group’s Award for Beyond
Call of Duty programme proved
a success, with many staff

rewarded for contributing to the
Group through their exceptional
job performance.

The Group’s “Award for Beyond Call of Duty (ABCD)”
programme, which was launched on 1 January 2008, seeks
to promote service excellence and reward high-performing
employees who have made a significant contribution to
the Group through exceptional job performance and/
or service. Ten employees were recognised through the
ABCD programme during the year, with three employees
recognised as winners of the 2008 Overall Award.
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The Group continued to provide high quality training
programmes to front and back office staff during the year.
A total of 116 in-house Continuing Professional Training
(CPT) and Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
programme sessions were initiated to ensure that the
Group’s licensed and relevant staff were well equipped
with updated product knowledge and regulatory-related
best practices. Furthermore, a wide range of personal
development and management training sessions were
conducted in order to upgrade staff performance and
improve management effectiveness.

Internal communications were also overhauled, with a new
Intranet framework and a periodical newsletter, “SUNSpirit”,
keeping employees up-to-date with Group news and
business initiatives.

Litigation

(@) Following litigation that concluded in 2006, Sun
Hung Kai Securities Limited (“SHKS”) holds a 12.5%
interest in a 50/50 joint venture between New
World Development Company Limited (“NWDC”)
and IGB Corporation Berhad in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (the “Joint Venture”). SHKS is presently
seeking the assistance of NWDC and Stapleton
Developments Limited (“Stapleton”) to ensure that
the legal interest of the issued shares of the Joint
Venture company, being Great Union Properties
Sdn. Bhd. (“GUP”), which Stapleton holds on trust
for SHKS be transferred to SHKS, and that GUP
acknowledges and records in its accounts in the
name of SHKS the amount of shareholders’ loans
made on behalf of SHKS to it.

(b) On 25 February 2009, the Market Misconduct
Tribunal (“MMT”) made findings and orders following
the conduct of proceedings relating to May and June
2003 dealings in the securities of QPL International
Holdings Limited. The MMT’s determinations
of misconduct against two Group employees
resulted also in adverse determinations against the
Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, Sun
Hung Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS”)
and Cheeroll Limited (“Cheeroll”) (now known as
Sun Hung Kai Strategic Capital Limited). The MMT
ordered that the companies not again perpetrate
any form of market misconduct, that they pay
the Government’s and the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”)’s costs, and recommended
that the SFC take disciplinary action against SHKIS.
Both companies are presently appealing aspects of
the MMT’s findings and orders.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

(c) On 14 October 2008, a writ of summons was issued
by SHKIS in the High Court of Hong Kong against
Quality Prince Limited, Allglobe Holdings Limited,
the Personal Representative of the Estate of Lam Sai
Wing, Chan Yam Fai Jane and Ng Yee Mei, seeking
recovery of (a) the sum of HK$50,932,876.64; (b)
interest; (c) legal costs; and (d) further and/or other
relief. Having sold collateral for the partial recovery
of amounts owing, the Plaintiff filed a Statement of
Claim in the High Court of Hong Kong on 24 October
2008 claiming (a) the sum of HK$36,030,376.64; (b)
interest; (c) legal costs; and (d) further and/or other
relief. An application for summary judgment against
the Defendants has been made and is scheduled to
be heard on 6 May 2009.

(d) Details of proceedings relating to Chang Zhou
Power Development Company Limited, a mainland
PRC joint venture, are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management of Risks

The Group believes that sound risk management is
particularly important in meeting the challenges posed by
the current unusually difficult operating environment.

The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”), which was
formed in January 2007, is aimed at reducing and managing
the Group’s risk exposure across its business divisions.
The RMC’s key functions include analysing and defining
different risk factors that the Group will likely be exposed
to, while concurrently acting as a provider of assurance in
conjunction with the Group’s other control functions such
as Internal Audit and Compliance. To further strengthen the
risk framework and culture within the Group, Risks Control
was established to provide infrastructure and management
support to the RMC.

Policies and Procedures

The Group has an established framework of risk
management policies and procedures, which are regularly
reviewed by Internal Audit, Compliance, Risks Control and
the RMC, which reports directly to the Board of Directors.
These policies and procedures ensure proper monitoring
and control of all major risks arising from the Group’s
business activities at all times.



Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risk management is discussed in note
56 to the consolidated financial statements, which includes
the management of market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of monetary loss
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and/or systems or from external events. It also
covers both legal and compliance risks.

The Group has developed a robust internal control process
that identifies clearly defined lines of responsibility, the
proper segregation of duties, an effective reporting hierarchy,
business contingency planning and compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements. Divisional management
teams are responsible for identifying, assessing, mitigating
and continuously monitoring the operational risk inherent
in their respective business processes and activities. Each
divisional head is required to declare and submit periodically
a “Responsibility Statement for Risk, Compliance and
Internal Control Procedures”, which is to be reviewed
by the respective control groups. Subsequently, senior
management is also involved in reviewing overall risk
exposure to ensure that the Group operates within an
acceptable risk level.

Reputational Risk

A key factor for businesses operating within the financial
services sector is their reputation for financial probity
and prudence. In terms of the Group, its important and
valuable “brand” warrants a robust approach in managing
reputational risk through sound corporate governance
practices. To achieve its objectives, senior management
ensures that there is adequate and comprehensive training
provided to all Group employees, key operating procedures
manuals are updated, responsibilities and duties are
properly segregated, and the internal control functions
reporting directly to the Executive Chairman and the Audit
Committee remain independent.
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Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lee Seng Huang, aged 34, was appointed Executive
Chairman of the Company on 1 January 2007. He was
educated at the University of Sydney in Australia and has
wide ranging financial services and real estate investment
experience in the Asian region. He has previously served,
in various capacities, on the Board of Directors of the
Company, as well as Lippo Limited, Lippo China Resources
Limited in Hong Kong, Auric Pacific Group Limited in
Singapore as well as the Export and Industry Bank, Inc. in
the Philippines. He is currently the executive chairman of
Mulpha International Berhad, a Malaysian listed conglomerate
with operations in Southeast Asia, Australia and China,
and chairman of FKP Property Group, a leading property
developer listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He
is also a non-executive director of Ambrian Capital PLC, a
company listed on the Alternative Investment Market of the
London Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is a trustee of Lee and
Lee Trust, a discretionary trust owning a controlling interest
in the issued share capital of Allied Group Limited (“AGL”),
the ultimate holding company of the Company through its
interest in Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”). Both
AGL and APL are companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lee is
a cousin of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, a Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

Joseph Tong Tang, aged 49, was appointed an Executive
Director of the Company on 4 December 2003 and was
the Group Chief Operating Officer of the Company from
1 December 2004 to 31 December 2006. With effect from
1 January 2007, Mr. Tong is the CEO, Wealth Management,
Brokerage & Capital Markets. He has over 25 years of
experience in the financial services industry, and previously
held senior positions with a number of international banks
and financial institutions, including ABN AMRO Bank, CCIC
Finance Limited, Bain & Co. Securities Limited and Bali
International Finance Limited. Mr. Tong has a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar, aged 47, was
appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on
19 December 2007. Mr. Kamkar holds a Master’s Degree
in Urban & Regional Planning from the Graduate School
of Public and International Affairs, University of Pittsburgh.
He is currently the chief executive officer of Dubai Ventures
Group (L.L.C) ("DVG”), the holding company of Dubai
Ventures L.L.C (“Dubai Ventures”) which, as at the date of
this Report, together with Dubai Ventures Group Limited
(“DVGL") owned approximately 10% interest in the issued
share capital of the Company according to the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
Mr. Kamkar has over 20 years of experience in the finance
and investment fields. Before joining DVG, Mr. Kamkar
worked with Emirates Financial Services, a subsidiary
of Emirates Bank International, and played a major role
in the development of the capital markets in the United
Arab Emirates. Mr. Kamkar is also a director of DIG Asia
Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of DVG, a director
of Emirates International Telecommunications L.L.C. and
Tanayong PLC (listed on the Thailand Stock Exchange).
Previously, he was also a director of Thomas Cook India
Limited (listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the
National Stock Exchange, both in India).

Fevzi Timucin Engin, aged 33, was appointed a
Non-Executive Director of the Company and also an
alternate to Mr. Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar
on 27 March 2009. Mr. Engin graduated from the Bilkent
University in Turkey with a degree in Banking & Finance. He
also holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Telfer School of Management, University of Ottawa in
Canada. Mr. Engin joined Dubai Capital Group (“DCG”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Dubai Group as a Senior Vice
President in February 2008, and he works on the financial
institutions related activities of DCG in the public and
private equity asset classes as well as operating companies.
DCG is an affiliate of Dubai Ventures and DVGL. As at the
date of this Report, Dubai Ventures and DVGL together
own approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the



Company according to the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. Prior to
his position at DCG, Mr. Engin worked for Lusight Research
in Toronto, heading a team covering East Europe, Middle
East and North African financial institutions. Before Lusight
Research, he worked for three years at The Bank of Nova
Scotia (Scotiabank), the second largest bank in Canada,
where he worked on the trade finance and syndicated
lending facilities of the bank in Turkey and the larger Africa
region. In his last tenure at Scotiabank, Mr. Engin worked
as part of a Basel Il project implementation team building
internal rating and credit analytics models for the bank’s
corporate lending portfolio. Prior to Scotiabank, Mr. Engin
worked in Turkey as a sell side research analyst publishing
research on various sectors of the economy such as retail
and consumer durables.

Josefh Kamal Eskandar, aged 33, was appointed an
alternate to Mr. Fevzi Timucin Engin on 27 March 2009.
Mr. Eskandar graduated in 1997 from Helwan University
in Egypt with a degree in Accounting & Finance, with high
distinction (Dean’s top 10 list 1995, 1996 and 1997). He is
also a member of the CFA institute — USA. Mr. Eskandar
joined DCG as an investment manager in November 2004.
During the last four years he has worked on many M&A
transactions, advisory services, asset management and
private equity transactions. He was promoted to head
DCG’s research department in January 2008, and is a
member of DCG’s investment committee. DCG is an affiliate
of Dubai Ventures and DVGL. As at the date of this Report,
Dubai Ventures and DVGL together own approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company according to
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO. Prior to his position at DCG,
Mr. Eskandar worked for Prime Investments in Egypt,
where he headed the research team and was a member
of the asset management investment committee. Before
Prime Investments, he worked for two years at Commercial
International Bank — CIB, Egypt’s largest private bank, as
an investment advisor for high net worth individuals. Before
joining CIB, Mr. Eskandar worked as an auditor with Deloitte
& Touche (Egypt), specialising in auditing mutual funds and
financial institutions.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 57, was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 22 June 1996 and
was re-designated as a Non-Executive Director with effect
from 30 January 2007. An architect, he worked for IBM
Australia before becoming involved in property development
in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than 23 years ago.
He has extensive experience in the property field. He is
also an executive director and the chief executive of APL,
the holding company of the Company, and the managing
director of Tian An China Investments Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a cousin
of Mr. Lee Seng Huang, the Executive Chairman of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

David Craig Bartlett, aged 43, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on
26 November 1999. Mr. Bartlett graduated with honours
in law from Exeter University in the U.K. in 1988 and
subsequently qualified as a solicitor in England & Wales,
The Republic of Ireland and Hong Kong. A former partner
of the international law firm Clyde & Co., he regularly acted
for and advised the Company and its subsidiaries before
leaving private practice for a career in the industry. Now
based primarily in Luxembourg, he is also an independent
non-executive director of AGL, the ultimate holding company
of the Company.

Alan Stephen Jones, aged 66, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 3 January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered accountant,
has extensive experience in management, administration,
accounting, property development, carpark management,
finance and trading, and has been involved in successful
mergers and acquisitions of a number of public companies
in Australia and internationally. He is also an independent
non-executive director of each of AGL and APL (the holding
companies of the Company) and APAC Resources Limited,
all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Jones is also a non-executive director of Mount Gibson
I[ron Limited and IFC Capital Limited (both listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) as well as Mulpha Australia
Limited.
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Carlisle Caldow Procter, aged 68, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on
30 September 2004. Mr. Procter graduated from the
University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor’'s Degree
and a Master’'s Degree in Economics. He is a Fellow
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia (FFin.).
Based in Australia, Mr. Procter worked at the Reserve
Bank of Australia for over 30 years, holding various senior
management positions. Since leaving the Bank, he has
worked as a consultant to the International Monetary
Fund (IMF) and the Asian Development Bank (ADB),
and has also undertaken private consulting work in the
Philippines, Indonesia and Papua New Guinea in the
areas of bank supervision, anti-money laundering and
corporate governance respectively. Mr. Procter is currently
a non-executive director of Bank South Pacific Limited, a
company listed on the Port Moresby Stock Exchange, and
an independent non-executive director of Quality HealthCare
Asia Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Peter Wong Man Kong, Jr, aged 60, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on
30 May 2001. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of
California at Berkeley, U.S.A. with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Mechanical Engineering (Naval Architecture), and
was an awardee of the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong” in 1988. He is the chairman of M.K. Corporation
Limited and North West Development Limited. He is also
a non-executive director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings)
Company Limited and New Times Group Holdings Limited,
an independent non-executive director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Far East
Consortium International Limited, Glorious Sun Enterprises
Limited, Chinney Investments, Limited and Sino Hotels
(Holdings) Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong is a Deputy of the 11th National
People’s Congress of the P.R.C.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wilhelm Soeharsono Budihardjo, aged 43, joined Shun
Loong Group in 1990, which was acquired by the Group
in June 2003. Mr. Budihardjo is currently the Managing
Director, Futures, Forex, Commodities & U.S. Markets.
Being a Business Head, Mr. Budihardjo is responsible for
the long-term and overall sales strategy of the Group’s
business in forex, futures, commodities and U.S. markets.
He has over 19 years of sales, operational and managerial
experience in the financial services sector. He has a
Bachelor of Science Degree from the University of Southern
California and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from Loyola Marymount University, U.S.A.
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Andy Chui Ka Hing, aged 44, joined the Group in
November 2008. Mr. Chui is the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he spent 10 years with
Standard Bank Asia, most recently as Director, Strategic
Development. Mr. Chui is a member of both the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and he is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree and a
Master of Business Administration (Executive) Degree.

Christophe Lee Kin Ping, aged 39, joined the Group in
August 2000. Mr. Lee is the CEO, Asset Management. He
has over 18 years of experience in the financial services
sector. Mr. Lee is currently the chairman of the local chapter
of the Alternative Investment Management Association
(AIMA). He has also been appointed by the Hong Kong
Government to sit on the advisory committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC). Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lee was an executive director at Goldman
Sachs (Asia) LLC. He has a Bachelor of Applied Science
Degree from the University of Pennsylvania.

Akihiro Nagahara, aged 68, is the Managing Director
and CEO of United Asia Finance Limited. He holds a law
degree from the National Taiwan University and a Master’s
Degree from the Graduate School in Law of the National
Hitotsubashi University of Japan, where he also completed
his doctorate courses. He is an acknowledged expert in the
consumer finance business in Hong Kong and is credited
with the successful establishment of Public Finance Limited
(formerly known as JCG Finance Company, Limited). He
is also the Chairman of The Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed
Money Lenders Association Limited, a position he has held
since its establishment in 1999, which is the only industry
representative association of licensed money lenders in
Hong Kong.

Ada Ng Yuk Ip, aged 48, joined the Group in October 1997.
Ms. Ng is the Managing Director of Wealth Management,
in charge of sales administration and operations. Being a
Business Head, Ms. Ng is responsible for the long-term
and overall sales strategy of the Group’s business in
wealth management products. Ms. Ng has over 10 years of
management experience in the financial services industry,
specifically in dealing and sales administration. She has
a Bachelor of Science Degree (Hons) in Finance from the
University of Southern California, U.S.A.



Eric Shum Kam Chi, aged 41, joined the Group in March
2000. Mr. Shum is currently the Head of Corporate Finance.
Mr. Shum has over 16 years of experience in initial public
offerings, mergers and acquisitions and financial advisory
activities. He graduated from Cambridge University with a
Master of Philosophy Degree in Finance.

Kevin Tai Yiu Kuen, aged 42, joined the Group in July
2000. Mr. Tai has held a number of senior positions across
various business functions within the Group. With effect
from 1 October 2008, Mr. Tai is the Chief Operating Officer,
Wealth Management & Brokerage. He has more than 18
years’ experience in the financial services industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tai was Head of Settlement at CLSA
Limited. Before that, Mr. Tai was Vice President of Regional
Middle Office for Global Equities at J.P. Morgan Securities
(Asia Pacific) Limited.

Patrick Wong Kwok Hing, aged 49, joined the Group
in April 1985. Mr. Wong is the Business Head of Equities
& Managing Director, Private Client Services. Being a
Business Head, Mr. Wong is responsible for the long-term
and overall sales strategy of the Group’s business lines in
equities and equity derivatives. He has over 20 years of
experience in the financial services sector. He has a Master
of Science Degree and a Master of Business Administration
Degree.
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Corporate Governance

Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance within a sensible framework, with
an emphasis on the principles of integrity, transparency,
accountability and equity. The Board of Directors believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success
of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholder
value.

In order to demonstrate its commitment to sound corporate
governance, the Company became a signatory of the Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Charter in February 2008,
which was endorsed by both the Securities and Futures
Commission and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited. By signing the Charter, the Company pledged to
observe the principles and core values of good corporate
governance it embodies.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), which came into effect on 1 January 2005, the
Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company.

The Company has applied the principles of, and complied
with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during
the year ended 31 December 2008, except for certain
deviations as specified. The reasons for such deviations
are explained below.

The Board will review the current practices at least annually,
and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises nine members, with two
Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and
four Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the
date of this Report is set out as follows:

Executive
Directors:

Lee Seng Huang (Chairman)
Joseph Tong Tang

Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar

Fevzi Timucin Engin
(appointed on 27 March 2009, and also
appointed as alternate to Abdulhakeem
Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar)

Josefh Kamal Eskandar
(appointed on 27 March 2009 as alternate to
Fevzi Timucin Engin)

Patrick Lee Seng Wei

Amin Rafie Bin Othman
(also as alternate to Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain
Ali Kamkar, resigned and ceased to be an
alternate director on 27 March 2009)

Non-Executive
Directors:

Independent
Non-Executive
Directors:

David Craig Bartlett
Alan Stephen Jones
Carlisle Caldow Procter
Peter Wong Man Kong

The brief biographical details of the existing Directors are
set out in the Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
on pages 22 to 25.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (the majority
of whom were independent) provided the Group with a wide
range of expertise and experience. Their active participation
in the Board and Committee meetings brought independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, at the same time
taking into account the interests of all shareholders.



Throughout the year, and up to the date of this Report, the
Company has four INEDs representing more than one-third
of the Board. Two of the four INEDs have the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise specified under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers
that all the INEDs are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operations and financial performance of
the Group, in addition to the meetings for reviewing and
approving the Group’s annual and interim results and
other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with by the
Board. The Chief Financial Officer, and other relevant senior
executives, are invited to attend Board meetings to make
presentations and answer the Board’s enquiries.

During the year, eight Board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set
out as follows:

Number of
Board meetings
attended/held

Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Huang 8/8
Joseph Tong Tang 8/8
Non-Executive Directors:
Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar 8/8
Amin Rafie Bin Othman 6/8

(also as alternate to Abdulhakeem

Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar, appointed on

7 April 2008, resigned and ceased to be

an alternate on 27 March 2009)
Patrick Lee Seng Wei 5/8
Independent Non-Executive

Directors:
David Craig Bartlett 5/8
Alan Stephen Jones 8/8
Carlisle Caldow Procter 8/8
Peter Wong Man Kong 4/8

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy,
annual operating budget, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, material contracts and transactions as well
as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the daily operations and administration to
the executive management under the supervision of the
Executive Committee which has its specific written Terms
of Reference. The respective functions of the Board and
management of the Company have been formalised and
set out in writing. The Board reviews these procedures
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent with
the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in
advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At
least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given
to all Directors, who are given an opportunity to put matters
for discussion on the Agenda. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the Agenda for meetings,
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and as
soon as practicable for other Board meetings). Draft Minutes
of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for
their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All Minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter cannot be dealt
with by a Board Resolution but must be dealt with by the
Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles of
Association of the Company stipulate that save for the
exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting and not be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director or any of his associates have a material interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to
the Company’s senior management. Directors will be
continuously updated on major developments of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, a written procedure was
established in June 2005 (and revised in September 2007)
to enable the Directors, in the discharge of their duties,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”)
should be separate and performed by different individuals.
Under the current organisation structure of the Company,
the functions of a CEO are performed by the Executive
Chairman, Mr. Lee Seng Huang, in conjunction with another
Executive Director, Mr. Joseph Tong Tang, and a senior
executive, Mr. Christophe Lee Kin Ping. The Executive
Chairman oversees the management of the corporate
administrative functions as well as the Group’s interest in its
principal investment in United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”)
whose day-to-day management lies with its designated
Managing Director. Mr. Joseph Tong Tang acts as the
CEO of Wealth Management, Brokerage & Capital Markets
and Asset Management is headed by Mr. Christophe Lee
Kin Ping.

The Board believes that this structure spreads the workload
that would otherwise be borne by an individual CEO,
allowing the growing businesses of the Group to be
overseen by the appropriately qualified and experienced
senior executives in those fields. Furthermore, it enhances
communications and speeds up the decision making
process across the Company. The Board also considers
that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. An appropriate balance can be maintained by
the operation of the Board, which holds at least four regular
meetings a year to discuss the business and operational
issues of the Group.

The Executive Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board, ensuring that all significant policy issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive
manner, that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, and that the Directors receive
adequate, reliable and timely information.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a
written nomination procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”)
specifying the process and criteria for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for Directorships of the
Company. The Chairman of the Board shall, based on
those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(including appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment, among others), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval. The
Nomination Procedure also provides for the filling of
a vacancy for the Chairman of the Board, where the
recommendation of the proposed candidate shall be made
by the Executive Committee.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction
package containing all key applicable legal and Listing Rules
requirements, as well as guidelines on the responsibilities
and obligations to be observed by a Director. The package
will also include the latest published financial reports of
the Company and the documented corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Senior management will
subsequently conduct such briefings as necessary to give
the new Directors more detailed information on the Group’s
businesses and activities.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the
Company were appointed for a specific term of one
year, subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office
but eligible for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors
have been re-appointed for a further year from 1 January
2009.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the Company’s first general meeting after the
appointment and be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall also hold office
only until the next following Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Further, at each AGM of the Company, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Executive Committee are all long established. Each of the
Committees has its specific written Terms of Reference.
Copies of Minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
Committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members, and the Committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decisions
and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
above, have been adopted for Committee meetings so far
as practicable.

In January 2007, the Board established the Risk
Management Committee with specific written Terms of
Reference. Copies of all Minutes of meetings and resolutions
of the Risk Management Committee, which will be kept by
the secretary of the Committee, are presented to the Board
at its regular meetings. The Committee reports to the Board
any material incidents or developments impacting on risk or
internal control and the corresponding actions taken.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (formerly known as the
Compensation Committee) has been established since
April 1985 and currently consists of the four INEDs,
including Messrs. Peter Wong Man Kong (Chairman of the
Committee), David Craig Bartlett, Alan Stephen Jones and
Carlisle Caldow Procter. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in
accordance with the Company’s policy if considered
necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(i) to review and recommend to the Board the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors
and, where appropriate, to consult the Chairman
about the Committee’s proposals relating to the
remuneration of other Executive Directors;

(ii) to review and recommend performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives approved by the Board from time to
time;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation
payable to Executive Directors relating to any loss
or termination of their office or appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company are in line with the code provision of the
CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision of
the Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors and senior management of a listed company.
The Board considers that the Remuneration Committee of
the Company should review (as opposed to determine) and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors only and not senior
management for the following reasons:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration
Committee is not properly in a position to evaluate
the performance of senior executives and that this
evaluation process is more effectively carried out by
the Executive Directors;

(if) all the Remuneration Committee members are
INEDs who come from differing professions and
backgrounds, and they are not involved in the daily
operation of the Company. They may have little
direct knowledge of industry practice and standard
compensation packages. The Remuneration
Committee is thus not in a position to properly
determine the remuneration of the Executive
Directors;

(iii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to
supervise and control senior management and thus
must be able to control their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay
senior management more than industry standards
and thus shareholders will benefit by reducing costs
in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the website of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year in accordance with its Terms of Reference. One
Committee meeting was held in 2008 and the attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

Committee members:

Peter Wong Man Kong (Chairman) 1/1
David Craig Bartlett /1
Alan Stephen Jones /1
Carlisle Caldow Procter 1/1

Apart from Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2008. In 2008, the Remuneration Committee
performed work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors;

(if) reviewed the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors;
(iif) reviewed and recommended the Directors’ bonuses

for the year ended 31 December 2007 for the
Board’s approval; and

(iv) reviewed the proposed service fees of the INEDs
and the renewal of the term of appointment of the
Non-Executive Directors for one year commencing
from 1 January 2009 and recommended the same
for the Board’s approval.

Each Director will be entitled to a fee which is to be
proposed for shareholders’ approval at the AGM of the
Company. Further remuneration payable to Directors
(including any service fees to the INEDs) for their additional
responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their service contracts as approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the Group’s staff remuneration policy are also
set out in the “Human Resources and Training” section
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 19
and 20.
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a Committee
meeting was held to review the policy and structure of the
remuneration of Directors and the remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors, Messrs. Lee Seng Huang and
Joseph Tong Tang. The bonuses for the said two Executive
Directors in respect of the year 2008 were recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and subsequently approved
by the Board. Further details are also set out in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since April
1985 and currently consists of the four INEDs. The
Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The current members of the Audit
Committee are Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman
of the Committee), David Craig Bartlett, Carlisle Caldow
Procter and Peter Wong Man Kong. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and
has access to independent professional advice according to
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
address any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

(ii) to consider and discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of each year’s audit;

(iif) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;
(iv) to review the interim and annual financial statements

before submission to the Board;

(v) to discuss any problems and reservations arising
from the interim review and final audit, and any
matters the external auditor may wish to discuss;

(vi) to review the external auditor’s management letters
and management’s response;

(vii) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;



(vii)  to review the internal audit plan, promote
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and check whether the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; and

(ix) to consider any matters arising from internal audit’s
investigations and management’s responses.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee of the
Company are revised from time to time to comply with the
code provisions, in particular code C.3.3 of the CG Code,
but with deviations from the code provision regarding the
Audit Committee’s responsibilities to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(if) ensure that management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control system; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors, and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee of the
Company should recommend (as opposed to implement)
the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit
services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its
Committees to develop policy and make appropriate
recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for
implementation of such policy and recommendations
is through the Executive Directors and management;
and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement
policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day
basis.

Furthermore, the Board considers that the Audit Committee
of the Company only possesses the effective ability to
scrutinise (as opposed to ensure) whether management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system. The Committee is not equipped to ensure that
the same is in place, as this would involve day-to-day
supervision and the employment of permanent experts.
Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
but it can promote the same. The Committee cannot ensure
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
but it can review whether it is adequately resourced, and
recommend the correction of any identified deficiency.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least three times a year
in accordance with its Terms of Reference. Four meetings
were held in 2008 and the attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended/held

Committee members:

Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman) 4/4
David Craig Bartlett 3/4
Carlisle Caldow Procter 4/4
Peter Wong Man Kong 2/4

Apart from Committee meetings, the Audit Committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2008.
In 2008, the Audit Committee performed the work as
summarised below:

(i) considered and approved the terms of engagement
and fees proposed by the external auditor regarding
the final audit of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007 and the interim review for the
six months ended 30 June 2008;

(ii) reviewed the client service plan of the external
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2007;

(iii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor
and management representation letters in relation
to the final audit of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007 as well as the management’s
responses for the interim review for the six months
ended 30 June 2008;
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(iv) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2007 and for the six months ended
30 June 2008 and recommended the same for the
Board’s approval;

(v) reviewed the internal control system of the
Group on the basis of an internal controls review
report prepared by an external consultant and
the risk assessment review performed by the
Risk Management Committee for the year ended
31 December 2007;

(vi) reviewed the audit planning memorandum for the
year ended 31 December 2008 submitted by the
Internal Audit Department; and

(vii) reviewed the lists of audit reports issued by the
Internal Audit Department and discussed the risk
and internal control issues of the Group.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since
November 1983 and currently consists of two Executive
Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Huang (Chairman of
the Committee) and Joseph Tong Tang. The Executive
Committee is vested with all the general powers of
management and control of the activities of the Group,
save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s
decision and approval pursuant to the written Terms of
Reference of the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for
undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management
of the Company, and is empowered, subject to the general
policies adopted by the Board:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business
activities, internal control and administration of the
Group; and

(if) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for

the business activities of the Group.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee (“RMC” or the
“Committee”) was established in January 2007 and consists
of two Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Huang
(Chairman of the Committee) and Joseph Tong Tang
(Alternate Chairman of the Committee), and four other
members from the Company’s senior management.
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The major roles and functions of the RMC are:

(i

(i)

(i)

to analyse and define the risks likely to be
encountered by the Group in the various aspects of
its operation;

to ensure through appropriate mechanisms including
committee(s) and divisional heads, where applicable,
the review, assessment, recording and monitoring of
the various risks which may be encountered by the
Group and the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls, including without limitation,
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions;

to act as a provider of assurance (in conjunction with
the Group’s Internal Audit and Compliance and the
Group’s external auditor) to the Board in its annual
review of:

(a) the changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks likely to be encountered
by the Group since the last annual review,
and the Group’s ability to respond to
such changes in its business and external
environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and the system
of internal controls;

(c) the adequacy of communication, its extent
and frequency to the Board on the results
of monitoring, enabling the RMC and the
Audit Committee to develop a cumulative
assessment on the state of control undertaken
by the Group and the effectiveness with
which risk is being managed;

(d) any major incidents that pose substantial risk
and/or loss exposure to the Group, whether
actual loss is incurred or not; in the event
of probable or actual violations of the Code
of Conduct or applicable laws, regulations,
regulatory guidelines/codes; significant
internal policy, operational or technological
failures; and any other significant events
that may expose the Group to substantial
reputational risk;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes
relating to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance; and



U] all other relevant issues appropriate to risk
identification and management and internal
control issues.

The Terms of Reference of the RMC were adopted by the
Board in January 2006 and revised in January 2007, with
further amendments in September 2007.

The RMC meets as and when necessary, but at least once a
month. During 2008, a total of 12 meetings were held. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
RMC meetings
attended/held

Committee members:

Lee Seng Huang (Chairman) 9/12

Joseph Tong Tang (Alternate Chairman) 9/12

Patrick Poon Mo Yiu 5/12
(resigned on 1 August 2008)

Thomas Bennington Hulme 12/12

Tony Leung King Yuen 12/12

Kevin Tai Yiu Kuen 3/12
(appointed on 22 October 2008)

Andy Chui Ka Hing 1/12

(appointed on 17 December 2008)

During 2008, the RMC performed (or procured performance
of) the following:

(i) endorsed the formation of the Product Committee
to set out systematic and comprehensive evaluation
procedures for the launch of all new products;

(ii) instigated a Risk Awareness Quiz to promote
improved awareness of risk-related issues associated
with the launch of all new products;

(iii) conducted a review and presented recommendations
to the Board on long-term alternative solutions as
they relate to market risk management;

(iv) conducted a review and presented recommendations
to the Board with respect to a Company-wide risk
assessment review using the Group’s “Responsibility
Statement for Risk, Compliance and Internal Control
Procedures”, along with the recently undertaken
independent review of internal control for 2008;

(v) reviewed and approved risk management limits and
thresholds, and procured the performance of various
portfolio stress-testing models;

(vi) reported major incidents and findings to the
Board;
(vii) formulated and endorsed the overall risk-related

policies and procedures of the Group; and
(viiiy  reviewed the Risk Management Statistical Report
and other risk-related matters.

The RMC has implemented two Group policies aimed at
identifying and addressing instances of improper conduct or
actions since 2007. The “Escalation and Incident Reporting
Policy” addresses standard procedures for escalating
and handling reported incidents that potentially lead to
unforeseen risk and/or give rise to monetary loss exposure.
The “Whistleblower Policy” outlines the communication
procedures through which employees can report in good
faith suspected departures from proper internal control
procedures, incorrect or improper financial or other
reporting, or any alleged unlawful or improper practices or
wrongful conduct taking place within the Group. Throughout
the year, there were seven major incidents which were
escalated to the RMC, while there were no whistleblower
cases.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specified enquiries being made by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code.

To comply with the code provision A.5.4 of the CG Code,
the Company has also adopted the Model Code, to regulate
dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who
are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its securities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing,
with support from the Finance Department, the financial
statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and ensured the financial
statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”),
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
92 and 93.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year and up to the date of this Report, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor,
Deloitte, is set out as follows:

Fees paid
HK$ million
Services rendered for the Group
Audit services 6.4
Non-audit services (taxation and other
professional services) 1.7
Total 8.1

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the Group’s corporate interests.

The internal control framework is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage prudently, but not
completely eliminate, the risk of system failure; and to
assist in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. In
addition to safeguarding the Group’s corporate interests,
the internal control framework also provides a basis for the
maintenance of proper accounting records and assists in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
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Systems and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control the risks arising from different business
and functional activities. Risk control limits are established
and approved as per the appropriate authorisation hierarchy.
A more detailed discussion of the policies and procedures
for management of each of the major types of risk the Group
is exposed to are included in note 56 to the consolidated
financial statements (financial risks including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk) and under the “Management of Risks” section
contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

The Group’s three independent control divisions, namely
Internal Audit, Compliance and Risks Control, all play an
important role in providing assurance to the Board and
management that a sound internal control system is being
adopted, implemented and maintained.

Internal Audit performs periodical reviews, in accordance
with its risk-based annual audit plan, of the internal control
systems of the Group to ensure their adequacy, and that
the controls are in place and working satisfactorily. These
checks supplement the various internal control measures
adopted by management and the various divisions within
the Group. Reports published by Internal Audit are issued
to the Chairman, the Audit Committee, senior management
and other relevant managers, and are discussed at the
Audit Committee meetings. Internal Audit also provides
consultancy services to all divisions within the Group on
internal control procedures upon request.

Compliance assists management in fulfilling its
responsibilities and maintaining effective and appropriate
policies, guidelines and procedures, carrying out ad-hoc
and/or regular reviews and monitoring all divisions to
ensure that the applicable rules and regulations set out by
the regulators are complied with in accordance to internal
policies and procedures. Compliance is an independent
function reporting to the Chairman. The Head of Compliance
also acts as the Group’s designated Complaint Officer and
Anti-Money Laundering Officer.

Risks Control formulates and reviews risk management
policies and procedures for the Group. It also provides
input on divisional policies in respect of the relevant risk
management framework, such as the setting and types
of limits. Risks Control conducts reviews in partnership
with relevant parties across the Group on new products,
processes, services and systems, to ensure that policies
and procedures are maintained in a timely fashion and
are constantly updated in accordance with risk-related
changes in the operating environment. Risks Control is an
independent function reporting directly to the Chairman, to
whom it provides an independent assessment of different
risk exposures relevant to the Group.



Each year, the Group conducts a review of the effectiveness
of its internal control systems covering all major areas
such as front-office, compliance, finance and operations.
The self-assessment is conducted with the purpose of
assessing and documenting key risks, while specifying
required control framework improvements accordingly.
Senior management provides guidelines for various divisions
within the Group, including its principal subsidiary, UAF, to
identify and evaluate risks. The assessment is performed by
the operating divisions and co-ordinated by Risks Control.
The results and findings are reported to the RMC, Audit
Committee and the Board respectively.

In addition to this regular self-assessment, the Group
engaged an external consultant in 2008 to perform an
independent review of its existing control platform covering
a significant part of the Group’s operations. This additional
measure was adopted to provide further insights on internal
control mechanisms so as to strengthen and improve the
overall corporate governance culture. The consultant’s
report was completed in early 2009 and was reported to the
RMC, Audit Committee and the Board. Consequently, those
divisions within the Group being reviewed will implement
the findings.

The RMC, the Audit Committee and the Board have
reviewed the effectiveness of internal control systems of
the Group and fulfilled the requirement of the CG Code
regarding internal control systems in general.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of strong
communication with our shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to shareholders in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Such published documents, together with
the latest corporate information and news, are also made
available on the Company’s website.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates in the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any questions from the shareholders.
The Chairmen of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are also available to answer
questions at the AGM. The chairman of any independent
board committee formed as necessary or pursuant to the
Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at least
a member of the independent board committee) will also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting
of the shareholders to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for each substantial issue, including the re-election of the
retiring Directors.

The Company’s last AGM was held on 5 June 2008 and the
AGM circular was sent to shareholders at least 21 days prior
to the meeting setting out the voting procedures (including
the procedures for demanding and conducting a poll). The
Chairman explained the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the meeting
and revealed the level of proxies voted in respect of each
resolution.

The next AGM will be held on 10 June 2009 and the
notice thereof will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll will be provided
to shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The
Chairman will answer any questions from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements
of the Listing Rules effective 1 January 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the Stock
Exchange, but about promoting and developing an ethical
and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review,
and where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our
shareholders to promote and improve our transparency
are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Seng Huang
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 April 2009
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Directors’ Report

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased
to present the Annual Report and audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are
set out in notes 48, 49 and 50 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. Details and respective analysis
of the main business segments of the Group during the
year are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement.
An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share was paid
to shareholders on 10 November 2008. The Directors
recommended the declaration of a final dividend of HK5
cents per share payable on 25 June 2009 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 10 June 2009, making a total dividend for the
year 2008 of HK10 cents per share.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property and equipment during 2008
are detailed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The total donations made by the Group for charitable
purposes during the year amounted to HK$2,392,824.

SHARES AND WARRANTS

Details of the movements in share capital and warrants of
the Company during the year are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors during the year and up to the date
of this Report comprises:

Executive Directors

Lee Seng Huang (Chairman)
Joseph Tong Tang

Non-Executive Directors

Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar
Fevzi Timucin Engin
(appointed on 27 March 2009, and also appointed as alternate to
Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar)
Josefh Kamal Eskandar
(appointed on 27 March 2009 as alternate to Fevzi Timucin Engin)
Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Amin Rafie Bin Othman
(also as alternate to Abdulhakeem Abdulhussain Ali Kamkar,
resigned and ceased to be an alternate director on 27 March 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

David Craig Bartlett
Alan Stephen Jones
Carlisle Caldow Procter
Peter Wong Man Kong

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, new directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting, and new Directors appointed as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. In addition, Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation, and eligible for re-election,
at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with
Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 92, Mr. Fevzi Timucin Engin will
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election. In accordance with Article 101,
Messrs. Joseph Tong Tang, Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Alan
Stephen Jones will also retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

(@) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Directors

Lee Seng Huang

Joseph Tong Tang

Notes:

Capacity

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 1)

Beneficiary of trust

Mr. Lee Seng Huang, Director, together with Mr. Lee
Seng Hui and Ms. Lee Su Hwei are the trustees of Lee
and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee and
Lee Trust together with Mr. Lee Seng Hui indirectly
owned approximately 44.52% interest in the issued
share capital of Allied Group Limited (“AGL”) and was
therefore deemed to have interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which AGL was
interested.

These include interests in () 1,088,450,163 shares
of the Company; and (i) listed physically settled
warrants of the Company giving rise to an interest in
155,652,833 underlying shares of the Company. The
warrants of the Company entitle the holders thereof
to subscribe at any time during the period from
1 June 2006 to 31 May 2009 (both days inclusive)

Number of shares and
underlying shares

Approximate % of
the issued
share capital

1,244,102,996 72.49%
(Note 2)

135,000 0.007%
(Note 3)

for the fully paid shares of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$6 per share which was
adjusted to HK$5.88 per share (subject to further
adjustments) effective on 20 September 2006 (the
“2009 Warrants”).

This represents the deemed interest in 135,000 shares
of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) granted to Mr.
Joseph Tong Tang on 15 April 2008 (and accepted on
17 April 2008) under the SHK Employee Ownership
Scheme (“EOS”). The Awarded Shares are subject to
a vesting scale in tranches whereby one-third of the
Awarded Shares thereof shall be vested and become
unrestricted from 15 April 2009; another one-third
thereof shall be vested and become unrestricted from
15 April 2010; the remaining one-third thereof shall be
vested and become unrestricted from 15 April 2011.
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(b) Interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations

Associated
Directors corporations Capacity
Lee Seng Huang  AGL Trustee (other than a
(Note 1) bare trustee) (Note 2)
Allied Properties Interests of controlled
(H.K.) Limited corporation (Note 3)
(“APL”)

Quality HealthCare Interests of controlled

Asia Limited corporation (Note 5)
(“QHA")
Tian An China Interests of controlled
Investments corporation (Note 6)
Company Limited
(“Tian An”)
Swan Islands Interests of controlled
Limited corporation (Note 7)
Patrick Lee AGL Beneficial owner
Seng Wei
APL Beneficial owner
Notes:
1. Mr. Lee Seng Huang, by virtue of his interests in AGL

and APL, was deemed to be interested in the shares
of the subsidiaries of AGL and APL (and QHA, a listed
subsidiary of APL), which are associated corporations
of the Company as defined under the SFO.

A waiver application was submitted to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for exemption from disclosure of his
deemed interests in the shares of such associated
corporations of the Company in this Report, and
a waiver was granted by the Stock Exchange on
18 March 2009.
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Approximate %

Number of shares  of the relevant

and underlying issued share Amount of
shares capital debentures
108,626,492 44.51% -
4,838,984,650 85.62% -
(Note 4)
144,385,776 62.81% -
625,602,215 43.31% -

HK$900,000,000

(Note 7)

550,000 0.22% -
(Note 8)

3,240,000 0.05% -
(Note 9)

Mr. Lee Seng Huang is one of the trustees of Lee and
Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust which indirectly
owned 108,626,492 shares of AGL.

These refer to the same interests held directly or
indirectly by AGL in APL.



4. These include interests in () 4,177,320,590 shares
of APL; and (ii) listed physically settled warrants
of APL giving rise to an interest in 661,664,060
underlying shares of APL. The warrants of APL entitle
the holders thereof to subscribe at any time during the
period from 7 June 2006 to 6 June 2009 (both days
inclusive) for fully paid shares of APL at an adjusted
subscription price of HK$1 per share (subject to
further adjustments) (the “APL Warrants”).

5. This refers to the interest in 144,385,776 shares held
indirectly by APL in the shares of QHA.

6. This refers to the interest held in directly by the
Company in the shares of Tian An.

7. This represents the outstanding amount of the bonds
issued by Swan lIslands Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to AG Capital Holding
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL,
to partially settle the consideration for the acquisition
of UAF Holdings Limited as disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 30 June 2006.

8. This refers to the interest in 550,000 shares of AGL.

9. These include interests in (i) 2,700,000 shares of APL;
and (ii) the APL Warrants giving rise to an interest in
540,000 underlying shares of APL.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As
at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors held any
short positions in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, neither
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers.

ARRANGEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors of the Company had any personal interests in the
options to subscribe for shares in the Company’s ultimate
holding company, AGL, granted under the share option
scheme of the said company.

On 18 December 2007, the Company adopted the EOS,
under which, selected employees or directors of the Group
are to be awarded shares of the Company which have been
purchased by the appointed scheme trustee. The details of
the EOS were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 28 December 2007. Particulars of shares granted
under the EOS to a Director and selected employees
are disclosed in the “Directors’ Interests” section in this
Report and note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Other than the EOS, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiary companies, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2008, the following shareholders had interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (the “SFO Register”):

Number of Approximate %

shares and of the issued

Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital

APL Interests of controlled corporation 1,244,102,996 72.49%
(Note 1) (Note 2)

AGL Interests of controlled corporation 1,244,102,996 72.49%
(Note 3) (Note 4)

Lee and Lee Trust Interests of controlled corporation 1,244,102,996 72.49%
(Note 5) (Note 4)

Dubai Ventures L.L.C Beneficial owner 166,000,000 9.67%
(“Dubai Ventures”) (Note 6)

Dubai Ventures Group (L.L.C) Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
(formerly known as Dubai (Note 7) (Note 8)

Investment Group (L.L.C.)) (“DVG”)

Dubai Group (L.L.C) (“Dubai Group”)  Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
(Note 9) (Note 8)

Dubai Holding Investments Group Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
LLC (“DHIG”) (Note 10) (Note 8)

Dubai Holding (L.L.C) Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
(“Dubai Holding”) (Note 11) (Note 8)

Dubai Group Limited (“DGL”) Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
(Note 12) (Note 8)

Bin Rashid Al Maktoum Mohammed  Interests of controlled corporation 171,542,000 10.00%
(Note 13) (Note 8)

Penta Investment Advisers Limited Investment manager 187,594,349 10.93%
(“Penta”) (Note 14)

John Zwaanstra Interests of controlled corporation 187,594,349 10.93%
(Note 15) (Note 16)

Penta Asia Fund, Ltd. (“Penta Asia”)  Interests of controlled corporation 87,160,699 5.08%
(Note 17) (Note 18)

Todd Zwaanstra Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 87,160,699 5.08%
(Note 17) (Note 18)

Mercurius GP LLC (“Mercurius”) Founder of a discretionary trust 87,160,699 5.08%
(Noted 19) (Note 18)

UBS AG Beneficial owner and person having 118,364,149 6.93%

a security interest
(Note 20)

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited  Annual Report 2008



Notes:

10.

11.

The interests were held by AP Emerald Limited (“AP Emerald”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of AP Jade Limited which in turn
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of APL. APL was therefore
deemed to have interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which AP Emerald was interested.

These include interests in (i) 1,088,450,163 shares of the
Company; and (i) the 2009 Warrants giving rise to an interest
in 155,652,833 underlying shares of the Company (at the
adjusted subscription price of the 2009 Warrants of HK$5.88
per share).

AGL owned approximately 73.91% interest in the issued share
capital of APL and was therefore deemed to have interests in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which APL
was interested.

These refer to the same interests in 1,088,450,163 shares
and 155,652,833 underlying shares of the Company held by
AP Emerald.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang, a
Director of the Company, are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust. They together owned approximately
44.52% interest in the issued share capital of AGL and were
therefore deemed to have interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company in which AGL was interested.

This represents an interest in 166,000,000 shares of the
Company.

DVG owned 99% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai
Ventures and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company in which Dubai Ventures was interested.
Additionally, DVG was deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company held by Dubai Ventures Group Limited
(“DVGL”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of DVG.

These refer to the respective interests in 166,000,000 shares
and 5,542,000 shares of the Company held by Dubai Ventures
and DVGL.

Dubai Group owned 99% interest in the issued share capital
of DVG and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company in which DVG was interested.

DHIG owned 51% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai
Group and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company in which Dubai Group was interested.

Dubai Holding owned approximately 99.66% interest in the
issued share capital of DHIG and was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company in which DHIG
was interested.

20.

DGL owned 49% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai
Group. DGL was therefore deemed to have interests in the
shares of the Company in which Dubai Group was interested.

Mr. Bin Rashid Al Maktoum Mohammed owned approximately
97.40% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai Holding
and 100% interest in the issued share capital of DGL. Mr. Bin
Rashid Al Maktoum Mohammed was therefore deemed to have
interests in the shares of the Company in which Dubai Holding
and DGL were interested.

These include interests in (i) 89,994,885 shares of the Company;
and (i) the 2009 Warrants giving rise to an interest in 127,500
underlying shares of the Company; and (i) unlisted cash
settled derivatives of the Company, giving rise to an interest in
97,471,964 underlying shares of the Company.

Mr. John Zwaanstra was deemed to have interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company through his
100% interest in Penta. Mr. John Zwaanstra was also deemed
to have interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company in which Penta Asia and Mercurius were interested
through his control of more than one-third of the voting power
of Mercurius.

These refer to the same interests in 89,994,885 shares and
97,599,464 underlying shares of the Company held by Penta.

These interests were held by Penta Master Fund, Ltd. (“Penta
Master”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Penta Asia. Mr. Todd
Zwaanstra was deemed to have interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Penta Master was
interested pursuant to his control of more than one-third of the
voting power of Penta Asia as trustee of the Mercurius Partners
Trust (“Mercurius Trust”), being a discretionary trust.

These duplicated parts of the interests of Penta and Mr. John
Zwaanstra, and include interests in (i) 21,387,326 shares of
the Company; (i) the 2009 Warrants giving rise to an interest
in 87,674 underlying shares of the Company; and (iii) unlisted
cash settled derivatives of the Company, giving rise to an
interest in 65,685,699 underlying shares of the Company.

Mercurius was the founder of the Mercurius Trust and was
therefore deemed to have interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company in which Mr. Todd Zwaanstra was
interested as the trustee of Mercurius Trust.

UBS AG was interested in 97,515,964 shares of the Company
in the capacity of beneficial owner and 20,848,185 shares of
the Company in the capacity of a person having a security
interest in the shares of the Company.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

41



42

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31 December 2008, no short positions were recorded in
the SFO Register of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons who have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
of equity derivatives or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would require to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Sharing of Management Services Agreements

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
1 February 2008 and the 2007 Annual Report of the
Company, a renewed sharing of management services
agreement was entered into between the Company and AGL
on 31 January 2008 (the “Renewed Services Agreement”)
to extend the term of the sharing of management services
agreement dated 31 October 2005 for a period of three
years from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010, in
relation to the provision of management, consultancy,
strategic and business advice services (the “Management
Services”) by the senior management and selected staff
of AGL (the “AGL Management Staff”) to the Company
and its subsidiaries (but excluding the QHA group of
companies, a listed subsidiary of the Company until 26 June
2008) and the reimbursement of costs to AGL. Pursuant
to the Renewed Services Agreement, the aggregate
amount payable to AGL for the three financial years ending
31 December 2010 shall not exceed HK$2.8 million, HK$3.8
million and HK$3.4 million respectively. The total amount
paid to AGL for the year ended 31 December 2008 was
HK$2.8 million.

As the Company is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of APL, which in turn is an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of AGL, and hence is a connected person of
the Company as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
the entering into of the Renewed Services Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. In accordance with the
requirements of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules, details of the Continuing Connected Transactions
are included in this Report.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company,
being Messrs. David Craig Bartlett, Alan Stephen Jones,
Carlisle Caldow Procter and Peter Wong Man Kong,
reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(iif) in accordance with the Renewed Services Agreement
governing it on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Continuing
Connected Transactions were entered into in the manners
stated above.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board
of Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions and the auditor has
reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board of Directors.

A former subsidiary of the Company, QHA, also entered
into a sharing of management services agreement with
AGL for a period of three years from 1 January 2008
to 31 December 2010 in relation to the provision of the
Management Services by the AGL Management Staff to the
QHA group of companies and the reimbursement of costs
to AGL. In May 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for the disposal of its entire interest
in QHA, and QHA ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group
in June 2008.

Insurance Brokerage Services Agreements

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
2 March 2009, subsequent to the year end, Sun Hung
Kai Insurance Consultants Limited (“SHK Insurance”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an insurance services agreement with each of AGL,
APL, QHA and Yu Ming Investment Management Limited
(“YMIM”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL)



on 27 February 2009 (the “Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements”) whereby SHK Insurance will provide packaged
insurance brokerage services to the AGL Group, APL
Group, QHA Group and YMIM Group (as defined in the
said announcement) in accordance with the terms of the
Insurance Brokerage Services Agreements for one year from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009.

Given that APL is a substantial shareholder of the Company;
and AGL, QHA and YMIM are associates of APL, each of
AGL, APL, QHA and YMIM and their respective associates
are regarded as a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. As such, the entering into of the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreements constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34
of the Listing Rules. In accordance with the requirements
of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules, details
of the continuing connected transactions will be included
in the next published annual report and accounts of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Conditional Sale and Purchase of Approximately
51.15% of the Issued Share Capital of QHA

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company,
APL and AGL dated 14 May 2008 and in the circular of
the Company dated 4 June 2008, a sale and purchase
agreement dated 7 May 2008 (the “S&P Agreement”)
was entered into between (i) the Company as the vendor;
(i) Famestep Investments Limited (“Famestep”, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of APL) as the purchaser; and (iii)
AGL as the guarantor in relation to the sale and purchase of
the entire issued share capital of Wah Cheong Development
(B.V.1.) Limited (“Wah Cheong”) which held approximately
51.15% represented by 122,213,776 shares of HK$0.10
each (the “Sale Shares”) of the issued share capital of QHA
and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan due from
Wah Cheong to the Company in the amount of HK$271.0
million, at an aggregate consideration (before expenses) of
HK$470.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.85 per
share of QHA then in issue).

Completion of the S&P Agreement was subject to, amongst
other things, the approval of the independent shareholders
of the Company in accordance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. Completion took
place on 26 June 2008 following fulfilment of the conditions
as set out in the S&P Agreement.

The disposal of the Sale Shares enabled the Group to
realise its capital investment in QHA and generated a gain
of HK$163.4 million which would be applied as working
capital by the Company for its core businesses.

Famestep is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of APL which,
in turn, is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
hence a connected person of the Company as defined in
the Listing Rules. As such, the entering into of the S&P
Agreement constituted a connected transaction for the
Company (the “Connected Transaction”) and required
approval of the independent shareholders of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

An Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company was
duly convened and held on 23 June 2008, at which the
relevant resolutions were duly passed by the independent
shareholders pursuant to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In accordance with the
requirements of Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, details of
the Connected Transaction are included in this Report.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings
of the Group are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiary companies
are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
26 to 35.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this Report, save
as disclosed below, none of the Directors (not being the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) nor their respective
associates are considered to have interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses
of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Huang is one of the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed substantial
shareholder of each of AGL, APL and Tian An which,
through their subsidiaries, are partly engaged in the
businesses as follows:

- AGL, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment;

- APL, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment; and

- Tian An, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment in Mainland
China.

2. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei is a director of APL and
Tian An, which through certain of their subsidiaries,
are partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

Although the abovementioned Directors have competing
interests in other companies by virtue of their respective
common directorship, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties
in order to ensure that they will act in the best interest of
the shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times.
Hence the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the business
of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiary companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors as
at the date of this Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total turnover
for the year.

Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers taken together were less than 30% of
the Group’s total purchases for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company
repurchased a total of 15,567,000 shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$48,798,790.
All the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled.



Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

Number of

shares Purchase price Aggregate

Month repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

August 925,000 5.74 5.52 5,182,340
September 4,790,000 4.28 3.20 17,924,110
October 2,333,000 3.70 2.70 7,341,950
November 6,538,000 3.11 1.94 15,623,280
December 981,000 2.80 2.66 2,727,110

15,567,000 48,798,790

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole with a view to enhancing
the earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities during the year ended 31 December
2008.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”)
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. Deloitte was appointed as auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Seng Huang
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUN HUNG KAI & CO. LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun Hung
Kai & Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 194, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 2 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

el ik

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE2008F12A31ALFE
2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEET BEBTT
Revenue* W > 5 2,785.4 4,630.7
Other income E Al A 586.4 783.7
Total income FEb gy 3,371.8 5,414.4
Cost of sales HE A (26.7) (44.9)
Brokerage and commission expenses g kfe B8R (211.6) (414.6)
Direct cost and operating expenses BERARKELER (609.2) (867.2)
Administrative expenses EEER (1,061.8) (1,397.6)
Other expenses HEmmEA (654.6) (401.0)
Finance costs Bl & R AR 9 (210.5) (535.0)
597.4 1,754 1
Net gain on deemed disposal of a listed RIEHE — E g AR
associate U #5558 - 141.0
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERER
investments BIEEE (82.4) (2.0)
(Loss) gain on fair value change of — T E A R R E R
warrants of a listed associate NEEZE (BE) ke 10 (284.1) 36.1
Share of results of associates JZiEfY N E 302.1 263.8
Share of results of jointly controlled entities  F{h $E[E 15 %A 7 245 - 0.8
Profit before taxation R 5 A i ) 12 533.0 2,193.8
Taxation IR 13 (45.2) (172.9)
Profit for the year EFEERN 487.8 2,020.9
Profit attributable to: JEAEEH
- Equity holders of the Company — AREEER 346.5 1,897.6
— Minority interests — LR RS 141.3 123.3
487.8 2,020.9
Dividends i8S 14 171.1 570.4
Earnings per share st 15
- Basic (HK cents) — B (BL) 20.4 124.6
- Diluted (HK cents) — e OBI) N/A B 118.1

* Revenue is also the Group’s turnover.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2008

FREERER

Eézoosimﬂ 31H

2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEET BEAT
Non-current Assets FIRBEE
Investment properties "EME 16 129.7 58.9
Leasehold interests in land FAE kRS 17 134.6 132.5
Property and equipment EYSE L - 18 122.7 138.7
Intangible assets mEEE 19 1,508.0 2,080.1
Goodwill FEES 20 2,384.0 2,504.8
Interest in associates g N AR 23 3,713.7 3,171.2
Interest in jointly controlled entities HEEGI QB S 24 16.8 1.5
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 25 247.7 1,232.2
Statutory deposits EERE 18.4 29.7
Deferred tax assets IREFI IS B 41 122.3 66.3
Loans and advances to consumer AR BEEPER K
finance customers R 27 1,743.5 1,475.4
Loans and receivables B e U AR 28 164.2 5.8
10,305.6 10,897.1
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories =g - 11.3
Trade and other receivables £ 2 B PR IR 29 4,417.2 5,811.8
Loans and advances to consumer LAFBEFPER R
finance customers B 27 2,588.4 2,145.2
Financial assets at fair value BRWERRATE
through profit or loss PIBRMBI & E 30 295.8 1,170.6
Amounts due from associates N DN 31 62.9 137.6
Amounts due from a fellow subsidiary B R B A FIKER 51 0.3 -
Taxation recoverable FEN AR IR 29.1 3.2
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 32 1,738.9 1,639.9
9,132.6 10,919.6
Current Liabilities piE=NE
Bank and other borrowings A—F RN EEIRTT &
due within one year Hib & 33 (184.7) (555.5)
Trade and other payables &2 K H A ENER 34 (1,439.6) (2,046.4)
Financial liabilities at fair value BB R EE AT E
through profit or loss FIBRMM BB E 35 (37.3) (69.1)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries EES NS €= 51 (1,590.5) (19.7)
Amounts due to associates BENTER (8.1) (7.5)
Provisions P 40 (52.8) (74.5)
Taxation payable PRI IE (63.7) (128.9)
Loan notes BRERE 36 = (69.2)
(3,376.7) (2,960.8)
Net Current Assets REEEFE 5,755.9 7,958.8
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEEBRRBAE 16,061.5 18,855.9
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2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEET BEBT
Capital and Reserves EARR#E
Share capital R AN 37 343.2 336.0
Reserves E 11,002.3 11,855.6
Equity attributable to equity holders of AN B R R RS
the Company R 11,345.5 12,191.6
Minority interests DR S 1,681.8 1,831.8
Total Equity ERAEE 13,027.3 14,023.4
Non-current Liabilities FRBEME
Bonds &% 39 900.0 2,800.0
Bank and other borrowings —F I BIRT R
due after one year HAER 33 1,859.4 1,649.6
Provisions AEf 40 14.7 4.5
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 41 260.1 378.4
3,034.2 4,832.5
16,061.5 18,855.9

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 194 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2
April 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Seng Huang
TRE
Director

EBZE
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Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2008

BERER

200812 A31H

2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEEBT BEBT
Non-current Assets FIRBEE
Intangible assets | EE 19 1.1 1.1
Interest in subsidiaries W8~ Bl = 22 453.4 420.8
Interest in associates SN 23 2,315.5 2,159.2
Amounts due from subsidiaries N IEPNGISE S 26 3,777.7 -
Deferred tax assets FEETTBEE 41 7.3 10.6
6,555.0 2,591.7
Current Assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries S =NEIUN 26 1,149.7 4,566.3
Trade and other receivables £ 2 B PR R 0.4 1.8
Financial assets at fair value ERWRREATE
through profit or loss HIBRM B TS E = 30 1.2 285.3
Amounts due from associates Bt 2R B R BR 31 59.6 138.2
Cash and cash equivalents B MREeEEY 32 4.1 90.7
1,215.0 5,082.3
Current Liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ME A B EER 26 (561.8) (539.3)
Trade and other payables 4 K Hoh e BR (6.3) (19.6)
Financial liabilities at fair value HBW R R AT E
through profit or loss PIBRM BB E 35 (4.0) (4.1
Taxation payable FEHEIR - 8.7
Loan notes BERER 36 - (69.2
(572.1) (640.9)
Net Current Assets RBEERR 642.9 4,441.4
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERARBEE 7,197.9 7,033.1
Capital and Reserves EXRFHE
Share capital A% AR 37 343.2 336.0
Reserves B 38 6,854.7 6,697.1
Equity attributable to equity holders ViN/NE )i 358
of the Company iR 7,197.9 7,033.1
Lee Seng Huang Joseph Tong Tang
IR BE
Director Director
EFE EaE
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Consolidated Statement of ,ﬁ.'*v%:\é\ *gﬁ%@] %
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008 EZE2008F12A31A I FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ROARRER

Shares

held for ~ Employee

Employee share-based

Ownership - compensation

Capital Scheme reserve Minority

Share Share redemption  AEERH I Exchange Revaluation Capital ~ Retained  Dividend interests Total
capital  premium  reseve  HEHE XAWES  reseve  reserve  reserves  eamings reserve Total i | equity

B BEEE SREEER  HARE  MeRR  ERBR  EGER  EAER REMA KRGS B RREE  REAE
HKS Million HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion  HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon
BEEn  EEET  BEET  EEMR  EEEn  EEEn  EEER  BEER  BEET  EENR  EEEn  EEEm EEER

At 1 January 2008 R008E1A1R 336.0 47642 517 - - 1716 1,2243 (8.6) 52824 4200 12,1916 18318 14,0234
Deferred taxation EEHE - - - - - - 07 - - - 07 - 07
Exchange differences arising on -~ EFNERY

translation of overseas operations E¥ £8 - - - - - 50 - - - - 50 44 94
Loss on fair valug changes of ~ AIEHERES

avalable-for-sale nvestments ~ ATEEHEE - - - - - - ©87) - - - 987) - (987
Share of reserves of associates  FEBEATRE - - - - - 150.9 93 (13.0) - - 1376 - 1376
Impairment loss on ARLEREN

avalable-for-sale investments ~ FESE - - - - - - 824 - - - 824 - 824

Net income recognised directly

ineuly - - - - - 1649 49 (130) - - 1270 44 1314
Release on disposal of HETRNERER

avalable-for-sale investments BE - - - - - - (904.0 - - - (904.0 - (904.0
Release on disposal of subsidiaries \EMEAFEERE - - - - - - 74 - - - (074 - [97.4)
Proft for the year REFEF - - - - - - - - 346.5 - 346.5 1413 4818
Total recognised income and ~~~ REEDER

expense for the year e - - - - - 1649 (10263 (130) 3465 - (5219) 1457 (3822)
Recogniion of equity-setted  EZEEERAH

share-based payments HROEERH - - - - 97 - - - - - 97 - 97
Purchase of shares held for the ~ A#2EEE R

SHK Employee Ownership EEHER

Scheme ELORG - - - (326) - - - - 10 (10 326 - 126
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - - - - - - - - - - - (270.3) (270.3)
Adjustment to 2007 EBN07E

final dividends KHRS - - - - - - - - 89 89 - - -
Final dividends paid FHFERE - - - - - - - - N 7Y -
Interim dividends declared B - - - - - - - - (85.7) 85.7 - - -
Adjustment to 2008 FR085F

interim dividends nEfRE - - - - - - - - 02 (02 - - -
Inerim ciidends peid FHnERe - - - - - - - - - 3 3 - 133
Shares issued on warrants iEaRER

exercised FEGLL) Al 235 - - - - - - - - 206 - 2106
Shares issued for HHRES

serip dividends FrEfTRRG 32 533 - - - - - - - 56.5) - - -
Shares repurchased and cancelled EIEE R 5 (31 - 31 - - - - - (49.0) - (49.0) - (49,0
Proposed final dividends RERSRE - - - - - - - - 85.6) 85.6 - - -
Dividends paid to FHREFI%

minoriy interests RREs - - - - - - - - - - - (25.4) (54)
At 31 December 2008 #2008E12A318 3432 50210 548 (32.6) 97 3365 198.0 (21.6) 53509 85.6 11,345.5 1,681.8 13,027.3
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Attributable to equity holders of the Gompany

ARTRREL
Capital
redemption Minority
Share Share  reserve  Exchange Revalaion  Capitl  Retaned  Diidend interests Total
captal  premum  AAEE  reseve  reseve  resenes  eamings resene Tot YRR equity

B BhAR 0 BE  EXRE BEER AABE REEN REGE 0 2B #R B
HKS Milion  HKS Miion  HKS Milion  HKS Millon - HKS Miln ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Miion - HKS Miion - HKS Milion - HKS Mion
BEAT AEBn  BEEn  ABRT  REET  BEEn  AERT  AEEn  BEEn  ABET BB

A1 January 2007 as Ho007E1 A1 - BB

originally stated HE 288 27788 517 50 88 23 30404 1494 81132 10952 92084
Adjustments arising fom ~ BEEANES
completion of nifia IinEE
accounting for acquistions ~ fffE7 4 - - - - 20 - (352) - 1888 8430 10318

At1 January 2007, as restated 200751718 - &5 288 27788 517 50 1,088 23 39052 1494 83020 19382 102402

Deferred taxation EEia - - - - 07) - - - 07) - (07)
Exchange differences arising 172

on tranglation of overseas MR

operations ELzE - - - 58 - - - - 58 14 72
Galns on fair valug changes of &L EREHDTE

avallable-for-sale investments & - - - - 609.0 - - - 609.0 - 609.0
Share of reserves of associates FfsE& A7 &R - - - 1088 124 (108) - - o - 104

Net income recognised directly B2 NERTEA
in equity PAFE - - - 146 607 (10) - - TU5 14 759
Release on disposal of HETRDERER

available-for-sale investments & - - - - (499 - - - (499 - (499
Release on disposal of HERENTR

associates BE - - - - (5.3) 0.1) - - (.4) - (4)
Proft o the year REERT - - - - - - 18976 - 18976 1233 20209
Total recognised income and ~ BEEE 3

expense for the year Y g - - - 1146 16.5 (109 18976 - 21668 1247 20015
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - - (69.1) (69.1)
lssue of subsidiary's shares to Z{THERARNTF

minortty interests VERRER - - - - - - - - - 30 340
Sheres issued 3510 372 19884 - - - - - - 2056 - 2056
Costs of shares issued Bk - (30) - - - - - - B30) - (30)
Interim dvidends declared ~ E£ R

and peid e - - - - - - (1504 - (1504 - (1504
Proposed final dividends ~~ EERREIRS. - - - - - - [0y 400 - - -
Final dividends paid ghFkEke - - - - - - - (94 (1494 - (1494
Dividends paidto minorty ~ XFREFLERE

interests s - - - - - - - - - (1960 (196.0)
MO December 2007 RO007E12631A WO 47642 ST 76 1243 BB 5224 400 121916 18318 140084
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE2008F12A31HIEFE
2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5T BEAT BEBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESES
Profit before taxation B 7 A A 533.0 2,193.8
Adjustments for: FEIER -
— Share of results of associates — PGB N A A (302.1) (2683.8)
— Share of results of jointly controlled entities — Fr{h TE A2 4 A 7 4 - (0.8)
— Dividend income — BEHA (44.8) (31.1)
- Interest income — F WA (351.5) (642.8)
— Profit on disposal of subsidiaries —HEHMBAREF (163.4) (49.6)
— Net gain on deemed disposal of — RIELE— LhEE QT
a listed associate ol et - (141.0)
— Profit on disposal of associates — HEBE QR F - (9.6)
- Profit on disposal of an investment property — H& — & EWE R T = (11.9)
— Net realised profit on disposal of —HERHEERED
available-for-sale investments BRI R FFEE (347.7) (598.2)
— Reversal of impairment loss on interest in ~ — B#& A Bz R(E
associates J=gi=E el - (26.9)
- Reversal of impairment loss on loans and  — LA EPERE
advances to consumer finance customers BREREEIERE (0.3) (0.2)
— Reversal of impairment loss on loans and ~ — &3k % fE Wi BR 8RB
receivables E RO (1.4) -
- Reversal of impairment loss on trade and ~ — & & & H A FE U BRHY
other receivables DEREY, SEi=E 4 (12.7) (21.9)
— Decrease (increase) in fair value of — KEWENFEERD
investment properties (3&h0) 1.7 9.9
- Impairment loss on intangible assets —BEEEMNREEBE 69.0 84.0
— Impairment loss on available-for-sale — At ERERRE
investments &8 82.4 2.0
- Impairment loss on loans and advances to — FLABMBEFEER N
consumer finance customers BRHRIERE 363.1 285.7
— Impairment loss on loans and receivables — — B 2% & fE U BR (R E G 18 25.7 -
- Impairment loss on trade and other — e R H At IR Y
receivables BUEEIE 116.6 31.2
— Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets — BB RE AT ETR
and liabilities at fair value through W EERBERN
profit or loss NTEEE (W) 448.6 (45.6)
— Amortisation of leasehold interests in land ~ — #$5TH& + i 3.2 2.5
— Amortisation of intangible assets — R EAE 212.4 252.8
— Depreciation of property and equipment — Y ENERETE 40.2 39.4
— Expenses recognised for SHK Employee —MFEEEERNES
Ownership Scheme FHEIFTER N E A 9.7 -
- Interest expenses — FEER 201.6 514.2
— Net loss on disposal of property and — HEMEREZHED
equipment BRI 0.7 4.8
Operating cash flows before movements MEEAZEFILE
in working capital REeEnE 884.0 1,657.7
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2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5T BEET BEET
(Increase) decrease in loans and receivables B3 & EURER (3Eh0) & (183.0) 0.2
Increase in inventories FEIEM (2.3) (1.7
Increase in loans and advances to consumer FLABMBEEER K
finance customers BB N (1,066.9) (1,017.1)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other 4 8 K B A SCBR Rk
receivables (&) 1,145.5 (2,115.8)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets FHil e RR A T EYIRE
at fair value through profit or loss AR (3Gn) 404.0 (522.5)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other g R B A R AR ORtA>)
payables 4 (425.0) 611.7
(Decrease) increase in financial liabilities BB EIRIE A TES RS
at fair value through profit or loss MasE Cad) gm (12.5) 57.1
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries [E ZMEB AT EBRIE M 20.7 19.8
Decrease in provisions AR (15.1) (1.7)
Cash from (used in) operations KRS (FTH) Re 749.4 (1,412.3)
Interest received BT B 355.1 629.0
Dividends received from held for trading DBUFIEEERE
investments % 2 14.5 3.0
Interest paid BRFE (234.2) (506.0)
Taxation paid RIBSS (254.6) (194.4)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING RIREEENRE (FTA)
ACTIVITIES R& 55 630.2 (1,480.7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of investment properties BAKREYZE (72.6) -
Proceeds on disposal of an investment HE—FTIREmE
property FiS /18 - 8.1
Purchase of leasehold interests in land BAME LR (5.5) (65.6)
Purchase of property and equipment BAMENRHE (64.7) (71.4)
Proceeds on disposal of property and HEMENKE
equipment A5 308 - 1.6
Purchase of intangible assets BABEEE (26.8) 9.7)
Acquisition of a subsidiary AN B AR 42 (11.4) -
Costs for acquisition of a subsidiary BBAKBARKA - (1.2)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 11 247.6 17.9
Repayment (payment) of net amount B2 N RIERERAE N
due from associates (370 79.4 (1.9)
Dividends received from associates &I NCI ) = 27.4
Additional interest purchased in associates — 1ZEERE L A FHEZS (104.9) (537.4)
Proceeds on disposal of associates HEBE RN E TS sIE - 171.3
Purchase of jointly controlled entities BEAKRIZESIA A (15.6) -
Dividends received from jointly controlled U BY ££ B2 I A 7 AY
entities s - 2.3
Repayment of net amount due from jointly HEEH QA FFEX RS
controlled entities ER - 0.2
Repayment of net amount due from investee % & A T F K BEHY
companies I - 1.7
Dividends received from available-for-sale WWER A ERE
investments s 28.3 25.9
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BANHLERE (18.2) (111.3)
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEERE
investments FRiS K18 347.8 695.4
Net repayment of statutory deposits EERSETFE 11.4 48.1
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RIRE BB SR G FHE 394.8 202.0
FORHARAT 1 2008 101



2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
gz BEERT BEBT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESEE)
Dividends paid P& B3 1+ (457.0) (299.8)
Payments to minority interests T DB R RS (25.5) (237.9)
Net short-term bank borrowings (repaid) (BE) 1B HISRTTE R

raised TREE (343.9) 955.7
New long-term bank loans raised R RARITER 242.5 139.0
Repayment of bonds EEES (1,900.0) -
Repayment of long-term bank loans EERBRITER (42.1) (15.1)
Short-term loans due to fellow R (ER) IRER

subsidiaries raised (repaid) MEARERK 1,550.0 (750.9)
Repayment of loan notes BEERER (69.6) -
Net proceeds from issue of a subsidiary’s BT B ARG T8

shares to minority interests f& BRSPS SR F R - 34.1
Net proceeds from issue of shares BITIRAMSRIRFRE 210.6 2,022.6
Shares repurchased and cancelled [0 88 K 7 S PR 19 (49.0) -
Purchase of shares for the SHK Employee HITEEEEROEEAE

Ownership Scheme Frig AR5 (32.6) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REvEES) (FTA) T8

ACTIVITIES REFHE (916.6) 1,847.7
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH Re RIBEEEYIEM

EQUIVALENTS FEE 108.4 569.0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MTATENReRE®

AT 1 JANUARY EEY 1,621.9 1,054.5
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEE [ R E B R 8.6 (1.6)

1,738.9 1,621.9

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A31BMERER

AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by HEZEEY
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 1,738.9 1,639.9
Bank overdrafts HRITHESX = (18.0)

1,738.9 1,621.9
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

e SRR MR

HZE2008F12A31ALFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent is AP Emerald Limited. Its
ultimate holding company is Allied Group Limited, a company
incorporated and listed in Hong Kong. The address of the
registered office of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate
Information of the Annual Report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment
holding company and the principal activities of its major
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 48.

APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“New HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which are or have become effective and are relevant to the
operations of the Group.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

The adoption of the New HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

m
>

1

AARE—HMEFEAMKINRARERA
Bl HBRAREBSBARSHABR AR L
m o AT AAP Emerald Limited » & 4845
BARAEESEME LB ASEEER
N e RRDBFEMPER MU N ARERA T
BRI —fhiEE -

t

AP BEHRIABTEY > BELHREBARRR
e g% -

el

#

ARBETEXBRIE/IERIRERAR  Hx
ZMBARNEBXBRI T8 KE -

RAFMEETNEBMBREER

RAFE  SEERBUATHEESITAR
SEMNEERRZE (B [HHKFRSs])
ZEMHKFRSSE A AR H = m L ERH -

HKAS 39KHKFRS 7 B EEMEH DA
(FEE1E)
HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — &£

PERKBRS
RN Z S FTHKFRSs ¥ 45 Fil &2 2 51 AR 23 K A 1%

SAHHENERLRVBRRLBEATE
F T S AT M R AR R 9 o
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104

APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued, but are not yet effective, and are relevant to the

2. KAFNEETNERBMBREEL
(4&)

£ 8130 4892 4R LA T 2 B A6 1B R A
S E B E MR SIEIER - EERR
2

operations of the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7
(Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations?®

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes*
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?®

HKFRSs (&£ 1E) EEMEREERZ
g

HKAS 1 (&1&35T) F % IREK 2512

HKAS 23 (£&185]) BB A2

HKAS 27 (&185]) A RIBY BB HRRKS

HKFRS 2 (&1{&1F)

) DG EORES RN 6

HKFRS 3 (£&83]) XA 01

HKFRS 7 (#&&1E) % T B FE 2 k2
HKFRS 8 $RE IR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9% WIEHTET A

HKAS 39 (&{&£1E)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

B B8
AEA AS RIS
g

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

o & w0 N

The Directors anticipate that the application of these new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the financial statements include
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled
entities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition and up to

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Allintra-group transactions, balances,

and expenses within the Group are eliminated on

consolidation.

(c) Intangible assets

()  Exchange participation rights and club membership

They comprise:

- the eligibility right to trade through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and other Exchanges;

and

- the eligibility right to use the facilities of various

clubs.

The exchange participation rights are considered by
the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because they are expected to contribute
net cash flows indefinitely. The management also
considers that the club membership does not have
a finite useful life. They are both carried at cost less
any impairment losses and are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their recoverable amount with
their carrying amount. Useful lives are also examined
on an annual basis and adjustments where applicable

are made on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

106

(c)

Intangible assets (continued)

(if)

(i)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives (three to five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with
the production of identifiable and unique software
controlled by the Group, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct
costs include software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised
as assets are amortised from the dates when
the software becomes available for use using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
(not exceeding ten years).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair value can be measured reliably. Such
intangible assets are measured at their fair value at
the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible
assets with indefinite lives are carried at cost less
any impairment losses and are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their recoverable amount with
their carrying amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited  Annual Report 2008
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both. Investment properties are initially measured at
cost including all transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition they are stated at fair value based on an
independent professional valuation at each balance sheet
date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising from the
revaluation of investment properties is credited or charged
to the income statement in the year in which it arises.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leasehold interests in land

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and
land use rights are amortised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement.

Property and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly properties held by the Group
for its own use. All property and equipment are stated at
cost, less subsequent depreciation and impairment. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over
its estimated useful life as follows:
Buildings — over the remaining term of
the lease term of land
Furniture and equipment - 10% to 33% per annum
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying
amount and are included in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

108

(CONTINUED)

(g) Interest in subsidiaries

A subsidiary (including special purpose entities) is an
entity over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanied by
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. On acquisition, the assets and liabilities
and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at
their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilities
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficit of the cost
of acquisition below the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net assets and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary
acquired is credited to the consolidated income statement
in the period of acquisition.

When a subsidiary is acquired through more than one
exchange transaction, the cost of acquisition is the
aggregate cost of the individual transactions, with the
cost of each individual transaction determined at the date
of each exchange transaction. Each transaction is treated
separately to determine the goodwill on that transaction,
using cost and fair value information at the date of each
exchange transaction.

The interest of minority equity holders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the fair
value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less impairment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received or receivable.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Interest in associates

An associate is a company not being a subsidiary or a
joint venture, in which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Interest in associates is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and is

initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. In the consolidated
balance sheet, interest in associates comprises the
Group’s share of the net assets plus goodwill (net
of any accumulated impairment losses) identified on

acquisition.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including its
investment cost and other long-term interests, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

When the Group transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interest in associates
is stated at cost less impairment. The results of associates
are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends

received or receivable.

(i) Interest in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and over which none of

the participating parties has unilateral control.

A joint venture arrangement which involves the
establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer
has an interest is referred to as a jointly controlled

entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

110

(i)

1)

Interest in joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s interest in its jointly controlled entities is
accounted for by the equity method, whereby its interest in
the jointly controlled entities is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the
Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of the jointly
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income
statement. In the consolidated balance sheet, interest in
jointly controlled entities comprises the Group’s share
of the net assets plus goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment losses) identified on acquisition.

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled
entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entities.

Investments/financial assets
(i)  Classification

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”

This category has two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss at inception. A financial
asset is classified in the held for trading category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short-term. All derivative financial assets are
also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

“Available-for-sale investments”

This category comprises financial assets, which are
non-derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. They include both listed and
unlisted investments which are stated at fair value,
except for those equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured when they are
measured at cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)]

Investments/financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Classification (continued)
“Loans and receivables”

This category includes trade receivables, bank
balances, secured margin loans, secured term
loans and loans and advances to consumer finance
customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to clients or
brokers with no intention of trading the receivables.
For those secured margin or term loans, clients
are normally required to provide additional margin
or securities as collateral whenever there are any
shortfalls in their accounts.

Recognition and initial measurement

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade date, which is the date that the Group
enters into a contract to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value with transaction costs
recognised as expenses in the income statement.
Financial assets which are not financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Subsequent measurement

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”

Investments under this category are subsequently
re-measured to fair value at balance sheet date
until the assets are derecognised. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value
are included in the income statement in the period
in which they occur. Upon disposal, the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount is included in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

112

)]

Investments/financial assets (continued)
(iv) Subsequent measurement (continued)

v)

“Available-for-sale investments”

Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of securities investments classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve. When the securities are sold,
the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount, and the accumulated fair value
adjustments in the investment revaluation reserve are
treated as gains or losses on disposal.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition.

“L.oans and Receivables”

Loans and receivables consist of secured margin or
term loans, loans and advances to consumer finance
customers, bank balances and trade receivables.
They are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment losses, if any.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on bid
prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets
without an active market, the Group establishes the
fair value by using valuation techniques including the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other investments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)]

Investments/financial assets (continued)

(vi)

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In
the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the securities below their cost is considered
in determining whether the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
investments, the cumulative loss (measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement) is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity investment are not
reversed through the income statement.

Each receivable that is individually significant is
reviewed for indication of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Loans and receivables that are individually
not significant and are assessed not to be impaired
individually are reviewed at each balance sheet date
on a collective portfolio basis.

Individual impairment allowance applies to securities
margin financing and secured term loans which are
individually significant and have objective evidence of
impairment. In assessing the individual impairment,
management estimates the present value of future
cash flows which are expected to be received, taking
into account the borrower’s financial situation and
the net realisable value of the underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired
asset is assessed on its merits and the impairment
allowance is measured as the difference between the
loan’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

Collective impairment allowances cover credit
losses inherent in portfolios of loans receivable and
other accounts with similar economic and credit
risk characteristics where objective evidence for
individual impaired items cannot be identified. In
assessing the collective impairment, management
makes assumptions both to define the way the
Group assesses inherent losses and to determine the
required input parameters, based on historical loss
experience and current economic conditions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(k)

U]

(m)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised as an
asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised
is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Inventories

Inventories, including medicine, dispensary supplies and
consumables, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, after making due allowance for any
obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined on
the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred in the process of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at fair value. They comprise cash on hand, bank
balances, short-term time deposits and treasury bills.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are generally classified as “financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” and “other
financial liabilities” which are recognised initially at fair
value. At each balance sheet date, subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period
in which they arise. Other financial liabilities including
loans, bank borrowings and overdrafts, bonds, trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in the income statement.

Share capital
Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity.

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, including directly
attributable costs, is recognised in equity. Repurchased
shares that are not subsequently cancelled are classified
as treasury shares and presented as a deduction from
total equity.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders
is recognised as a liability in the period in which the
dividends are properly approved.

Where the shares of the Company (“Awarded Shares”)
are purchased under the SHK Employee Ownership
Scheme, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held for Employee Ownership Scheme” and deducted
from equity. When the Awarded Shares are transferred
to the awardees under vesting, the related costs of the
Awarded Shares are eliminated against the employee
share-based compensation reserve (note 3(v)).

Other equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Derivatives that are settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments are
classified as equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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116

(p)

(a)

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the income
statement net of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at
least annually for impairment and reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets
that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units) if an impairment test cannot be performed for an
individual asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Taxation

Taxation on the profit and loss comprises current and
deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
assets realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities (foreign currencies)
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on
the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are included in net profit or loss for the
period, except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(s)

t)

(u)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated to Hong Kong dollars
at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the
Group’s exchange reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or expenses in the period in
which the operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a time
apportionment basis, taking into account the principal
and the effective interest rates. They are charged to the
income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

“The Group as lessor”

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Leasing (continued)

(v)

“The Group as lessee”

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
consolidated income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
schemes, the assets of which are held in independently
administrated funds. The Group’s contributions to the
defined contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
the employees have rendered their services entitling them
to the contributions and are reduced by contributions
forfeited, if applicable, by those employees who leave the
schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based
on approved formulas that take into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

120

(v)

(w)

Employee benefits (continued)

For shares of the Company (“Awarded Shares”) granted
under the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme, the fair
value of the employee services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of Awarded Shares granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (employee share-based compensation reserve). At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of Awarded Shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related tax. Income
is recognised in the income statement on the following
basis:

()  Commission income is recognised as income on a
trade date basis.

(i) Underwriting commission, sub-underwriting income,
placing commission and sub-placing commission
are recognised as income in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the relevant agreement or
deal mandate when the relevant significant acts have
been completed.

(i) Fees for management and advisory of funds are
recognised when the related services are rendered.
(iv) Income from the provision of services, including
medical services, nursing agencies, physiotherapy
and dental services and elderly care services, is
recognised upon the provision of the relevant services
or on a time apportionment basis over the terms of
service contracts.

(v) Income from the sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(vi) Interest income from financial assets is recognised
on a time apportionment basis, taking into account
the principal amounts outstanding and the effective
interest applicable, which is the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipt through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(vii) Dividend income from investments is recognised

when the equity holders’ right to receive payment

has been established.

(viii) Realised profits or losses from financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss are recognised on

a trade date basis whilst the unrealised profits or

losses are recognised from valuation at the balance

sheet date.

(ix) Profits or losses on trading in foreign currencies
include both realised and unrealised gains less losses
and charges, less premiums arising from position
squaring and valuation at the balance sheet date of
foreign currency positions on hand.

(x)  Rental income arising on investment properties is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
term regardless of when the cash rental payment is
received.

Fixed-fee contracts

At each balance sheet date, tests are performed to ensure
the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the fixed-fee
contracts. In performing these tests, current best estimates
of future contractual cash flows under the fixed-fee
contracts are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged
to the consolidated income statement by establishing a
provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under fixed-fee contracts
are recognised on a time apportionment basis over the
terms of the fixed-fee contracts. Expenses incurred in
connection with the fixed-fee contracts are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.
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122

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are set out as follows.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment allowances on loans and receivables

The Group periodically reviews its loan portfolios to assess
whether impairment allowances exist. In determining
whether impairment allowances should be recorded in
the income statement, management estimates the present
value of future cash flows which are expected to be
received, taking into account the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of the underlying
collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.

Impairment allowances on loans and
advances to consumer finance customers

The policy for impairment allowances for loans and
advances to consumer finance customers of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these loans and advances,
including the current creditworthiness, and the past
collection history of each loan.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

For listed available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is
required when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant or prolonged. In making this
judgement, the historical data on market volatility as well
as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account.

For those unlisted equity investments that are carried at
fair value, the Group determines their fair values by using
appropriate valuation techniques and making assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. The Group also takes into account
other factors, such as industry and sector performance
and financial information regarding the investee.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(d) Estimated impairment of goodwill and

(e)

(f)

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether the goodwill and the intangible
assets are impaired requires an estimation of the fair
value less cost to sell or value in use on the basis of data
available to the Group. Where future cash flows are less
than expected, an impairment loss may arise.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for deferred tax assets arising from
tax losses requires a process that involves determining
appropriate provisions for taxation, forecasting future
years’ taxable income and assessing the Group’s ability
to utilise tax benefits through future earnings. Where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
reversal of the deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in the income statement for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. The Group’s deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses are mainly from a
subsidiary engaging in proprietary trading activities. While
the current financial models indicate that the tax losses
can be utilised in the future, any changes in assumptions,
estimates and tax regulations can affect the recoverability
of this deferred tax asset.

Fair value of derivative and financial
instruments

As included in notes 25, 30 and 35, the Group selects
appropriate valuation techniques for financial instruments
not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied (note
55).

The Group’s unlisted equity instruments with a carrying
amount of HK$42.0 million (2007: HK$78.9 million) are
valued using generally accepted pricing models based on
assumptions supported by observable market data.

For the valuation of unlisted derivative financial
instruments, appropriate assumptions are used based
on quoted market data to adjust for specific features of
the instrument. The carrying amounts of these derivative
financial assets and liabilities are HK$3.1 million (2007:
HK$297.6 million) and HK$20.7 million (2007: HK$24.9
million) respectively.

4.

EFTREENEZRR (&)
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REVENUE 5. =&

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivables WmApB W ERMELRAMAE - H
for brokerage and commission, interest, dividends, rental B RE - HEERBFKE  UETIEM
and service income, and the following stated net of losses: BREENKZ  BEFLRECEERE - &
profit from trading in securities and funds, income from bullion S EE W REEAIMEE N Z5E -

transactions and differences on leveraged foreign exchange
transactions.

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEET
Medical services, nursing agencies, physiotherapy Z2&E RS - EIBN4AFT - WIE
and dental services, and elderly care services SRR~ FRRIE M EERG 518.6 947.7
Brokerage, commission and service income Lo Ae - HivHe MR 830.8 1,430.0
Dividends from listed investments EHRERE 41.1 24.3
Dividends from unlisted investments EETRERE 3.7 6.8
Gross rental income from investment properties HIEEMEMSEHES 5.6 5.1
Interest income B A 1,694.1 1,762.3
Fees received from funds management ERESHERE 108.3 137.3
Net charge on gold and leveraged foreign 2 MERINEZ FIFR
exchange positions 5B B F%E 5.0 13.3
Net (loss) profit from financial assets W BEER (BE) S FHE
- Held for trading investments —FEEBERE (292.4) 235.2
— Equity securities in unlisted investment funds —JELTIREESHRESE S (129.4) 68.7
2,785.4 4,630.7
All interest income is derived from financial assets that are not FrE A B AKRE IR A FEFABEZIY
carried at fair value through profit or loss. BB -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating businesses are organised and managed
separately according to the nature of the products and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Business segments have been used as a primary reporting
format and no geographical segment analysis is presented
as most of the Group’s major business activities, results and
assets are conducted in and are relevant to Hong Kong.

The main business segments presented in these financial
statements are as follows:

(@) Wealth management, brokerage and margin finance:

- provision of financial planning and wealth management
services;

- provision of broking services and insurance
broking;

- provision of online financial services and online
financial information;

- provision of securities margin financing; and

- dealing in securities, funds, leveraged forex, bullion,
commodities, futures and options.

(b) Corporate finance: provision of corporate finance services
and structured finance.

(c) Asset management: provision of asset management
including funds marketing and management.

(d) Consumer finance: provision of consumer financing.

(e) Principal investments — Healthcare: provision of healthcare
services.

(f)  Principal investments — Others: strategic investments and
properties holding and rental.

2EEHR

BEXREREAEM AR R ERE LD M
DHAENER  EoBEAKREHRTRE®
KRR M SR EHREEL - DIEHEE
EREMGEBKE -

EBOERERTIEERA  AREET
EEKLY  RERBEABOEETBLE
WHELBGRH HAEETELEH IR DA
DHT e

S EAMBRENEELBHAMT
(@) MEEE - EERBFNK
—  RUIHHEEREEERY
— REEERT RIRR A
- RUBLIERBERELYME
CEE
— REBERKG R
~ EBEE% Eb EERE-E
& EE - HEREE -

) CERME: BRUHLCERERBLERE
BME -

(c) BEEE RUSETERBEEESD
HERER -

(d) FLARTS : REHERAAMBEE -

) T2RE-BERE: BRHERRRE
AR

() TERE - Hft: RELHRE  PER
BREE -

FIREBMRAT F3R 2008 125



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

126

6. DIEEHR (&)

2008
Wealth
management,
brokerage Principal Principal
and margin investments  investments
finance Corporate Asset Consumer - Healthcare - Others
_ HEER. finance ~management finance TERE TERE Total
BRERBFNF SERE EEE FIYNE: - BARE - Bt a3
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERL BEATL BEARL BEERL BEER BEET BEERL
Revenue fed
~ Net (loss) profit from - REFKEEN
financial assets (Bi8) e %8 (437.1) 15.3 - - - - (421.8)
- Other revenue - Efihs 995.8 153.9 183.6 1,353.3 521.3 626.6 3,834.5
Less: inter-segment revenue B HBERNE (30.5) (16.1) (0.8) - - (579.9) (627.3)
528.2 153.1 182.8 1,353.3 521.3 46.7 2,785.4
Segment results DNEEE (388.2) 423 91.2 245.1 189.4* 476 597.4
Impairment loss on available-for-sale "Mﬁu“ﬁ}x BHRE
investments BB - - - - - (82.4) (82.4)
Loss on fair value change — ki Hﬁ%‘a"\ ARk
of warrants of EEN JHE
alisted associate 28EE = - - - - (284.1) (284.1)
(388.2) 423 91.2 245.1 189.4 51.1 230.9
Share of results of associates i =N 302.1
Profit before taxation BB A R 533.0
Segment assets PEEE 5,067.8 843.2 165.4 8,664.3 - 752.7 15,493.4
Interest in associates YN 3,713.7
Amounts due from associates BEQARE 62.9
Interest in jointly controlled entities LRSI D AER 16.8
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 122.3
Taxation recoverable fEsFE 29.1
Total assets wEE 19,438.2
Segment liabilties AEEE (1,265.8) (11.9) (126) (4,473.0) - (315.7) (6,079.0)
Amounts due to associates Eﬂ 2NAEER (8.1)
Taxation payable HWE (63.7)
Deferred tex liabilities FEHEEE (260.1)
Total liabilities ZaE (6,410.9)
Reversal of impairment loss AEEERE
- Loans and advances to consumer ~ — XL/\WT BEPEIR
finance customers 73 - - - 0.3 - - 0.3
- Loans and receivables -& M&Fuﬁzﬁf - - - - - 1.4 1.4
- Trade and other receivables — B R AR 8.1 4.6 - - - - 12.7
Capital expenditure BAXH - - - 12.7 7.1 149.5 169.9
Amortisation and depreciation BERINE (0.3 - - (205.5) (17.0) (33.0) (255.8)
Impairment loss HEBE
- Loans and advances to consumer ~ — fMﬁﬁ BEFEFR
finance customers }m - - - (363.1) - - (363.1)
- Loans and receivables - BERREYEE (25.7) - - - - - (25.7)
- Trade and other receivables - BB TR (46.0) (62.2) - (6.4) (2.0) - (116.6)
- Intangible assets - ﬂﬂ, BE - - - (69.0) - - (69.0)
- Avallable-for-sale investments —AHLERE = = = = S (82.4) (82.4)
Loss on disposal of property and HENERREN
equipment B - - - = = (0.7) (0.7)

*

interest in Quality HealthCare Asia Limited (note 11).
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DIBEER (@)

2007
Wealth
management, Principal Principal
brokerage and investments investments
margin finance Corporate Asset Consumer - Healthcare - Others
DR finance managemen finance IEHE IERE Total
BERESH P5RE BEER AR - BERE - R 3t

HKS Milion HKS Milion HKS Milion HKS Milon HKS Milon HKS Millon HKS Milion
AERET BEET BERT AERT AERT AERET AERET

Revenue g3
- Net profit from financial assets - RABBEENNREE 3036 - - 03 - - 303.9
- Other revenue - ﬁﬁqﬁlm 1,831.6 2119 213 1,124.6 957.4 7574 5,110.2
Less: inter-segment revenue B SEmkE (49.9) (25.5) (10 - - (707.0) (783.4)
2,085.3 186.4 226.3 1,124.9 9574 504 4,630.7
Segment results "IE%F 699.0 918 116 978 50.1 703.8 1,754.1
Net gain on deemed disposal of RIELE- LTREATN
a listed associate WEFE - - - - - 1410 1410
Impairment loss on available-for-sale N HERBNRE
investments BE - - - - - (2.0) 20)
Gain on fair value change of warrants of *J;mﬂ”%a AAREEN
a listed associate NTEEHNE - - - - - 36.1 36.1
699.0 91.8 1116 97.8 50.1 878.9 1,929.2
Share of results ilE
- Associates Hﬁ%ﬂ ] 263.8
- Jointly controlled enttes KREHAT 08
Profit before taxation Eyayayil 21938
Segment assets AEEE 6,546.5 699.2 154.6 8,079.2 884.4 2,073.0 18,436.9
Interest in associates BEDAES 3171.2
Amounts due from associates BEDNAIRE 1876
Interest in jointly controlled entities HREHARES 15
Deferred tax assets ﬂﬁﬂlﬁéﬁ 66.3
Taxation recoverable iR 32
Total assets BEE 218167
Segment iatiites SEEE 00225 (440) (169 45072 (1305 (5574 1.2785)
Amounts due to associates SENTER 7.9)
Taation payable TR (1289
Deferred tax liabilties ELRERE (378.4)
Total liablties 48k (7,793.9)
Reversal of impaiment loss RHESERR
- Interest in associates -BaniEs - - - - - 2.9 269
- Loans and advances to consumer - 'f(b/\@ﬁ%%/ﬁ?m&
finance customers - - - 02 - - 02
- Trade and other receivables - i“‘M&HWWF 1256 87 - - - - 213
Capital expenditure BRZH (08 - - 9.1 (21.2) (114.6) (145.7)
Amortisation and depreciation BRERAE (2.9 - - (238.3) (32.9) (21.2) (294.7)
Impairment loss HEER
- Loans and advances to consumer - 'f(b/\@ﬁ%%/ﬁ?m&
finance customers - - - (285.7) - - (285.7)
- Trade and other receivables - i‘«%&ﬁmwﬁ% (30.4) - - - (1.9) - (312
- Intangible assets -EWE - - - (84.0) - - (84.0)
- Avalable-for-sale investments - TME& i - - - - - (2.0 (2.0
Profit (loss) on disposal of property and HENE R EET
equipment (&) - - - - 03 (5.1) (48
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7.

128

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EMPLOYEES

7. EEREABEMNE

(a) Directors (a) E=
2008
Salaries,
housing
and other
allowances Contributions
and to
benefits retirement
in kind benefit
Director's Consultancy ¥¢:EER scheme
fees fees  HftiRE - Bonuses BHREAN Total
EShe RRg BNFE 4 HEEE ag
HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT AEET BEAT AEET BEART BEAT
Abdulhakeem Abdulhakeem
Abdulhussain Al Abdulhussain Ali
Kamkar Kamkar 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Amin Rafie Bin Amin Rafie Bin
Othman Othman 0.01 - - - - 0.01
David Craig Bartlett /= 0.01 0.15 - - = 0.16
Alan Stephen Alan Stephen
Jones Jones 0.01 0.20 - - - 0.21
Lee Seng Huang A2 0.01 - 5.23 1.50 0.09 6.83
Patrick Lee Seng
Wei TR (R 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Carlisle Caldow Carlisle Caldow
Procter Procter 0.01 0.15 - - - 0.16
Joseph Tong Tang % 0.02* - 1.84 1.30 0.09 3.25
Peter Wong Man
Kong T&H 0.01 0.15 - - = 0.16
0.10 0.65 7.07 2.80 0.18 10.80

Including Director’s fee of HK$0.01 million for Sun Hung Kai
Securities Limited (2007: HK$0.01 million).
The amount represents an actual cash bonus of HK$1 million for
the year 2008 and cash equivalent of HK$0.3 million awarded
in shares of the Company under the SHK Employee Ownership
Scheme in respect of 2008 (2007: cash bonus of HK$2 million
and cash equivalent of HK$1 million awarded in shares of the
Company under the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme).
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7. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

7. EEREABENE @)

(a) Directors (continued) (a) E= (&)
2007
Salaries,
housing
and other
allowances Contributions
and benefits to retirement
in kind benefit
Director's  Consultancy %% EER scheme
fees fees Hevzah Bonuses RINEF Total
ek BHE Enila bz HE e FoE
HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATL BEBTL BEATL BEAT BEBT BEATL
Abdulhakeem Abdulhakeem
Abdulhussain Ali Abdulhussain Ali
Kamkar Kamkar - - - - - -
Amin Rafie Bin Amin Rafie Bin
Othman Othman - - - - - -
David Craig Bartlett ~ Hi2% 0.01 0.15 - - - 0.16
Alan Stephen Alan Stephen
Jones Jones 0.01 0.20 - - - 0.21
Lee Seng Huang ZRiE 0.01 - 5.35 20.00 0.09 25.45
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (& 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Carlisle Caldow Carlisle Caldow
Procter Procter 0.09 0.15 - - - 0.24
Joseph Tong Tang EE 0.02 - 1.94 3.00 0.09 5.06
Peter Wong Man Kong T &l 0.01 0.15 - - - 0.16
0.16 0.65 7.29 23.00 0.18 31.28
Senior employees (b) SHBE

(b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
one Director (2007: one Director) of the Company. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2007: four) senior

EERNANESMEALTBE—ZAR
BIEE (2007F : —ZEF) T
% (2007 : &) e B EM S D

employees are analysed below: ORI
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT BEBT

Salaries, housing and other allowances, e BERHEAMEL -

and benefits in kind EYF = 5.8 4.8
Bonuses TE4L 26.7 18.5
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R {RIEFIEHEIH 2 0.4 0.3
Incentive/commission BESS HBe 6.3 37.3
39.2 60.9
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7. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Senior employees (continued)
Emoluments of the senior employees were within the
following bands:

Emoluments band (HK$)
Menm (BE)

7. EEREABENE @)

(b)

BRBE (&)
SEBEMESTNT

Number of employees

BEAH

2008 2007

$6,500,001 — $7,000,000
$9,500,001 — $10,000,000
$10,500,001 - $11,000,000
$11,000,001 - $11,500,000
$11,500,001 - $12,000,000
$12,500,001 - $13,000,000
$17,500,001 - $18,000,000
$19,500,001 - $20,000,000

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

130

(a)

(b)

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group operates defined contribution schemes for the
Hong Kong and overseas offices’ qualifying employees and
a defined benefit scheme for its subsidiary’s employees
in the Philippines.

The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in the course
of the year ended 31 December 2008 was HK$1.2 million
(2007: HK$1.4 million). The contributions to the defined
benefit scheme in the Philippines were immaterial.

SHK Employee Ownership Scheme (“EOS”)

The EOS was formally adopted on 18 December 2007
and was established to help attract, recognise and retain
talent. Under the EOS, selected employees or Directors
of the Group (the “Selected Grantees”) are to be awarded
shares of the Company which have been purchased by
the appointed scheme trustee. Upon the management’s
recommendation, the number of shares awarded to the
Selected Grantees (other than a Director of the Company)
shall be determined, with the vesting dates for various
tranches, by a committee (comprising four members of the
Group’s senior management) delegated with the necessary
authority by the Board. Any EOS award to a Selected
Grantee who is a Director of the Company shall be subject
to the Board’s approval following a recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee of the Board.
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(b) SHK Employee Ownership Scheme (“EOS”)
(continued)

On 15 April 2008 and 30 September 2008, 3.4 million
shares and 0.6 million shares of the Company were
awarded to Selected Grantees under the EOS. The fair
value of the services rendered as consideration of the
awarded shares was measured by reference to the fair
value of the awarded shares at the award dates of
HK$22.2 million (after deducting the present value of
expected dividends to be received during the vesting

8. EE®EA (@)
(b) iIBEERERDEFTE (EER

@8l (&)

72008 84 A15H K&200849 A30H - &t
EERMEME FTEEEARAZAR
A B AB3.4A B R0.6E B -
ERRERBRENETROATESR
22HER T BRBBRETROAET
AeRAFEmMTE (ENBRREBHEA
TEHAER MR BIRE) - Z A TFEBRE
BHARGAWHEERRER  RAFRAL

period) which would be recognised to the consolidated

income statement over the vesting period. The amount
expensed during the year was HK$9.7 million (2007: nil).

HZHAEITAEESTT (2oo7¢ DEE) o

FINANCE COSTS 9. BERAK
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEET
Interest on: MER :
- Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable —RAEFAREHEENIRITER
within five years MiEX 89.6 316.9
— Bank loans not wholly repayable within — ERAFAEIEEMIRIT
five years B 1.6 2.7
— Loan notes wholly repayable within five years — RAERNDIEEHNERZRE 1.0 2.8
- Bonds wholly repayable within five years —RAEFAZIEENES 58.5 152.5
— Short-term loans included in amounts due to ~ — BIEER ZMB AT EERERNL
fellow subsidiaries REHER 44.1 35.8
— Other borrowings wholly repayable within —RAFAZIEEHEM
five years B 6.3 1.0
Additional interest expense on loan notes using EREBEUERFEEMELR
the effective interest rate method (note 36) gRIMN 2 (FI5ES6) 0.4 2.6
Other borrowing costs HEMEERA 9.0 20.7
210.5 535.0
All interest expenses for the year are derived from financial AEEMEMNBERKREIIFZAFETFAE

liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or

loss.

SR RILE
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10.

11.

132

(LOSS) GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGE OF
WARRANTS OF A LISTED ASSOCIATE

In December 2007, a listed associate of the Group issued new
shares by way of open offer to the qualifying shareholders on the
basis of one new share for every five shares held, together with
new warrants of the listed associate in the proportion of one
new warrant for every one new share successfully subscribed.
The Group subscribed its proportion of the new shares and
procured the new warrants. The warrants were recognised by
the Group as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” at their initial carrying amount representing their fair value
at the date of acquisition.

The fair value of the warrants at 31 December 2008, based
on the quoted bid price, dropped when compared to the fair
value at 1 January 2008. The Group incurred an unrealised
loss of HK$284.1 million (2007: HK$36.1 million profit which
was classified under revenue in the previous year and has
been disclosed separately on the face of the consolidated
income statement for 2008) arising from the fair value change.
However, the listed associate recorded a profit in the current
year relating to the same changes in fair value of the warrants
and the Group shared this profit from the associate, which is
approximately the same as the loss incurred.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 26 June 2008, the Group completed the disposal of a group
of subsidiaries engaged in the Group’s healthcare operation.
The profit for the year from the disposal group is analysed as
follows:

10.

11.

—ITHEARARREZENAFE
25 (F8) Wa
M20074128 MR EMBLERAFRNE
BE AR TER R — AR 2 LR
ABBRRAMBEHG - RN ERNRE
SRIBNEITU ETHER DO —HHR
ARAEEE o o (B3 5 L Lt 1) 0 97 AR 1) 30 15 37
RIHERE - S ERERRAEG (WBARZ
AVE) BRZ SRR S B BRERE
RPEDIROEBEE] -

ZERBREFZR2008F 12 A1 HIRBEEMH
BEABZAFER2008F1HE1BZAFEE
K EEAKAFEZESHIBERLIEE
284 1HE B T (20074 : 36.1 A BB T H
o AEFRBERIZET © BR2008F 4R
AUWEEERRIBIIEE) o A b ETEB AR
ARAZERBREEFEAFHERZATFEEZS)
mEF E@EAe > EEMNE EHERE
RalEz 518 -

HENE LA

MR2008F6H26H r EEEREE —HNE
CSEEEREEBONBAR  #HZHEE
BB ZAFERFoTOT

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BHEBIT
Profit of the disposal group for the year HEEEN A REF 25.6 45.4

Profit on the sale of the disposal group included BIE7E E I AAHE HE
in other income e byl 163.4 -
189.0 45.4

Profit attributable to: FEMRE R -

— Equity holders of the Company — RRABRRE 176.5 23.0
- Minority interests — LEREER 12.5 22.4
189.0 45.4
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11. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 11. HEWB AR (&)

The results of the disposal group for the period from 1 January
2008 to 26 June 2008, which have been included in the
consolidated income statement, were as follows:

200841 A 1H £ £2008%6 A26H It » &
REGREBEEANEERBERENT

For For year

period ended ended

26/6/2008 31/12/2007

BZE H=E

26/6/2008 31/12/2007

| FE

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BHEBIT

Revenue g 521.3 957.4

Other income EHablg A 5.0 12.2

Cost of sales $HERA (26.7) (44.9)

Brokerage and commission expenses R RBEEER (0.1) (0.2)

Direct cost and operating expenses HEKAREEER (218.3) (403.9)

Administrative expenses EIEBH (253.1) (469.4)

Other expenses HEtER (2.0) (1.1)

Profit before taxation R R VA 26.1 50.1
Taxation TIE

— Current tax — EHIFEE (5.5) (8.4)

- Deferred tax — RIEFR IR 5.0 3.7

Profit for the period AN ERE T 25.6 45.4

During the year, the disposal group contributed HK$36.5 million
(2007: HK$72.4 million) to the Group’s net operating cash
flows, paid HK$7.1 million (2007: HK$15.1 million) in respect of
investing activities and paid HK$22.9 million (2007: contributed
HK$38.6 million) in respect of financing activities.

RAFR HEEERENEBEKLER
&% %8 A36.58 BB T (2007F 1 7245 &
BIT) IR EES 7T AR EE T (20074 ¢
151EEEIL) @B G298 8E T

(20074 : 1RHt38.6EBEBIT) °
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11. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 11. HEM

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were ZEM B HEBRFEEDT ¢
as follows:
HK$ Million
BEBIT
Net assets disposed of HERNFEE
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERBEEFEY 222.5
- Equipment — & fE 41.4
- Intangible assets —BVAE 317.4
— Interest in jointly controlled entities — HEE SN B 0.5
- Inventories —-FE 13.7
— Trade and other receivables — 1 R H A R R 147.9
- Trade and other payables — i R H AR AR (131.6)
— Taxation payable — FERTRIA (5.2)
— Deferred tax liabilities —RERIEEE (63.1)
553.5
Minority interests DHRR R S (270.9)
283.2
Attributable goodwill FrB 120.8
Release of reserve arising from step acquisitions  #[E1% 5 R U b8 3| B > (245 (97.4)
306.6
Profit on disposal & & 163.4
Total consideration (including the assignment of AR /(E (BIEEEE T %E
a loan advanced to the subsidiaries and after MBARIZER K
deducting expenses) EHRER) 470.0
Total consideration settled by: BREMZM
— Cash — g 470.1
— Accrued expenses —ENEA (0.1)
470.0
Net cash inflow arising on disposal REEMIIEMRESRAFRE
— Cash consideration —BeRE 470.1
- Cash and cash equivalent disposed of —HENBESNRSEEY (222.5)
247.6
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12.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRFLANE R
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
Profit before taxation for the year has been  2FEEBRFADEFN DA (FIB) :
arrived at after crediting (charging):
Net profit (loss) on held for trading BREEWNENNFIEEZRE BN
investments included in revenue (E18) 5
— Net realised and unrealised profit —PTETEERBRRRER
on derivatives i ) JF R 136.2 119.0
— Net profit on dealing in leveraged —ERAIINEER
foreign currencies A FEE 4.0 8.5
— Net profit on other dealing activities —HtWEBEEERFFE 11.8 12.4
- Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit —EREFHFERRERER
on trading in equity securities (E518) & F) /558 (444.4) 95.3
Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit BIETREANIELTREES
on unlisted investment funds included BRI RARALE (E8)
in revenue i FFEEE (129.4) 68.7
Net realised profit on disposal included BREAEMBANE KR
in other income & F
- Disposal of an investment property —HE—FIREME - 11.9
- Disposal of subsidiaries — HEKBAF 163.4 49.6
- Disposal of associates — HEBE AR = 9.6
- Disposal of available-for-sale investments  — HEMJHHERE 347.7 598.2
Net gain on deemed disposal RIELE Ll A A
of listed associates W 2572 5A - 141.0
Discount on acquisition of additional interest B 3ETEFT(LEE L AR EE AL
in an associate included in share of results 2B A7)
of associates eI 34.0 0.2
Reversal of impairment loss included BFEEH MU A R E R E
in other income Esia e
— Interest in associates — e RS = 26.9
- Loans and advances to consumer —FLABEFPER K
finance customers R 0.3 0.2
- Loans and receivables — BER R ERER 1.4 -
— Trade and other receivables — 18 N H At EURBR 12.7 21.3
Increase in fair value of investment properties BIE#E Hith ik A B3R E W2
included in other income NIELE - 9.9
Net exchange gain P H I aF 5 - 12.3
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A & (6.3) (6.7)
Amortisation of leasehold interests in land HEFE i AERs (3.2) (2.9)
Depreciation of property and equipment M N ERETE (40.2) (39.4)
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEREE
— Computer software (included — BB (REEERE
in administrative expenses) ERHA) (8.1) (5.3)
- Other intangible assets (included in direct — HiWEBFZEE (BIEEEERAR
cost and operating expenses) KEBRANA) (204.3) (247.5)
Commission expenses and sales incentives ZEFEFFERIHEIHNMELERR
to account executives and certain staff BEES (194.1) (364.6)

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R /RiEFI5H & ¢t 2 (24.9) (25.7)
Expenses recognised for SHK Employee TETEEEBIRMDERTEIFTHER

Ownership Scheme # % F (9.7) -
Net loss on disposal of property and HEME NRE
equipment BB (0.7) (4.8)

FSEBRANF 3, 2008 135



12.

13.

136

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 12. BRBIAGEF (42)
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Operating lease rentals ZEHERS
— Premises — EihE (128.0) (140.3)
- Others — HAl (9.6) (0.4)
Outgoings in respect of investment properties & &M¥EL i
— Non-rental generating properties — ERBEEYE (0.1) (0.1)
- Rental generating properties — RIS E (0.7) 0.7)
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments {& & FX A ( %1‘%%%%& BTEE
but excluding contributions to retirement RINERGHE R e R
benefit schemes and expenses recognised EEBROBEEETE
for SHK Employee Ownership Scheme) PREEREVER) (570.0) (811.8)
Other expenses (see note below) HiBER (RATHEE) (654.6) (401.0)
Share of profit from discontinued operations  Fff{t — & L i B & X Rl
of a listed associate B AR || 755 A = 571
Share of taxation of associates FT b B & A R B T8 (3.4) (89.2)
Note: Analysis of other expenses: Mizt - BB 2 94T
Impairment loss VERIEN g
- Intangible assets - B EE (69.0) (84.0)
- Loans and advances to consumer —MAMBEFPER R
finance customers 2]; (363.1) (285.7)
- Loans and receivables AG*”&JEHSZEE (25.7)
— Trade and other receivables — G P HA AR (116.6) (31.2)
Decrease in fair value of SEME
investment properties NEERD (1.7) -
Net exchange loss EREE?‘E/?%E (39.3) -
Provision for Lehman Brothers EE N PRIFES
Minibonds {5 (34.4) -
Others Hth (4.8) (0.1)
(654.6) (401.0)
TAXATION 13. BiE
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Millio_n
BEET BEET
Current tax B IR
- Hong Kong —&BE 161.0 246.7
— Other jurisdictions — Hth RIE M= 2.6 2.6
163.6 249.3
Under (over) provision in prior years RUEREE 2 (EBRR)
- Hong Kong — & 3.1 0.5
— Other jurisdictions — Hih RIEM[E - 0.1)
166.7 249.7
Deferred tax (note 41) LL%RIE (PFf5E41)
— Current year (104.3) (77.8)
— Under provision in prior years — Al Hﬂ%ﬂ%?ﬁ = 1.0
- Change of tax rate — iR (17.2) -
(121.5) (76.8)
45.2 172.9
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13.

14,

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in the relevant jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

13. BIE (%)

EBREGF TR BB A F FE 51 IR B s Fl 4%
T E16.5% (20074 : 17.5%) 1R HER - H
EE B AT AIRBAFEE G ER
ﬁ?@;%%ﬁ&%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁmﬁ
IREE -

ZEE_I*F:FS‘%EEEIEE@EE\WEEEEP B 0 A& A 3 BR
0 :

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Profit before taxation R 5 A& A 533.0 2,193.8
Less: Share of results of associates B PTIEEE N R (302.1) (263.8)
Share of results of jointly Fr i F R 2 5
controlled entities NGIES - (0.8)
230.9 1,929.2
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate BEBRIE16.5% (20074 : 17.5%)
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) HFi TR 38.1 337.6
Under provision in prior years ATEARE T 2 3.1 1.4
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERRVBMARTIBR 2 (82.1) (205.8)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR IR HRA TR IR 7 & 58.8 55.5
Utilisation/recognition of tax losses £/ HERAEILR
not previously recognised R IE 44.1 (156.7)
Effect on change in tax rate BEEnTE (17.2) -
ltems/countries subject to different tax rates TR EMIEE /BR 0.4 0.1
45.2 172.9
DIVIDENDS 14. K2
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
The aggregate amount of dividends FERPYE YN
paid and proposed:
— Interim dividend paid of HK5 cents — B ER B FRRIRS AL
(2007: HK10 cents) per share (20074 : BARIR1074(L) 85.5 150.4
— Final dividend of HK5 cents —REEREBIRRARE
(2007: HK25 cents) per share proposed FRRSEL (20074 -
after the balance sheet date R 2573(1L) 85.6 420.0
171.1 570.4

A final dividend of HK5 cents (2007: HK25 cents) per share has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2008 has been calculated with reference to the number of
shares in issue at 2 April 2009 less the unvested shares held
for the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme.

E=CEBIRERBREEREE (20074F :
FROK2578ML) - HEARBRRNEIEETHR
RBFARE EHE -

H E2008F12 A1 HFE MR REIRE TY
1%Z2009F 4 A2H M B 31T D 2 E kR 3T
%ﬁ%ﬁ%g%ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁs’ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
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15.

16.

138

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

15. BREF
AR EREEN 2 GREAREBERF TR

attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on THEE -
the following:
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBIT
Earnings BF
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings ~ BAUGTESRERET &
per share and diluted earnings per share SREERTN 2 &8A
(profit for the year attributable to equity (DB FEE 2
holders of the Company) FEHF) 346.5 1,897.6
Million Shares Million Shares
AER EE
Number of shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A E GREAZ T
for the purpose of basic earnings per share &% iNHE T 19 IR &L
(after deducting shares held for the SHK (BHBRIEEREERND
Employee Ownership Scheme) BT EImFE R RD 1,697.1 1,522.4
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BES T RRMNEE
- Warrants — R - 84.0
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 8 IAEHE & M #HE 2 &)
for the purpose of diluted earnings 3 A% hoeE
per share T A 2 1,697.1 1,606.4
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REW*
Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
Fair value A¥EE
At 1 January ®1A1H 58.9 92.6
Exchange adjustments [E (0.1) -
Addition A 72.6 -
Disposal ak= = (43.6)
(Decrease) increase in fair value recognised R éra WS EEZHN A T(E
in the consolidated income statement Cm) 8 (1.7) 9.9
At 31 December ®12A31H 129.7 58.9
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

17.

(@) The investment properties were valued on 31 December
2008 by Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, not connected with the
Group. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
Particulars of the investment properties at 31 December

16. REW=E &)

() HEMERHEEEERENBIAER
HEGHEMEIEEIEERQA B
2008¢12ﬂ315nﬁa ZAIMELAEEEY
ERXSERNTHREEAZE - KE
YIER2008F 12 A31B 2 ERINT ¢

2008 were:
Location Classification Term of lease Interest
o1k AL =
11/F, Tian An Centre, No. 338 Nanjing Road West, Commercial 2044 100%
Huanﬁpu District, Shanghai, the PRC A
SR R P83 AR L AE 1118
Eastern Block, 2001-2003, 2005, Western Block Commercial 2052 100%
2001-2008, 20/F, Tian An Cyber Park, Futian District, &
Shenzhen, the PRC . \
BRI T 48 H [ 7R3 K 22 B3 2018 ] 3 2001-2003 F -
2005% ' FAE2001-2003%F
(b) At the balance sheet date, an investment property with a b) MEZER KW TFRITEASEE KRR
B SRR an BV 1R B 1) 25 AR T B /863.0

carrying value of HK$63.0 million (2007: HK$58.9 million)
was pledged as security for the Group’s long-term bank
loans.

() The investment properties are medium-term lease
properties outside Hong Kong.

LEASEHOLD INTERESTS IN LAND

17
BEBIT (20074 : 58.9BBETT) °

() WEWME/TEBINNTHEEYE -

17. HE T bR

Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET

The Group’s leasehold interests in land comprise: £EMHEE + iz 1E

Leasehold land in Hong Kong EREBHNHEE L

- Medium-term lease — hHRE 123.9 126.8

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong EEBLINNFRE i

- Medium-term lease — RS 13.4 8.2

— Short-term lease — RHEE 0.5 0.6
137.8 135.6

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BWmEBATER DT

Non-current asset EMEBEE 134.6 132.5

Current asset (note 29) mENEE (Mi3E29) 3.2 3.1
137.8 135.6

At 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of leasehold MR2008F 128318 @ BE114.8B8E T

interests in land pledged as security for the Group’s long-term (2007¢ 11748835 T) FEEMNHEEL

bank loans amounted to HK$114.8 million (2007: HK$117.4 WEREERFRITEAEERARITER

million).

M
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18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

140

18. MERRE

Group
£8
Furniture and
Buildings equipment Total
gF ERRZE PR
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATL BEAT BEBT
Cost R{E
At 1 January 2007 20071 H1H 36.5 196.3 232.8
Exchange adjustments BEE W A - 0.1 0.1
Additions 1R 10.5 62.8 73.3
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARER - (8.1) (8.1)
Disposals k=S - (47.8) (47.6)
At 31 December 2007 H2007F12A31H 47.0 2083.5 250.5
Exchange adjustments PE 5% - 0.1 0.1
Additions AR 2.1 64.0 66.1
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HERE A R B - (62.3) (62.3)
Disposals & - (10.2) (10.2)
At 31 December 2008 R2008F12H31H 491 195.1 244.2
Accumulated depreciation and E2BINERRE
impairment
At 1 January 2007 R2007F1H1H 9.8 110.2 120.0
Exchange adjustments B W A B - 0.1 0.1
Depreciation provided for the year TFENE 0.9 38.5 39.4
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A Rl [ - (6.5) (6.5)
Eliminated on disposals SER=F e - (41.2) (41.2)
At 31 December 2007 7200712 A31H 10.7 101.1 111.8
Depreciation provided for the year EFERE 1.0 39.2 40.2
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - (20.9) (20.9)
Eliminated on disposals o g - (9.6) (9.6)
At 31 December 2008 2008412 A31H 1.7 109.8 121.5
Carrying amount 200812 A31H
at 31 December 2008 IRHEE 37.4 85.3 122.7
Carrying amount 2007412A31H
at 31 December 2007 IRHEE 36.3 102.4 138.7

At 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of buildings pledged
as security for the Group’s long-term bank loans amounted to

HK$28.1 million (2007: HK$28.7 million).
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

10. BV EE

Group
%8
Exchange Computer software
«
Club participa- ERRH Customer
member- tion rights Internally Sales relation- Web
ship REM Acquired developed Trade mark network ship domain Total
efeR P2t BA  RBER BE HEER EFBR f bkl
HKS$ Milion - HK$ Milion  HK$ Milion  HKS$ Million  HKS Million  HK$ Milion  HKS$ Milion  HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BEET ABEAT BESBT BAEAT BEST BEAT BEET  BEAT  AEER

Cost RE
At 1 January 2007 R2007E1A1H 3.1 5.7 254 8.8 1,054.0 167.7 1,154.0 780 2,496.7
Additions 1 - - 9.7 - - - - - 97
Release on disposal HERBAR

of subsidiaries el - 1.2) - - - - - - 1.2)
Transfer to available-for-sale BREEHREE

investments and statutory RERETE

deposits Be - 1.9 - - - - - - 1.9
At 31 December 2007 A2007F12A31H 3.1 2.6 35.1 8.8 1,054.0 167.7 1,154.0 78.0 2,503.3
Additions 25 - - 13.5 13.3 - - - - 26.8
Release on disposal HENBAR

of subsidiaries e - - - - (179.0) (167.7) - - (346.7)
Disposal HE - - (2.9 - - - - - 23
At 31 December 2008 #2008F12A31H 3.1 2.6 46.3 221 875.0 - 1,154.0 78.0 2,181.1
Accumulated amortisation ~ REHERAE

and impairment
At 1 January 2007 R2007F1A1H 12 1.3 15.0 - - 4.2 62.2 2.7 86.6
Amortisation charged

for the year REEEHER - - 53 - - 16.8 2229 78 2508
Release on disposal HEHBAR

of subsidiaries e - 0.2) - - - - - - 0.2)
Impairment loss ERE - - - - 7.0 - 77.0 - 84.0
At 31 December 2007 #A2007F12A31H 12 1.1 20.3 - 7.0 21.0 362.1 10.5 4232
Amortisation charged

for the year =REEHHER - - 6.3 1.8 - 8.3 188.2 78 212.4
Release on disposal HERBAR

of subsidiaries #@ - - - - - (293 - - (293)
Disposal & - - 2.2) - - - - - 22
Impairment loss REEE - - - - - - 69.0" - 69.0
At 31 December 2008 #H2008F12A31H 12 1.1 244 1.8 7.0 - 619.3 18.3 673.1
Carrying amount 2008127316

at 31 December 2008 BREE 19 15 219 20.3 868.0 - 534.7 59.7 1,508.0
Carrying amount 20074124318

at 31 December 2007 BREE 19 15 14.8 8.8 1,047.0 146.7 791.9 67.5 2,080.1

An impairment of Customer Relationship was made due
to the decrease of value in use of Customer Relationship
as shown in the valuation report prepared by Norton
Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent valuers. This
decrease was due to the revised two-year revenue forecast
of United Asia Finance Limited group as a result of the
reduction in the number of existing customers (i.e. those
customers existed on the completion date of the Group’s
acquisition of United Asia Finance Limited group).

ABZ AEAREHERFEERQA
Frmsl A EREBRIEPBENER
BETR MELEPBHERE- - ZT
fRRENEEEFHERD (BIEE
M EFBERAREEFREBAR
FENER)  MEBRTMEEPBEER
RAEREEFTEMF 2 W TaA o
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19.

142

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The intangible assets acquired in business combinations were
recognised at the acquisition date on the basis of valuation
reports prepared by Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified valuer, as follows:

Trade Mark

The income-based approach (relief-from-royalty method) was
adopted to determine the fair value of Trade Mark. It was valued
based upon the incremental after tax cash flow accruing to
each Trade Mark holding company by virtue of the fact that
each Trade Mark holding company did not have to pay a fair
royalty to a third party for the use of that asset. Based on beta
estimates of each acquired enterprise’s comparables, the
Group had arrived at a discount rate of 11.8% with adjusted
royalty rates of 5% to determine the fair value.

Web Domain

The income-based approach (discounted cash flow method)
was adopted to determine the fair value of Web Domain. Based
on beta estimates of the acquired enterprise’s comparables,
the Group had arrived at a discount rate of 11.8% to determine
the fair value.

Customer Relationship

At the balance sheet date, the income-based approach
(contributory charge method) was adopted to determine the
value in use of Customer Relationship. This method is based
on the present value of the net positive cash flows generated
from Customer Relationship. The discount rate applied for the
valuation of Customer Relationship is 9.53%. The customer
attrition rate applied to Customer Relationship is 18.5%.

19. BLEE (&)

EBAMMBANELEENKERRE YL
BERGEMEIERFEERARNGE
WmEMwRMT

[3g
BEIZNAFEDANRABERN RN EFNE
FAETE  HENFEADERE —MEEER
ERArESEERIEMRAE=AZHE
FE HEBEEEZENAFTZEHES
e ERNERKRECERAENEENBBHG
. EESBHEREERATFENITIRER11.8%M
I EF|BEEY o

@

e DT AR BZENE SRS
PR - RN IR L EIAE HEEN
RUSEE - REBHREDFENTEE
11.8% °

EFBE

EFBANEERNEREER  TAKRAR
EWNBERCATERTE - AU T SR
FORE/EEFEDR AUGETFH
FREENTRER.53%  AREFHEERD
BEPFRIEX[18.5% -

The intangible assets of the Company are as follows: ARABZELEEWNT ¢
Company
PN
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BAEET BEBT
Club membership, at cost efeERE
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1EX12A31H 2.1 2.1
Accumulated impairment RERE
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1RX&12A31H (1.0) (1.0
Carrying amount at 31 December 12A31HERAE 1.1 1.1
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

20.

Other than the club membership, exchange participation rights
and the Trade Mark, which have indefinite useful lives, the
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following periods:

BVEE (&)

BRTEMER XHZM2ERLARESR
FEEBHR  EtnBEPEER TS
RIAB AR S 0 R HE3H -

Acquired computer software 3 -5 years B A BT RS B 3 - 54
Internally developed computer software 10 years X B 5 B B S B 104
Sales Network 10 years SHEPS 104F
Customer Relationship 5.4 years =2 E 5.44F
Web Domain 10 years 4915 104
GOODWILL 20. &
Group
&5
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEET AEET
Cost RE
At 1 January ®1A18 2,504.8 2,540.4
Arising from increase in cost on acquisition ~ E4ABEA
of subsidiaries BARIE hN = 1.2
Release on disposal of subsidiaries H BB A R E (o (120.8) (36.8)
At 31 December M®12A31H 2,384.0 2,504.8
Impairment pAIEN
At 1 January R1A1H - 0.3
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A #E - (0.9)
At 31 December M12H31H - -
2,384.0 2,504.8
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE

22.

144

USEFUL LIVES

For impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2008 were allocated as

21. BERREREERYRNELEE
ZRERE

2008 F 12 A1 B E KL B FEF A
BREFLEESPER TIREEESME

follows: BRERSE
Goodwill Trade Mark
(GRS EmE
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Milion HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBIT BEET BEAT
United Asia Finance Limited 7 [ LA BT ] \IEE']
(“UAF”) in “Consumer MBS BERA
Finance” segment (T NEES AR5 ) 2,384.0 2,384.0 868.0 868.0
Quality HealthCare i fIE?xﬁ
Asia Limited in BEEIREE \IE
“Principal Investments mﬁ&ﬁ/ﬂ\ﬁﬁﬁ
— Healthcare” segment (T - 120.8 - 179.0
2,384.0 2,504.8 868.0 1,047.0
The recoverable amount of UAF represents the value in use at DMEBE BN ATRNEERERNBE LG ER

31 December 2008 based on a business valuation report on the
UAF group prepared by an independent qualified professional

ﬁ%ﬁfﬁsnﬁ - BB A AR A R AT4R f &Y
EBEEREPDMNBS Hﬂﬂﬁlﬁzoozﬁ

valuer, Norton Appraisals Limited. The income-based approach
was adopted to determine the recoverable amount. It is
based on a five-year performance projection and certain key
assumptions including growth rates between 10.19% to 13.61%
from 2009 to 2013 and a sustainable growth rate of 4.0%
beyond 2013, and a discount rate of 8.53% to determine the
value in use. The recoverable amount of UAF was determined
to be in excess of its net carrying amount.

Management believes that possible changes in any of the above
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of UAF to
exceed its recoverable amount.

12 A31 EIZEW B - A U B{E 2 B A U s

/%Effﬁ CFREERENTIFEREEER
FE;&E"“' B 1520094 £ 20134 3%
N F10.19%ZE13.61% ~ 20134 14 &9 £
,%;%;i;%%zmo% - N BRIR &G .53% o Zn M B
AR EERETE AN EREEFE -

EEEREEZERENATEZ(H TG
TSMBE M BHREERAE A WEE -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. BRI
Company
RAF
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRMIRE 459.8 432.6
Less: impairment W B (6.4) (11.8)
453.4 420.8

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2008
are shown in note 48.
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23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 23. BE N FIER

Group
%
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEET BEET

Carrying amount of listed associates LEiEE A REREE 3,665.5 3,133.7
Carrying amount of unlisted associates JEETEE A RIREE 49.0 38.3
3,714.5 3,172.0

Less: impairment W RE (0.8) (0.8)
3,713.7 3,171.2

Fair value of listed associates e AR ATE 1,041.9 5,675.7

Company
LN
2008 2007

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
HEBER BEBT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, S Emiik
at cost REREAE 2,315.5 2,159.2
Fair value of listed associates AR ATFE 1,041.9 5,675.7
(a) The goodwill included in the carrying amount of associates @ UNTAEEEBELAIEREEARNDN
is as follows: EEEE
Group
58
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBT
Cost RE
At 1 January M1 A1H 2.7 13.3
Arising from increase in interest EEBEEEE
in associates NSIE- 5 1.8 -
Eliminated on disposal £ 5 B 8 - (10.6)
At 31 December W12A31H 4.5 2.7
Impairment RE
At 1 January ®1A1H (2.7) (13.3)
Eliminated on disposal i S R T B - 10.6
At 31 December M12A31H (2.7) 2.7
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23.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(b)  The summarised financial information of associates at 31

23. BME N TR (/)
(b) AT A& ARR2008F12 A31 HmEF

24,

December 2008 was as follows: BERBE -
Group
£
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BAEET BEET
Total revenue @S 1,862.7 1,421.6
Profit and loss for the year EFEERNREE 751.1 737.8
Group’s share of profit or loss SEMMEBERARRFEHENK

of associates for the year &5 18 268.1 263.6
Total assets BEE 15,527.4 15,326.0
Total liabilities FEN=RE (5,376.1) (6,099.8)
Group’s share of net assets of associates =B (LKL N FFEE 3,712.7 3,172.0

(c) Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December

2008 are shown in note 49.

(c) H2008F12A31 B X BH A N FFFEA
AR FE4Q o

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, H[EZEH A FIELS
ENTITIES
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERT BEBIT
Carrying amount of unlisted jointly IE T LR
controlled entities NSIEELE 16.8 1.5

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities at 31 December

2008 are shown in note 50.
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

26.

25. AIHERE

Group
£
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET

Listed equity investments issued by R EIEITH EHRERE -
corporate entities, at fair value /NS -]
- Listed in Hong Kong —HEF/E LM 9.6 906.8
- Listed outside Hong Kong —EEFBLANNET 26.3 121.7
35.9 1,028.5
Unlisted equity investments issued by BT EMRERE -
corporate entities at cost less impairment 1R BRERRE 169.8 165.8
Unlisted equity investments issued by BERITHIE L TIRERE -
corporate entities at fair value EAFE 42.0 37.9
247.7 1,232.2

Available-for-sale investments are intended to be held for a
continuing strategic or long-term purpose.

Further details of available-for-sale investments are disclosed
in notes 55 and 56.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES 26.

FEAHMERENBEN - RIER/FHEMR
SRS R A o

AHEEREZE - PHBRERHMESER
56 °

MEBLAIR (B) ik

Company
ANH
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER AEET

Amounts due from subsidiaries N EENEIDNE S
Less: allowance for impairment B RE R
Less: current portion B —FREERE D

5,218.4 4,871.0

(291.0) (304.7)
4,927.4 4,566.3
(1,149.7) (4,566.3)
3,777.7 -
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES

148

(CONTINUED)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, repayable
on demand, and non-interest bearing except for a sum of
HK$54.9 million (2007: HK$1,342.7 million) bearing interest at
market rates. The Company assesses at year-end whether there
is objective evidence that the amounts due from subsidiaries
are impaired. The impairment is made if and only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss
events occurring and having an impact in the estimated future
cash flows of subsidiaries that can be reliably estimated. The
movements in the allowance for impairment were as follows:

26.

MEBLAXR (B) ik (@)

Br B8 A54.98 88T (20074 1 1,342.78

BHET) WRRMB TS ES)

HERRIR

RLDEER  BARNKEERREE - NAF
RERBSFEMBLARARKRRTEEERE
BIR - BERBEATERATRE 28
BEBTE-BAIXZHEBRENCEL B
KEWBARMNKRRGEHRERERLE -
AT PAR] SEMDFERT o LA TN AR E R ey &

Company
AKAT
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBTT
At 1 January Mm1A1H (304.7) (304.7)
Amounts recovered Bl ERE 13.7 -
At 31 December MW12H31H (291.0) (304.7)
Company
RAT
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBTT
Gross amount of impaired advances BRENWNBRRKEE
to subsidiaries ZRE 765.8 1,040.0
Less: allowance for impairment o ORE R (291.0) (304.7)
Net carrying amount of impaired advances & R{E M B A &K
to subsidiaries ZBREFE 474.8 735.3

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, repayable on

demand and non-interest bearing.
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27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 27.

FINANCE CUSTOMERS

MAMBEFERRBRK

Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT

Loans and advances to consumer AT BEFEFR K
finance customers 2K
Less: allowance for impairment W R ERE
— Individually assessed — B FHE
— Collectively assessed — 4R B
Less: current portion B —FRE B E D

Movements of allowance for impairment during the year were
as follows:

4,732.3 3,913.3
(0.9) (1.2)
(399.5) (291.5)
4,331.9 3,620.6
(2,588.4) (2,145.2)
1,743.5 1,475.4
T ARERERFNRE
Group
%8
2008 2007

HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET BEBT

At 1 January M1A1H
Exchange adjustments M X 58 #
Amounts written off i SH B
Release on disposal of subsidiaries o 5 B /B 2 B 4 ]
Amounts recovered e

Amounts charged to the income statement 5+ AURESBR 7 858

At 31 December M12H31H

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers have
been reviewed by the Consumer Finance division to assess
impairment allowances which are based on the evaluation of
collectibility, aging analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection statistics of individually significant accounts or a
portfolio of accounts on a collective basis.

(292.7) (60.3)
(0.2) (0.1)
255.3 53.0
- 0.2

0.3 0.2
(363.1) (285.7)
(400.4) (292.7)

MABBEEERMILATBELER KT
o REME R EERETE  FEERS
A EER S REROMREREHE - &
RBYARBEEPHAERMARTPRENEE
R E R B -

Group
55
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEETT BEET

Gross amount of impaired loans FE S A I B RE

under individual assessment ERZRE 3.4 4.0
Less: loans impairment allowance B B FHEE RN

under individual assessment B (0.9) (1.2)
Net carrying amount of impaired loans BB AHEI A REER

under individual assessment ZREFEE 2.5 2.8
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27.

150

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER
FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis for the loans and advances to consumer
finance customers that were past due at the balance sheet
date but not impaired were as follows:

AAMBEFERRBR (&)

REER  BREERENLAMBEFE
REBRHRE DT

Group
%8
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT

Less than 31 days PRB1R
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K
61 — 90 days 61— 90K
Over 90 days 90K F

The amount and type of collateral required depend on an
assessment of the credit risk of the customer or counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types
of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- for personal lending, mortgages over residential properties;
and

- for commercial lending, charges over real estate properties,
pledge of shares or debentures over the company’s
assets.

Management requests additional collateral where appropriate
in accordance with the underlying agreement, and monitors
the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the
adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in
an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay
the outstanding claim. In general, the Group does not occupy
repossessed properties for business use.
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304.7 238.4
33.5 23.3
24.2 27.4
51.6 85.7

414.0 374.8

ERmmR TR NBERTFEEP XY
FOEERRONGERME  LKREARGE
YRR AR X EHES -

SR E B LA TR

- BAEFRNRBEMRAEEDE K

- BEEFNERSKRENE BEEM
FARBEERRENES
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28. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

28. EXR R EUWER

Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBATT BEBT
Term loan repayable over one year —FRIENEBHER 78.0 -
Amounts repayable over one year —F1& B BRI SR8 229.2 -
Amounts due from investee companies S BN E RER - 6.6
Less: allowance for impairment W ORE R (25.7) (1.4)
281.5 5.2
Add: long-term portion of trade and e At WA RIS

other receivables (note 29) (FF3E29) 0.2 0.6

Less: short-term portion of loans and B Bk EWERA R ERE
receivables (note 29) (FfF5E29) (117.5) -
164.2 5.8

The impairment is made when there is objective evidence of
impairment after the Group’s evaluation of the collectibility of
loans and receivables. The movements in the allowance for

impairment were as follows:

B S B AT B SR e B MR B0 0& SR e
% BEBRERERELIER - ATRRE
BN E

Group
&5
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEET BHEBIT
At 1 January »1A1HE (1.4) (1.4)
Amounts charged to the income statement 5+ AURESER 7 858 (25.7) -
Amounts recovered eIk e 1.4 -
At 31 December M12H31H (25.7) (1.4)
Group
4
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BEBIT
Gross amount of impaired loans BIRERE 7N R R
and receivables ZBE 229.2 6.6
Less: allowance for impairment VB RE RS (25.7) (1.4)
Net carrying amount of impaired loans BRIENE RN EIWEE
and receivables ZREFEE 203.5 5.2
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

162

29. KEa R HMEWER

Group
-]
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEAR BEAT BERET
Trade receivables mEREKE
- Accounts receivable from - X5 B8R
exchanges, brokers and clients ZPEWER 906.6 1,563.2
- Less: allowance for impairment — R RERE (3.9) (7.2)
902.7 1,556.0
Secured term loans ERERBHER 789.3 611.1
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (64.5) (14.8)
724.8 596.3
Margin loans FEHMH 2,366.9 3,192.8
Less: allowance for impairment R ERE (120.4) (76.9)
2,246.5 3,116.5
3,874.0 5,268.8
Interest receivables FEUF B 92.3 66.9
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (6.4) -
85.9 66.9
Current portion of leasehold interests 7 —4 R Z| B0 S + 28
in land (note 17) (f&E17) 3.2 3.1
Other accounts receivable, Hit U Ze Rk
deposits and prepayments BHEA 336.8 473.6
4,299.9 5,812.4
Add: short-term portion of loans and i : EF R EKRN SRS
receivables (note 28) (Pi3E28) 117.5 -
Less: long-term portion of A Bt EREN RS
other receivables (note 28) (Fft&E28) (0.2) (0.6)
5,811.8
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e R H M EWER (&)

(CONTINUED)
The movements in the allowance for impairment were as AT BRERERNES
follows:
Secured
Trade term loans Margin Interest
receivables BER loans receivables Total
TEENER BHER EHFHR EWFE #E
HK$ Milion  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEBT BERT BEAT
At 1 January 2007 #200741 A1H (5.9 (24.9) (58.5) - (89.3)
Exchange adjustments i 5 A% (0.3) - - - (0.3)
Reclassification BHAE (1.5) - (0.4) - 1.9
Amounts written off e 1.5 1.4 - - 2.9
Amounts recovered BOE - 8.7 12.6 - 21.3
Amounts charged to the AR
income statement ¢ (1.2) - (30.0) - (31.2)
Release on disposal of subsidiaries & k&2 7 #&E 0.2 - - - 0.2
At 31 December 2007 R2007£12A31H (7.2) (14.9) (76.3) . (98.3)
Amounts written off WiEEE 0.4 - 1.7 - 2.1
Amounts recovered BEgE - 12.5 0.2 - 12.7
Amounts charged to the AR
income statement pd ¢ (2.0) (62.2) (46.0) (6.4) (116.6)
Release on disposal of subsidiaries & & A 7% E 4.9 - - - 4.9
At 31 December 2008 #2008F12A31H (3.9) (64.5) (120.4) (6.4) (195.2)
Impairments of trade receivables, margin and term loans are RADREEEEHMNEEZES &%?Lﬂ
made in the income statement after proper review by the Credit ZEQHEMERLCERIER - BHMK
Control Department or the Credit and Executive Committees of BHIERHIBRE (*E?Fﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂ’]m%ﬁ’l%ﬁ&

the Company, based on the latest status of trade receivables, BN AMHREHNOERERROEN) - WB
margin and term loan receivables, and the latest announced or FRDRERE - e AR -
available information about the underlying collateral held.
Group
%8
2008 2007
Gross Net carrying Gross Net carrying
amount of  Individually  amount of amount of Individually amount of
impaired assessed impaired impaired assessed impaired
advances allowances  advances advances  allowances advances
BHEER BUME  BHESER CAEER BUE  EAEER
ZRE 2B ZREFRE ZRE ZEE CEmEE
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEET BEET BEEL e BEEL
Impaired trade and other receivables &Y LT A HEH)
under individual assessment e REMmEKE
- Trade receivables o 4.1 (3.9) 0.2 8.4 (7.2) 1.2
- Secured term loans - ﬁf&ﬁﬁﬁma # 65.9 (64.5) 1.4 213 (14.8) 125
- Margin loans BENH 187.8 (120.4) 67.4 115.3 (76.3) 39.0
257.8 (188.8) 69.0 1561.0 (98.3) 52.7
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

154

(CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables, secured term loans and
margin loans that were past due at the balance sheet date but

not impaired were as follows:

29. WERHMBWER (&)

UTAREERCBIERELRERNKZEE
FEY R - BRI A BIME B R S R 2 BR iR
DT

Group
£8

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBIT
Less than 31 days PRRB1X 208.5 111.9
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K 2.7 17.0
61 — 90 days 61 — 90K 27.2 46.5
Over 90 days 90K 16.6 47 1
255.0 222.5

Listed securities, unlisted securities and properties of clients
were held as collateral against secured margin loans and term
loans. The fair value of the listed securities at 31 December
2008 held as collateral was HK$5,195.7 million (2007:

HK$26,501.2 million).

Further details of trade and other receivables are disclosed in

note 56.
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THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

30. ZBRHEREQAFEIRNUBEE

Group Company
%8 NS
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERR BEAT BEER BEBT
Held for trading BFEERE RAYE
investments, at fair value
Equity securities listed AR L mOREES
in Hong Kong
- Issued by corporate entities — A EET 111.6 175.7 - -
- Issued by banks — MIRITET 50.2 10.8 = -
Overseas equity securities R EEITHEIN
issued by corporate entities W= &
- Listed —-Fm 20.7 198.2 - -
- Unlisted —JEm - 41.0 - -
Warrants and options listed EEELMNAREER
in Hong Kong R 12.3 30.3 - -
Unlisted overseas warrants FEEMRBINRIRERE 3.1 12.3 = -
Warrants issued by a R— LSRR
listed associate )RR A
- Listed —-ftm 1.2 - 1.2 -
- Unlisted o sl - 285.3 - 285.3
Unlisted bonds FEMESH 5.2 - - -
Other held for trading investments ~ Hi#EEEHRE 0.8 0.8 = -
205.1 754.4 1.2 285.3
Equity securities in unlisted FETREESHRE
investment funds, at fair value x% BAYE
- Issued by corporate entities — AEBI
outside Hong Kong RERT 90.7 416.2 = -
295.8 1,170.6 1.2 285.3

Further information of the financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss is disclosed in note 55.

FER KI5 IR EE
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31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

156

31. BE QN RIRER

Group Company
%8 b NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAT BEET BEAT BEBT
Loan notes EREE - 78.0 - 78.0
Advances B} 71.3 68.0 59.6 60.2
71.3 146.0 59.6 138.2
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (8.4) (8.4) - -
62.9 137.6 59.6 138.2
Further details of amounts due from associates are disclosed B & N RRER 2 i — R B M S 1 R I EE -
in note 51.
The impairment is made when there is objective evidence of BEEREBFEHE AR RENEREN

impairment after the Group’s evaluation of the collectibility of

& ARBURAERERELRE - LTAR

amounts due from associates. The movements in the allowance ERENEE
for impairment were as follows:
Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT BEET
Balance at 1 January ®1A1H 8.4 2.1
Amount written off fEE - (2.1)
Reclassification Ebak ] = 8.4
Balance at 31 December M12A31H 8.4 8.4
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Gross amount of impaired advances BREMNEZ QR
to associates KRERZRE 64.7 64.6
Less: allowance for impairment W ORE R (8.4) (8.4)
Net carrying amount of impaired advances  BREMEE AR KEZ
to associates BRENFE 56.3 56.2
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33.

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32. BERRLEEY
Group Company
&8 N
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEBTL BEER BEAT
Bank balances and cash BOEFELRRE 1,105.6 881.3 4.1 2.7
Fixed deposits with banks BIEHER 625.6 750.9 = 88.0
Treasury bills BlE% 7.7 7.7 = -
1,738.9 1,639.9 41 90.7
The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with EERERBRITREEELREBIEREPL AR
licensed banks to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal CHEEBEMBEERPEFH - 1
business transactions. At 31 December 2008, trust and 2008F12A31H » WA BREEARATEREK
segregated accounts not dealt with in these financial statements WEERBIYEP #4114 188 7% T (2007
totalled HK$4,114.1 million (2007: HK$5,256.0 million). F 52560888 L) °
Further details of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in HERREEBYAEENMEs6THE o
note 56.
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33. BT REME
Group
3
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBIT
Bank loans RITIER
— Secured loans — BHEIRER = 270.0
— Unsecured loans — AR 1,812.5 1,730.0
1,812.5 2,000.0
— Secured instalment loans — BEESHER 124.6 166.7
1,937.1 2,166.7
Secured bank overdrafts BIEIRIRITIEL - 18.0
Total bank borrowings HRITHRER 1,937.1 2,184.7
Advance from a minority equity holder KELEIREER 0.6 0.7
Other borrowings HMER 106.4 19.7
2,044.1 2,205.1
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AREENTER DT
Current liabilities mEEE 184.7 555.5
Non-current liabilities EmBIAaE 1,859.4 1,649.6
2,044.1 2,205.1
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

34.

158

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2008, bank and other borrowings were

repayable as follows:

33. RITRHEMIER (&)

R2008F 12 A31H -« IRIT R EMERAER
BN

Group
58
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBIT
Bank borrowings RITEN
— On demand or within one year — BIEisk—F R 85.6 535.1
— In the second year — = 28.8 17.4
~ In the third to fifth year ~BE-EERE 1,783.4 1,573.0
— After the fifth year — BRFE 39.3 59.2
1,937.1 2,184.7
Other borrowings HEMER
— On demand or within one year — Bk —F 99.1 20.4
— In the third to fifth year —E=F2FERF 7.9 -
2,044.1 2,205.1

All the bank loans and overdrafts are in Hong Kong dollars.

Further details are disclosed in note 56.

The secured instalment bank loans are repayable by instalments

up to May 2014.
balances at market rates.

Interest is charged on the outstanding

FTERITERREIHAEBT -
56 # FE o

BERMRITHBES
51 » FEBIRAREEL

FIER

K2 LA \Hﬁfa;aizomi
ERRATIIS BRETHE -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. RERHMENR
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Trade payables — accounts payable to KERNER — RN B2k
exchanges, brokers and clients B EER 1,120.2 1,416.0
Other accounts payable and accruals EMEMIRNENER 313.0 624.0
Amounts due to investee companies S ENREER 6.4 6.4
1,439.6 2,046.4
The aging analysis of the trade payables is as follows: KEENRMEREBROTT -
Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBTT
Less than 31 days PRB1KR 1,102.5 1,396.7
31 - 60 days 31 — 60X 3.7 6.9
61 — 90 days 61 — 90K 2.2 2.3
Over 90 days Q0K £ 11.8 10.1
1,120.2 1,416.0
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35. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

36.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

35. BBWHERE QA TFEIIRNUBERE

Group Company
L] NS
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERR BEAT BEER BEBT
Stock options listed in Hong Kong &S F MR E M 14.1 31.6 - -
Stock borrowings BERE 2.5 - - -
Indlex futures listed overseas TN LTRSS - 25 = -
Equity and currency OTC derivatives SINBEZRERERITETA 20.7 24.9 - -
Financial guarantee contract HBREED - 0.1 4.0 4.1
37.3 59.1 4.0 4.1
LOAN NOTES 36. ERERE
Group and Company
SERAEARQT
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEAT
Principal &
Balance at 1 January 1A18&TF 69.6 69.6
Repayment and cancellation EBRNGT (69.6) -
Balance at 31 December 12 A31B&TF - 69.6
Difference using the effective FRAEBBRANEENES
interest method
Balance at 1 January 1A18&F (0.4) (3.0)
Interest expense FMEEA 0.4 2.6
Balance at 31 December 12A31B &7 - (0.4)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12A31HEEAE - 69.2
The loan notes bear interest at 4% per annum and the principal EREEWAEENZRA%NNE  EFEE RS
of the loan notes was due for repayment on 7 March 2008. The FER2008FE3A7THEHIEE - BB AE

effective interest rate was 7.9% per annum.

F%7.9% -
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37. SHARE CAPITAL

160

37. R&

Number of shares

Share capital

ROEE R
2008 2007 2008 2007
Million Shares  Million Shares HK$ Million HK$ Million
BER BER BEAER BEBT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each LERER0.2E T
Authorised EERAE
Balance at 1 January 1A1ER
and 31 December 127318 &7% 15,000.0 15,000.0 3,000 3,000
Issued and fully paid BORBERA
Balance at 1 January 1A1B&ER 1,679.8 1,494.0 336.0 298.8
Exercise of warrants 1T R AEE 35.8 19.8 7.1 4.0
Placement of shares FRERD - 166.0 - 33.2
Shares issued for scrip dividends AR B FTE TR 16.0 - 3.2 -
Shares repurchased and cancelled 1% & 3T #4MR (7 (15.6) - (3.1) -
Balance at 31 December 12731847 1,716.0 1,679.8 343.2 336.0

(a)

At 31 December 2008, the Company had outstanding
warrants with an aggregate subscription price of
HK$1,166.1 million (2007: HK$1,376.7 million). The
holders of the warrants are entitled to subscribe at any
time during 1 June 2007 to 31 May 2009 for fully paid
shares at an adjusted subscription price of HK$5.88.
During the current year, 35.8 million new shares of HK$0.2
each were issued upon the exercise of the warrants.

On 29 July 2008, 0.7 million shares of the Company were
issued and allotted under the 2007 final scrip dividend
scheme. On 10 November 2008, 15.3 million shares of
the Company were issued and allotted under the 2008
interim dividend scheme.
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(a)

MR2008F12 A31H » NARIAREITHE
RS - KRB ERTEA1,166.18
BA 7T (20074 - 1,376, 7TEE B T) °
R EFERAE ATR2007F6 /18 E
2009F5 A31H A 2 A BEE A - KA
RARDEETRS.C8ETAEHMER
HERRD - RAFRNEZE R
FTEMEEITHEIR0.28 TH RN B35.8
AER -

R20084F7 8298 » 52007 F & HiA% B
ARG BET 81T R E0.78 8 AR
AR o 2008511 108 @ 520084F
AR B AR BAT 81877 R AL #8153
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(©

37. BR& (&)

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares (© UTAEXRIRAFANBZBEBHER
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as SEBRARFTRENARRGRD
follows:
Aggregate
. consideration
Price per share paid (including
Number SREE expenses)
of shares Highest Lowest REHASE
RAEE B& B (BEER)
Million HK$ HK$ HK$ Million
Month of repurchase E 8 A 7 BER BT BT BEATL
August 2008 20088 A 0.9 5.74 5.52 52
September 2008 2008F9H 4.8 4.28 3.20 18.1
October 2008 2008F10A 2.3 3.70 2.70 7.3
November 2008 2008F11A 6.6 3.1 1.94 15.7
December 2008 2008F 12 1.0 2.80 2.66 2.7
15.6 49.0
All the above shares were cancelled after repurchase. A EBMDREIEZE 28T -
During the year, the appointed trustee of the SHK (d) FBEEEROEAE (EERNME

Employee Ownership Scheme (the “EOS”) acquired
3.9 million shares of the Company (2007: nil) through
purchases on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the awarded shares of the EOS. The total amount paid
to acquire the shares during the year was HK$32.6 million
(2007: nil) and has been deducted from shareholders’
equity.

3 ZZEXTEARBERND IR
FTRORANFREBEEHE
RAREAS.9RBRARR RN (2007
FE) BARDAZNEER32.6H

BB T (20074 « )

Ok -

BRAT

RHBE
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

162

38. ANAWFE

Company
PN
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBT
Share premium account B RER
Balance at 1 January 1A18%&F 4,749.0 2,763.5
Issue of shares BT 256.7 1,988.5
Cost of issue of shares BATRR D AR - (3.0)
Balance at 31 December 12A31B4&TF 5,005.7 4,749.0
Capital redemption reserve EXREEH#E
Balance at 1 January 1A1B&TF 51.7 51.7
Transfer from retained earnings FEIBRHERES
on repurchase of shares R RN 3.1 -
Balance at 31 December 12A818 & 54.8 51.7
Retained earnings REBEF
Balance at 1 January 1A1B&TF 1,476.4 1,688.5
Profit attributable to equity holders PiN/NET g
of the Company FEAEF 461.2 358.3
Dividends proposed/declared R RS (171.5) (570.4)
Adjustments to 2007 final dividend FHEE2007F RAARR B
and 2008 interim dividend 12 20084F # HAR B 8.7) -
Premium on shares repurchased B 2 R E (45.9) -
Transfer to capital redemption reserve EERnOERS
on repurchase of shares EeNEHEE (3.1) -
Balance at 31 December 12 A31B#TF 1,708.4 1,476.4
Dividend reserve RERE
Balance at 1 January 1A1R&F 420.0 149.4
Dividends proposed/declared R RER S
(after adjustment) (g %) 180.2 570.4
Cash and scrip dividends paid AR & AR B2 AR & (514.4) (299.8)
Balance at 31 December 12H318%&F 85.8 420.0
Total balance at 31 December 12A31B&EFHAY 6,854.7 6,697.1
The distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December AR TFR2008F 12 A31 AW Al E D IR H & B

2008 amounted to HK$2,087.5 million (2007: HK$1,920.9
million), being its net realised profits calculated under Section

79B of the Companies Ordinance.
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39. BONDS

40.

The bonds are due to a fellow subsidiary, bearing interest at
the rate of 1% above HIBOR per annum and payable half-
yearly in arrears. The interest rate is repriced on the first day
of every six-month period. They are due for repayment on
24 August 2009 with an option exercisable by the Group on
reasonable market terms above HIBOR prevailing at that time,
to extend for a further term of three years. The bonds are
secured by a share mortgage over the entire share capital in
a subsidiary of the Company, UAF Holdings Limited, with a
carrying value of HK$4,344.9 million at the balance sheet date
(2007: HK$4,185.8 million).

39. E%

hEEFER—RRRMNBAR  WEFE
BEEBRITAZREN—EFE  BEFK
B—R FERBFF2E —KRES - 5IH
B3& H B2009F8H24H » EE[IEAE 2
MGBRTAERERZEBRITRERET
FREASF B IEIERE - BHRUAQR—
& Bff B8 A RJUAF Holdings Limited#y & 2 i%
DEBERRE  ZBRHOREEBZEAES
434498 & 78 JT (20074 : 4,185.8H & &

JL) e

PROVISIONS 40. 5
Group
£H
Employee

benefits Others Total
EEER Hith Pk
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
HEBT BHEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2008 R2008F1H1H 68.9 10.1 79.0
Additional provisions for the year 4 A ZEf# 1 1 24.6 35.6 60.2
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAT - (3.9) (3.9)
Amount written back e (12.1) (0.1) (12.2)
Amount utilised during the year AN R A EEE (7.1) - (7.1)
Amount paid during the year RERZ (T EEE (48.5) - (48.5)
At 31 December 2008 200812 A831H 25.8 41.7* 67.5
Less: current portion B —FERE NI S (14.1) (38.7) (62.8)
1.7 3.0 14.7

*

Included in provisions as at 31 December 2008 was HK$34.4 million in
respect of the repurchase of Lehman Brothers Minibonds from certain
clients, which was completed on 19 March 2009.

* 2008F 12 A31B B IE A4 ABBETLRIER
200963 A19R TR 2R FAHFANE S
FUEBIRIRE S FTIE 2 24 -
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41. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
of the Group recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

41. FEER IR

UTREBCHRAZIZRERBEENRE
BERERARFMEFENHES)

Group
58

Provisions Undistributed

Accelerated and Revaluation  Unrealised earnings
depreciation  impairment of assets profit  and others  Tax losses Total

AAREF
NEHE  RERAE BEER  AAREA REf ARRE a3t
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEET BEER BEER
At 1 January 2007 #200751F18 (6.5) 45.2 (428.1) (1.0 3.2 32 (385.4)
Exchange adjustments EiA% - - - (03) - - 03)
Release on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBATEE 0.4 - - - - (29 (2.5)

(Charge) credt to income RUER () 3TA
(note 13) (F3x13) (19) 206 59.9 - (2.9) 05 768
Charge to equity RERMETA - - 0.7) - - - 0.7)
At 31 Decermber 2007 Ho007E12A318 (6.9 65.8 (363.9) (13 (55 08 (312.1
Exchange adjustments ER A% - - - 0.2 - - 02
Effect on change in tax rate YERE T2 0.4 (38) 206 - - - 172
Acquired on acquisitions of subsiciaries  Fr/5 BB AKEAT - - - - (12) - (12)
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAFER 08 - 523 - - - 53.1
(Charge) credit to income RER (%) & A

(note 13) (PH3H13) (4.0) 128 447 (03 (12 523 104.3
Credit to equity RESRAR - - 07 - - - 07
At 31 December 2008 H2008%12/318 (108 748 (245.6) (1.4 79 53.1 (1379

For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for

financial reporting purposes:

REREEBERNEY - LTI RER
BEBNZKRBRERALT

Group
£8

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 122.3 66.3
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE & (260.1) (378.4)
(137.8) (312.1)
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41. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 41, EERIE ()

All the temporary differences of the Company (arising from ARNRIMTBEEE =% (A ENEGES)
unused tax loss and provisions) are recognised as deferred tax ERERBEEFHIEEE  REERAFMAE
assets and the movements during the current and prior years FEMNEEHNOT ¢

are as follows:

Company
AATH
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEET

Balance at 1 January 1A18&F 10.6 4.6
Effect on change in tax rate WEB R & (0.6) -
(Charge) credit to income AlEER (F08R) FFA (2.7) 6.0
Balance at 31 December 12A818 & 7.3 10.6
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised REER SEBEARRAUTMBET 5
deductible temporary differences of HK$0.1 million (2007: 0. 1B 8B T (20074 1.8 &%) - kAl
HK$1.8 million) and unrecognised tax losses of HK$513.2 AR 2 m M B KR E513.28 BB T
million (2007: HK$258.8 million) available to offset against future (20074 : 258.8F & /B 7T) ° AR KRELTETTE
profits. The deductible temporary difference and tax losses BRERAERT R - URBEZSFRY =
have not been recognised as it is uncertain that there will be BEHEHA MZEFUIREEEERBIEL
sufficient future taxable profits available against the utilisation RIER - RARERBERD B ER2011F 5
of these temporary differences. Included in unrecognised tax EHim2o.eE &BTHE - RHN2012F B B 6y
losses are losses of HK$2.8 million and HK$0.2 million that will 0288 BITLHIE -

expire in 2011 and 2012 respectively.
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42. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

166

On 10 July 2008, the Group acquired a subsidiary under the
consumer finance segment. The consideration of the acquisition
of HK$12.2 million was settled by cash. The fair value of the net
assets acquired from the acquisition were as follows:

BAKELR

200857 H10H » £ BB A — M B A A
(ARABBOIE)  BAKEBERI22EE
BT ZMBARRBEREFEEMT

42.

Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value
amount adjustments Fair value
WEAE
K EREE AR EAR A¥E
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEET BEBT
Net assets acquired BANFEE
- Loan and advances to —AFBEFER
consumer finance customers TN 0.3 7.1 7.4
— Other receivables — H b EUER 7.3 - 7.3
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRIBSEED 0.8 0.8
— Taxation payable — ERTIA (2.1) - (2.1)
- Deferred tax liabilities —RERIBAE - (1.2) (1.2)
6.3 5.9 12.2
Cash consideration, including Be&RE B
expenses paid BRY (12.2)
Net cash outflow arising HEBASIBAIRE R H F58
on acquisition:
— Cash consideration settled — UIR& I
in cash HR(E 12.2
— Cash and cash equivalent —BANBARMRE
in the subsidiary acquired LRIEeEEY (0.8)
11.4

The revenue and the profit or loss of the acquired subsidiary
are as follows:

AT Rt 8 A\ T8 2 B A0 Mo e A00& 1) e &5 18

For the Post-

year 2008 acquisition

2008F E gt

HK$ Million HKS$ Million

BEEBT BEET

Total revenue Bk s 0.1 0.1
Profit or loss i 1) 2 B 18 7.0 (1.1)

The above revenue and profit or loss information for the year
2008 is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operation of the acquired
subsidiary that are included in the consolidated income
statement of the Group, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.
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43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

43. EXRELE

Group
55
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEBT
Contracted for but not provided RR,’ME' R B HREKF
in the financial statements {E R HEE 106.6 192.9
Authorised but not contracted for BHLEBRELE - 5.2
106.6 198.1

44. OPERATING LEASES

(@) The Group as lessee

44, €EHE

(a)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

%ﬂf?%ﬁdﬂ)k

“HERQ SERETUMEEER
Zﬁ ﬁ;ﬁ#ﬂi?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁhﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
BRanT -

Group
58

2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBIT
Within one year —FR 92.2 149.7
In the second to fifth years inclusive BIEEE_2FRTF 51.5 144.2
After the fifth year FERF 2% - 1.2
143.7 295.1

The lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises, medical centres, elderly
care homes and office equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The lease terms and rentals of properties

are fixed at one to five years.

(b) The Group as lessor

(b)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

HENRREBRBRAZYE  BED
O EER - RAERBESERS
ZHTENNES - MENEARES
EEEE—ERFME -

SEAESHAA

NEER EEEBEREEIUTAESR
ﬁfﬁlﬁﬁm :

payments:
Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT
Within one year —FR 7.2 3.9
In the second to fifth years inclusive BREEE_ZERF 7.9 7.1
15.1 11.0

The Group has properties leased to tenants for rental. The
lease terms and rentals are fixed at two to three years.

SEEYWEEETFETANDRES - K
HEEHEREEE _E=FM -
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) At the balance sheet date, the Company and the Group () RMEEBH ARFEREBABUTRE :
had guarantees as follows:
Group Company
58 N
2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATL BE#BT BEBT
Indemnities on banking BT —REER X
guarantees made EEHELN
available to a clearing IRITIRFE
house and regulatory body Fr{ERYIER 4.5 5.5 - -
Other guarantees B REE 3.0 1.4 = 1.4
7.5 6.9 - 1.4
(b) In 2001 an order was made by the Hubei Province Higher (b) F20014F » BRIt E SR ARERE

People’s Court in China (the “2001 Order”) enforcing a
CIETAC award of 19 July 2000 (the “Award”) by which Sun
Hung Kai Securities Limited (“SHKS”) was required to pay
US$3 million to Chang Zhou Power Development Company
Limited (the “JVC”), a mainland PRC joint venture. SHKS
had disposed of all of its beneficial interest in the JVC
to SHKS’ listed associate, Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“Tian An”), in 1998 and disposed of any
and all interest it might hold in the registered capital of the
JVC (the “Interest”) to Long Prosperity Industrial Limited
(“LPI") in October 2001. Subsequent to those disposals,
SHKS’ registered interest in the JVC in the amount of
US$3 million was frozen further to the 2001 Order. The
Company is party to the following litigation relating to the
JVC:
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H))mPRAERRRMENERAR
RAI([EERFA]) IN3EEET - ¥
EHIFA D HE1998E B HN A & A A
I AEEGEmLETFTHRELS 2 £
MEERBRLEHEIRERRAR ([X
1) MPR2001F108 @ FIeEAED
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) (continued)

(i)

(i

On 29 February 2008, a writ of summons with general
indorsement of claim was issued by Global Bridge
Assets Limited (“GBA”), LPI and Walton Enterprises
Limited (“WE”) (the “2008 Writ”) in the High Court
of Hong Kong against SHKS (“HCA 317/2008").
In the 2008 Writ, (a) GBA claims against SHKS
for damages for alleged breaches of a guarantee,
alleged breaches of a collateral contract, for an
alleged collateral warranty, and for alleged negligent
and/or reckless and/or fraudulent misrepresentation;
(b) LPI claims against SHKS damages for alleged
breaches of a contract dated 12 October 2001;
and (c) WE claims against SHKS for the sum of
US$3 million under a shareholders agreement and/
or pursuant to the Award and damages for alleged
wrongful breach of a shareholders agreement. GBA,
LPI and WE also claim against SHKS interest on
any sums or damages payable, costs, and such
other relief as the Court may think fit. The 2008 Writ
was served on SHKS on 29 May 2008. It is being
vigorously defended. Among other things, pursuant
to a 2001 deed of waiver and indemnification, LPI
waived and released SHKS from any claims including
any claims relating to or arising from the Interest, the
JVC or any transaction related thereto, covenanted
not to sue, and assumed liability for and agreed to
indemnify SHKS from any and all damages, losses
and expenses arising from any claims by any entity or
party arising in connection with the Interest, the JVC
or any transaction related thereto. While a provision
has been made for legal costs, the Company does
not consider it presently appropriate to make any
other provision with respect to HCA 317/2008.

On 20 December 2007, a writ (the “Mainland Writ”)
was issued by Cheung Lai Na 582 (“Ms. Cheung”)
against Tian An and SHKS and was accepted by
a mainland PRC court, #1bE BE MR ARER
((2008)E R /M F 2 85%), claiming the transfer of
a 28% shareholding in the JVC, and RMB19,040,000
plus interest thereon for the period from January
1999 to the end of 2007 together with related costs
and expenses. The Mainland Writ is being vigorously
defended. While a provision has been made for legal
costs, the Company does not consider it presently
appropriate to make any other provision with respect
to this writ.

45. AREE (@)

(o) (%)
(i

(if)

720082 H29H * Global Bridge
Assets Limited ([GBAJ) - LP
K Walton Enterprises Limited
(TWE]) e EIEEHELSS
SRR —MERTERZEASM
([2008F £ ) ([HEERRE
5F FA20084 F317F ) » 12008
FLHRH - (a) GBAFLHEBE —1A
ERZzZER BE—MHWEBEHZ
Bk —HEBENBRELES
G2R,/SEBEERE, RE]
FERR D 2 50 B PR il T 1) #7 9B AL AL 5
HZREEE (b) LPIgtEE2EAEA
2001F10A12A 2 A HIME XM
RIBELFRE  K(c) WERE
—IBRERER, RIRIEHRA
FEET S REIESETIULR
HEREERER —ERE D
MFBELSFEREEE -GBA
LPI X WE 7R [7 5 %8 H 3F % B2 = fE
ZIEMSEXBEHEZMNE - X
HURERRAEEBE 2 b @E -
20084 4 #k M 200845 A29H %
EHEEA S - ZSMREZBR AN
Fro ®ih o RIE—1M2001F %
RBERZY  LPIERE REBH
BEIIFEZEMAR - BIiFaEE
HAERFNINBRELSER
A MBI B2 EMER - Hitt
LPIEE TS ELRBF - WAER
B - AR QRS ARAEZS
EHRzEMERK—FH 2 EM[H
RMELZ TR EABEESEE -
BAREBAR REEEIEEL
FMEELBERE  BALE
B BmRARBEAEEEBRE
HEE MARARBEELT
BE S E AR R B 5F72008F
FI17TRFRIEH M E A EE -

R2007F12 208 © REH (R
Z4]) BEMARLRITBEAT S
z—ESHKTERSHK])  ETE
EFRBDA AL ERETHRAR
AP ((2008)H R /N9 F 5#85%)
X NARHRREZESEQRZ
28% [ #E - & AR #19,040,0007T
BRIFA1999F 1 A 5 £2007F K
ZHRBAREBEERMEY - BA
SHRIESZE NILE - ARARRE
BEEBRELEE  BWARER
AR T EE RIS ARE T
HAb S -
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) (continued)

(i) On 4 June 2008, a writ of summons was issued
by Tian An and SHKS in the High Court of Hong
Kong against Ms. Cheung (the “HK Writ”), seeking
declarations that (a) Ms. Cheung is not entitled
to receive or obtain the transfer of 28% or any
of the shareholding in the JVC from Tian An and
SHKS; (b) Ms. Cheung is not entitled to damages or
compensation; (c) Hong Kong is the proper and/or
the most convenient forum to determine the issue
of Ms. Cheung’s entitlement to any shareholding
in the JVC; (d) further and alternatively, that Ms.
Cheung'’s claim against Tian An and SHKS in respect
of her entitlement to the shareholding in the JVC
is scandalous, vexatious and/or frivolous; and (e)
damages, interest and costs as well as further
or other relief (together with related costs and
expenses). As at the date of this Report the HK Writ
has not been served on Ms. Cheung. The Company
does not consider it presently appropriate to make
any provision with respect to this action.

46. ASSETS PLEDGED

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of assets
pledged to banks and financial institutions as security for
facilities granted to the Group were as follows:

45. FREE (&)
(o) (%)

(i) 7E2008F6H4H » KL R ¥ EE
LHEREESE L MERL LI
BEASM (FBSK] USRI
TR : (xR BEEFRE
HEM AR MR FEE 2
28% A AE L RAZBNDEFH
L L 2B ENESBERE
HEE: FBNABLHE
WEZHRR R ERZ L HAE S
AREIZERBROEEZZ AT
W ()BERREN  SRZTY
GERNAIZBRNBECEZRE &
HWRLZMFEEMTAEMIRR ZHER
NEERERE MBENE SE
WEE REe)BERE - FI8 &
STARE— SR E M EE (B1ER
BEXERER) - RAREBE
EBSHREARRERLZ LT - ARQF]
W R AR THE & R LR A
VEH TR B4 -

46. EEEKR

MEER - B TRIT R BREAERE
TEEEENEELREENT :

Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEBT
Assets belonging to the Group BREENEE
— Listed securities at fair value* — FmEs  mAHE 1,033.0 5,717.0
- Investment properties —REYHE 63.0 58.9
- Leasehold interests in land —HE LR 114.8 117.4
- Buildings —BF 28.1 28.7
1,238.9 5,922.0
Assets belonging to clients* BREFHNEE"
— Listed securities at fair value — tW#ESH - BAFE 684.1 2,286.3
1,923.0 8,208.3

The entire share capital of a subsidiary was also pledged for
the bonds issued by the Group (note 39).

+ Mainly representing a portion of shares in a listed associate owned
by the Group with a carrying value of HK$3,551.7 million (2007:
HK$3,133.4 million).

* Based on the agreement terms, the Group is able to repledge
clients’ securities for margin financing arrangements with other
financial institutions under governance of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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47. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND

47. EEREEIHM DT

LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2008
#2008%12A31H
On Within 3 months 1 year After
demand 3 months to1year tob5years 5 years Total
NBEx ZEAR ZEAE-f£ -%£Z21f LE# g
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BE#®n BEEn EBEAnT BEAn  HEAn  HEER
Assets BE
Loans and advances to consumer RANBEFER
finance customers &R 462.0 670.2 1,687.7 1,726.7 185.7 4,732.3
Loans and receivables BFRENE - - 117.5 189.7 - 307.2
Fixed deposits with banks RITEEGER - 625.6 - - - 625.6
Treasury bills il - 7.7 - - - 7.7
Secured term loans BEREHER 222.3 92.0 475.0 - - 789.3
Liabilities &
Bank loans and overdrafts FITEARES - 74.0 1.7 1,812.1 39.3 1,937.1
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary RZHBARIER - 1,550.0 - - - 1,550.0
Bonds* E5 - - - 900.0 - 900.0
* The Group expects to exercise the option to extend the repayment of * EEBHRITERERENER=-FEEES -
bonds for a further term of three years.
At 31 December 2007
12007128317
On Within -~ 3 months 1 year After
demand 3 months tolyear tob5years 5 years Total
MmEExR @AM ZEAZ-F —£21fF nE#% fex
HKS Million  HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEBT EBEET GBEET  BEAT  EEAT HEARN
Assets BE
Loan notes included in amounts BEERELARE
due from associates MERZE - - 78.0 - - 78.0
Loans and advances to consumer LABBRFPER
finance customers R& 409.7 692.0 1,212.6 1,501.0 98.0 3,913.3
Fixed deposits with banks BITHER - 750.9 - - - 750.9
Treasury bills BB - 7.7 - - - 7.7
Secured term loans BEREHER 138.2 153.1 319.8 - - 611.1
Liabilities af
Bank loans and overdrafts BITERRER - 522.3 128 1,590.4 5.2 2,184.7
Loan notes BHEE - 69.2 - - - 69.2
Bonds &% - - - 2,800.0 - 2,800.0
The above tables list out only the assets and liabilities which FRAFNEEHRHEEREE  BEMA
have a term of maturity. Overdue assets are reported as on EENBES AIEER -
demand.
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = Z/{E A &

172

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2008 were as follows:

2008512 A31HMFE ZMBARIAT

Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective

Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities

TERBLH AP ES S BORERRE KESEEREZ FEXER
A i B 2008 2007

Bali Securities Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100% 100%  Securities dealing

BENEFBRAF i 7,000,000/ 7 BFRHE

Best Decision Investments British Virgin Islands US$50,000 65% 65%  Investment holding

Limited EBRTHE 50,000% 7T BRERE

Boneast Assets Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERTES e BRRE

Constable Development S.A. Panama Us$s 100% 100%  Investment holding
B2 5% T BRIRE

Cowslip Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
s 28T BRRE

Dynamic Force Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited REBRUHE EV BRERE

First Asian Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 58% - Asset holding

SNE—EEERDA s 28T EERE

Gloria (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100% 100%  Investment holding
BB 20078 7T BRRE

Gloxin Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
s 28T BRRE

Hing Yip Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Property investment

EERERABRRF REERES e MERE

Hilarious (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
s 10,000/ 7T BRRE

[-Market Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
REERES e BRIE

[tso Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Securities trading
s 28T EHFEE

Lexshan Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Nominee service

BILRIBABR AR E 28T RIEARS

Macdonnell (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
s 10,000/ 7T BRRE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = EHE A ® (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TENEAH Ay ES S BORBERE KESEERERZ FEER
R 2008 2007
Oakfame Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEREERRA B 28T BRI E
Onspeed Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1 58% 58%  Investment holding
REEEREE 17T BRI E
Plentiwind Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Futures trading
B 28T HEEE
Quick Art Limited Hong Kong HK$3,540,000 100% 100%  Share trading
EE 3,540,000/ 7T BHEE
Ranbridge Finance Limited* Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100% 100%  Money lending
ERUBERDE" EE 20,000,000 7T fE&
Scienter Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Share trading
EE 20/ 7T BHEE
Shipshape Investments Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERELRS 17T BRI E
SHK Alternative Managers Cayman Islands US$1 100% 100%  Funds management
Limited HEHS e EEER
SHK Absolute Return Cayman Islands US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
Managers Ltd HESE3= 10%7T ERIRE
SHK Dynamic Managers Ltd. Cayman Islands US$10 100% 100%  Funds management
HERS 10%7T EeEE
SHK Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 58% 58%  Money lending
HRETBER AT B 150,000,000/ 7T fEE
SHK Financial Data Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51% 51%  Financial information
REMEEAAERRAA B 10078 7T services
B EIRTS
SHK Fund Management Limited Hong Kong HK$62,000,000 100% 100%  Funds marketing and
REREERERRA B8 62,000,000 7T management
RemiaRERER
SHK Global Managers Limited  British Virgin Islands US$5,000 100% 100%  Funds management
EERUHE 5,000% 7T HeER
SHK Investment Services Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Asset holding and
Limited BB 1,000,000/ 7T leasing
BERELHEE
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(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEHBELA MRS BRORBERRE SESEEREE FEER
R B 2008 2007
SHK Online (Securities) Limited  Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 100% 100%  Online securities
HBERE GEx) BRAA e 40,000,000/ 7T broking and margin
financing
B
SHK Online Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
MBRERWERLDA e 20,000,000/ 7T BRI E
SHK Pearl River Delta Hong Kong HK$75,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Company Limited & & 75,000,000/ 7T EREE
MBEEKI=AMEEERAT
SHK Private Equity Cayman Islands US$10 100% 100%  Funds management
Managers Ltd. GESEIE 10ETT HeBE
SHK Quant Managers Ltd Cayman lIslands Us$10 100% 100%  Funds management
HEHE 10%7T EeER
Shun Loong Forex Company Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100% 100%  Leveraged foreign
Limited 55 32,000,000/ 7T exchange dealing
g SNE A PR A 7] and broking
TEIEINE B B R4
Shun Loong Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% 100%  Futures and options
gk S B R AR B 15,000,000/ 7T dealing
HERNEES
Shun Loong Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
g2 S B AR A A B8 200,000,000/ 7T BRI E
Shun Loong Securities Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% 100%  Securities broking and
Company Limited BB 50,000,000/ 7T share margin
IEfEZEHTHR AR financing
FEH L R EF T
Sing Hing Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Property investment
HEIRE BB R RERLES 1570 MERE
Splendid Gain Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
B8 28T iR E
Sun Hing Bullion Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100%  Bullion trading
Limited B 5,000,000/ 7T B2EE
HEeERRAR
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = EHiE A ® (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMBELR EILES S BARBERE SEREERER IEEH
R 2008 2007
Sun Hung Kai (China) People’s Republic RMB50,000,000 100% - Corporate marketing
Investment Management of China ARK and investment
Company Limited # 50,000,0007T consultancy
FBE (PR REER s RE RIREER
BRAT
Sun Hung Kai (Nominees) Hong Kong HK$200 100% 100%  Nominee service
Limited BB 200/ 7T R AR
FRE (RIBA) ERAT]
Sun Hung Kai Bullion Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100% 100%  Bullion trading and
Company Limited BB 30,000,000/ 7T investment holding
IBESEERAT B BEEREREE
Sun Hung Kai Commodities Hong Kong HK$80,000,600 100% 100%  Commodities broking
Limited B 80,000,600 7T BmE RS
MBEHEERAA
Sun Hung Kai Forex Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 100% 100%  Foreign exchange
HBESINEBR A F] £ 150,000,000/ 7T dealing
SNEEE
Sun Hung Kai GAPS Limited Brunei Darussalam US$1 100% - Management services
PE 17T EIERH
Sun Hung Kai Global Brunei Darussalam US$1 100% 100% Management services
Managers Limited W E B R
Sun Hung Kai Insurance Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Insurance broking and
Consultants Limited BB 1,000,000/ 7T consultancy services
BERRERERAR TRE &8 42 N B R AR 75
Sun Hung Kai International Brunei Darussalam SGD10,000,000 100% 100% International banking
Bank [Brunei] Limited S 10,000,000 business
¥R T BIFRERITE
Sun Hung Kai International Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Corporate finance
Limited BB 10,000,000/ 7T services
FEEBRER QA PERE RS
Sun Hung Kai International Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Securities, futures and
Commodities Limited BB 25,000,000 7T options trading

#7  INERBE
HMERE
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(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMBOR MRS BORBRRE KESEERERZ FEER
R B 2008 2007
Sun Hung Kai International British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management RBRELHS 50,0003 7T ERIRE
Limited*
Sun Hung Kai Investment Macau MOP48,900,000 100% 100%  Property holding
Services (Macau) Limited P 48,900,000 7T MERE
Sun Hung Kai Investment Hong Kong HK$290,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding,
Services Limited B 290,000,000/ 7T share broking and
EERERBERAA margin financing
BERIRE  BHEL
REHFHR
Sun Hung Kai Securities Bermuda US$12,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
(Bermuda) Limited BRE 12,000% 7T management services
BRI E RERIRT
Sun Hung Kai Securities Hong Kong HK$60,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Overseas) Limited &5 60,0007 7T R E
HBEER O85) BRAA
Sun Hung Kai Securities Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of trustee
(Trustees) Limited B 3,000,000/ 7T services
MBERES (FF) BRAA EFERRTS
Sun Hung Kai Securities Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Capital Markets Limited &% 1,000/ 7T BRI E
MBEESFEAMSER AT
Sun Hung Kai Securities Hong Kong HK$124,898,589 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* BB 124,898,589/8 7T B E
HMBEHER QA
Sun Hung Kai Strategic Capital Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding,
Limited (formerly Cheeroll a5 2% securities and
Limited) bullion trading
MIBERBEERERAF TRIE - BHFK
(AIBEE AR AR 5 EE
Sun Hung Kai Structured Hong Kong HK$137,500,000 100% 100%  Provision of loan
Finance Limited (formerly Bali &5 137,500,000/ 7T finance and
International Finance Limited) investment holding
BEAEEREERAT REHEETEER
(AR EENABER AR BRI E
Sun Hung Kai Venture Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Capital Limited BB 27T ERIEE
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(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMBEAR B ES BTRBRRE EEREEREZ TEXK
KR 2008 2007
Sun Hung Kai Wealth Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100%  Financial planning and
Management Limited BB 5,000,000/ 7T wealth management
FREEREHERAT HEREAREEER
Sun Tai Cheung Credits Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 100% 100%  Money lending
HREREERAA Bk 150,000,000/ 7T E3
Sun Tai Cheung Finance Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Financial services
Company Limited 55 25,000,000 7T SRR
HREMBERAT
Swan Islands Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
REBRLRS 1% BRRE
Texgulf Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Property investment
BB 2078 7T MERE
To Wan Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited B 10,000/ 7T BREIRE
HERRERAA
Tung Wo Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company, Limited B 10,0007 7T ZRIEE
RAREBRAA
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
REBREARES 1%E7T ERRE
United Asia Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$137,500,000 58% 58%  Consumer financing
SMEARRBEERAF i 137,500,000 7T LIVNE
Upper Selection Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* REBELRES 1%E7T ERRE
Wah Cheong Development Hong Kong HK$25,100,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company, Limited* EB 25,100,000/ 7T B E
EEEEERRFN
Wineur Secretaries Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Secretarial services
BRMEFR AT B8 28T W= R
Yee Li Ko Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$58,330,000 100% 100%  Property investment
ENBREBRLH EE 58,330,000/ 7T MERE
Zeal Goal International Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
KBRS 1% BRRE

SEBRAT
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(CONTINUED)

Place of Issued and
incorporation and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries operation share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEHBELA aMRER BRORBERRE SESEEREE FEER
R 2008 2007
SREEEHZ B GFEY)) People’s Republic RMB25,000,000 58% 58%  Financial consultancy
BRRA of China AR 1 75 A e
Bl 25,000,0007T
T BB\ EEEE People’s Republic RMB15,000,000 58% 58%  Money lending
BRRA of China ARE )4
FE 15,000,0007T
RYIEEET{TIHEER AR AT People’s Republic RMB10,000,000 58% 58%  Money lending
(formerly ISR AR /T35EER  of China AR =
BRAR) il 10,000,0007T
EE (KE)KREER People’s Republic RMB50,000,000 100% - Asset management
BRRA of China AR BEER
Bl 50,000,0007T
BN TS IS & R People’s Republic HK$6,000,000 100% - Corporate marketing
BRAT of China 6,000,000/ 7T and investment

* These subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

&

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

2008 were as follows:

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

49.

FEBRENT

R2008F 12 A1 B E BHE AT ¢

Place of Equity interest held by
incorporation and BEREES
Principal associates operation Group Company Principal activities
TEBENT AMREBELEHH &8 YN TEEK
2008 2007 2008 2007
China Xin Yongan Futures Hong Kong 25% 25% - - Futures dealing
Company Limited &5 mere
PR AL REERAT
Chronicle Gain Limited Hong Kong 45% 45% - - Property holding
BYERRA B35 NERE
Drinkwater Investment Limited Hong Kong 22% 22% - - Property holding
BREXBRAT &k MERE
Eurasia Mattress & Furniture Co. Ltd. People’s Republic 25% 25% - - Manufacture of mattresses
BERBFABRAF of China and bedsteads
M FRE o R
Omicron International Limited British Virgin Islands 44% 44% 38% 38%  Investment holding
EBERUHE B E
Real Estate Investments (N.T.) Limited Hong Kong 40% 40% - - Property development
B NEER
Silver York Development Limited Hong Kong 42% 42% - - Investment holding
KEERARAR EE ERIRE
Start Hold Limited Hong Kong 33% 33% - - Investment holding
HERERRA B ERIE
Tian An China Investments Hong Kong 37% 36% 37% 36%  Investment holding
Company Limited # EiE B E
REHPEREBERRAA
Tianjin Eurasia Mattress & Furniture People’s Republic 25% 25% - - Manufacture of mattresses
Co. Ltd. of China and bedsteads
REFTRBRAFRDA M K% R RER§3E
# This associate is listed in Hong Kong and further details about this # LB E AR ABBLMAR - HFMER A ER

associate are available in its published Annual Report.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

bR R 2 F 3T -

LM EEZBERTR  REERRHEAR
FREEEZEGEREATE  SBHREEF
BETENRNZRGE - EFRRIEH A
BRAZHBECENBRILE -
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50. PARTICULARS OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED

180

ENTITIES

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31

December 2008 were as follows:

Place of
incorporation and
principal place of

50.

HEEZEH AT

#2008F12 431 B R REHI R FAT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital and

Jointly Form of business  operation voting rights
controlled entities structure MR EEER Principal activities ERTRAEAER
HEEHDE EBEBER R TEEK RERELE
2008 2007
SHK Corporate Finance Incorporated People’s Republic Corporate finance advisory 33.3% 33.3%
(Shanghai) Limited NG of China 1R & R

LR ECEBAERAR

Shenzhen Oriental Venture Incorporated

Capital Management NC]
Co., Ltd
FITRS E BRI EREERE
BRATE
AR ESEER Incorporated
BRAF NC]
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PR

People’s Republic
of China
H

People’s Republic
of China
i

Venture capital investment
management
BI%®REEE

Corporate investment,
providing management
and product marketing
consultancy services

TERE  RUEEERER
He R 8 AR 7%

49% -

34% -



51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51, BBEAL 2R S

During the year, the Group entered into the following material

SEREAFREBEAEALTETATHER

transactions with related parties: R5:
Group
&5
2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
ihg=s BEBTT BHEBIT
Associates AN
Insurance premiums received il dal/NG]
from listed associates AR R B & 0.8 0.9
Interest income from a listed e —ME L R a MR
associate FIEWA - 2.0
Finance cost to a listed LT —HLEmEE QRN
associate BhE A A (0.5) -
Rent paid to a listed associate LT —EEmEE RNES (1.4) 0.2)
Loan notes repaid by a listed —fE L E AR
associate EEERER 78.0 -
Ultimate holding company and BRERATIR
its subsidiaries HEE AR
Insurance premiums received from RSl NP
the ultimate holding company and EESGIEPNE

fellow subsidiaries AR (R B & 2.8 2.4
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary HE&—RHEAR T
to a fellow subsidiary (before —ER R B R R FFHRIE

deducting expenses) Cal:3=9::0Tp) (a) 470.7 -
Proceeds on disposal of an associate & —E& AT T

to a fellow subsidiary —fEE R B R RS 3IE - 166.9
Short-term loan due to a fellow RE(EE) —BRR

subsidiary raised (repaid) B A REEER 1,550.0 (700.0)
Service fees received from e S PNG|

a fellow subsidiary I ER ) AR 7% & 0.6 -
Repayment of bonds due to BEMR—HERZR

a fellow subsidiary W B R R ES (1,900.0) -
Finance costs to fellow subsidiaries T RVE AT R KB B AR (104.4) (188.3)
Rent and property management fees i FHRLIER A B N —ER &

paid to the ultimate holding WEARMES R

company and a fellow subsidiary BIEE (0.2) 8.7)
Management fees paid to the ultimate 1 TR 4&IZERR A &

holding company EEER (3.5) (2.5)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

. BEBEALZRE (&)

FTEEBEASHRMH
NTREERETEEBENEMKBERSF
MHI £ -

2008 2007

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERT BEBT

Short-term benefits SEEER 75.6 110.2
Post-employment benefits RIKIEREA 1.7 2.3
77.3 112.5

Certain key management personnel of the Group received
remuneration from the Company’s ultimate holding company
or its wholly-owned subsidiary. The ultimate holding company
provided management services to the Company and charged
the Company a fee, which is included in the management fee
as disclosed above in this note, for services provided by those
personnel as well as others who are not key management
personnel of the Group.

The management fee is calculated by reference to the time
devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the
Group and can be apportioned to the relevant key management
personnel. The total of such apportioned amounts, which have
been included in the key management personnel compensation
above is HK$2.8 million (2007: HK$1.8 million).

In addition to the above, the Group received brokerage fees of
HKS$0.1 million (2007: HK$0.3 million) from the key management
personnel with year-end trade receivables of HK$1.1 million
(2007: HK$1.5 million) whereas the year-end trade payable is
HK$12.6 million (2007: HK$8.2 million).
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ARARBRHEKDRERBNEERY 2B
RERBEAELMELIZERERS  UE
BREAZEIEZEERAERAMIEEET
EEIEABMRM

AEERBENEREABRREEER LAER
MREERZ2ZLAIRE LR TR2ER A
Btk EERELB A28 &E T (2007
F18ABETL) CEENLRA -

Br EibASN  EEAFEBEEE A 8 WAL
B£01BEB T (20074 : 0.3B BB T) -
RERBHELLEREUERIBES T
(2007F :156B&EBL)  MEEENEKEA
12.6BEHETT (20074 : 82BEHBIT) °



51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. BRAEA LT ZX S (&)

(CONTINUED)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following material NEER  SEEFHEEATHEATERDY
balances with related parties: R
Group
£HE
2008 2007
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5T BEATT BEET
Associates i N
Amounts due from associates i NI
Amounts due from a listed associate ~ —R - EEZ A RIKEE
- Loan note - BEXRER - 78.0
— Others — HAfth (d) 1.7 2.3
Amounts due from other associates  E fh B4 N TR R (d) 61.2 57.3
62.9 137.6
Amounts due to other associates =L RNIET = (d) (8.1) (7.5)
Ultimate holding company and BRERATR
its subsidiaries HHE AR
Short-term loan due to a fellow K —FER R B A B
subsidiary REER (b) (1,550.0) -
Bonds due to a fellow subsidiary R—MERRZKBRFRES (c) (900.0) (2,800.0)
Trade receivable £ e AR 0.3 -
Trade payable 45 R AR (40.5) (19.7)
(2,490.2) (2,819.7)
(a) Details of the transaction are disclosed under the (a) WRFFBERESHEN [BERIS]

“Connected Transaction” section in the Directors’
Report.

(b)  On 3 March 2008, a fellow subsidiary granted a two-year
revolving loan facility of HK$1,750.0 million to the Group.
The loan draw down under the facility carries interest at
1% above HIBOR.

(c) Details of the bonds are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) These amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

— R -

MR2008F383H © —RHIRERMEBRARK
FEEAH,750.08 BE THMELRE
REFEE HZEERIONERZEN
EEBRITEAZEFREM—EZFE -

BERZFBRBERGEAVBERRME
39 °

hEBENRIR (B) RIEERR 28
DERERANR(EE -
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52. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

184

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support the
Group’s growth and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in objectives, policies and processes during the years ended
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by the equity. Total debts include the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings, loan notes, short-term loans
and bonds due to fellow subsidiaries. The equity comprises all
components of equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The gearing ratio at year-end was as follows:

52. EXEHE

SEEAREEMNTEANENEREBGR
NEBRFEERBHEBREOERLE - A
SFEEERY SR RAERAEE -

5 I3 R B A 15 00 O S R LU B Y L B
BREEEEAEBALFHERFE -

ARFBAPEENGEE  SETRSHARR
BRAALE ~ BRANEIHR - N EITHR - &
Z2007412H31H 1t 20084 12731H 1t
FE - KREEBER - RRNEF LI BT

SENEARBRAFLE (RAERAER) B
REABR - BEAEBREEENRITREM
fE - ERFEE - RRARXWBRENES
EH RS o A A IR (2 A0
EEARE D - FRNEAEBFLEMT ¢

2008 2007

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERT BEBT

Total bank and other borrowings RITREMIEFRARE 2,044.1 2,205.1

Loan notes BERERE = 69.2

Short-term loan due to a fellow subsidiary R—RIEMBARIMNEEHER 1,550.0 -

Bonds (6 900.0 2,800.0

Total debts wafE 4,494.1 5,074.3
Equity attributable to equity holders NN g

of the Company s 11,345.5 12,191.6

Gearing ratio ERNCES= R R 39.6% 41.6%
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53. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at the

balance sheet date were as follows:

53. B EE

NTREEREERANMBEERAE :

Group Company
8 /NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABT BEAT BEEAT BEEET
Financial assets at fair value FBWERIZ A FENERN
through profit or loss HMBEE
- Held for trading investments ~ — ##{EEZKRE
(note 30) (M$%£30) 205.1 754.4 1.2 285.3
- Equity securities in unlisted —FETREESH
investment funds (note 30) MriEE % (FHE30) 90.7 416.2 = -
295.8 1,170.6 1.2 285.3
Loans and receivables under RIERBEENER L
non-current assets e AR
- Loans and advances to —FABBEP
consumer finance ERR#HR
customers (note 27) (HzE27) 1,743.5 1,475.4 = -
- Loans and receivables - ERRERR
(note 28) (HtzE28) 164.2 5.8 = -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — fiB A 7R ER
(note 26) (KizE26) - - 3,777.7 -
Loans and receivables under REBEENER K
current assets JE s B
- Amounts due from — B ARIKER
subsidiaries (note 26) (Hizx26) - - 1,149.7 4,566.3
- Loans and advances to NS
consumer finance ER R8T
customers (note 27) (HzE27) 2,588.4 2,145.2 = -
- Trade and other receivables — 8 R H At R AR 4,417.2 5,811.8 0.4 1.8
- Amounts due from associates  — i< A AI R B
(note 31) (M&E31) 62.9 137.6 59.6 138.2
— Cash and cash equivalents - R MReEEY
(note 32) (FIzE32) 1,738.9 1,639.9 4.1 90.7
10,715.1 11,215.7 4,991.5 4,797.0
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE
(note 25) (M¥3E25) 247.7 1,232.2 = -
11,258.6 13,618.5 4,992.7 5,082.3
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 54. B EE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities at the NTASENEEANKEEREE -
balance sheet date were as follows:
Group Company
£8 RAT]
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET
Financial liabilities measured REEBKAFTEN
at amortised cost BBaE
— Bank and other borrowings — RITREAMER
(note 33) (M7£33) 2,044.1 2,205.1 = -
- Amounts due to subsidiaries  — B ARIEE - - 561.8 539.3
— Trade and other payables — B R E AR ER 1,283.2 1,777.0 1.6 13.1
— Amounts due to fellow - RENBARER
subsidiaries (note 51) (B7E51) 1,590.5 19.7 - -
- Amounts due to associates - BENAER 8.1 7.5 = -
- Loan notes (note 36) — BEFEE (f3E36) = 69.2 = 69.2
- Bonds (note 39) — &% (f13£39) 900.0 2,800.0 = -
5,825.9 6,878.5 563.4 621.6
Financial liabilities at fair value — &EiBUERR A TETIED
through profit or loss (note 35)  BA#&1& (Bf5E35) 37.3 59.1 4.0 4.1
5,863.2 6,937.6 567.4 625.7
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 55. I EEHEBNATE
LIABILITIES
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are BTV BEEMBABRATEZHTENOT ¢

determined as follows:

—  The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively.

—  The fair values of unlisted warrants issued by a listed
associate included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models on the basis of current market
data as input.

- The fair values of unlisted investment funds and unlisted -

securities without an active market included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale investments were established by reference to
the prices quoted by respective fund administrators or
by using valuation techniques including the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other investments
that are substantially the same and generally accepted
pricing models.
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56.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

—  The fair values of unlisted warrants included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are estimated
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. Due to the
non-availability of quoted prices of the equity and currency
OTC derivatives (included in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) and the lack of market transactions
in such derivatives in recent months as a consequence of
current market conditions, the Group estimated their fair
values by reference to the prices provided by respective
counterparties at year-end.

Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and sound
risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and successful
financial practice. That said, the Group acknowledges that a
balance must be achieved between risks control and business
growth. The principal financial risks inherent in the Group’s
business are market risk (includes equity risk, interest rate risk
and foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder
value while ensuring exposure remains within acceptable
thresholds.

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed
to cover all business activities and to ensure all relevant risk
classes are properly managed and controlled. The Group has
adopted a sound risk management organisational structure
equipped with comprehensive policies and procedures which
are being reviewed regularly and enhanced when necessary
in response to changes in markets and the Group’s operating
environment and business strategies.

55.

56.
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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The Board of Directors, representing the interests of the
shareholders, has the ultimate responsibility to ensure proper
risk management of the Group. The Board, with the assistance
of its committees, sets out the appropriate risk management
framework and oversees its implementation to ensure overall
effectiveness of systems, methodologies and policies. The Risk
Management Committee (“RMC”), established by the Board of
Directors as a standing committee, and supported by Risks
Control, is charged with the mission to define, analyse and
implement the monitoring of the various risks which may be
encountered by the Group in its business undertakings. The
function of the Credit Committee (“Credco”), which reports
to the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors, is to
ensure proper and sufficient counterparty risk management of
the Group. The Group’s three independent control divisions,
namely Internal Audit, Compliance and Risks Control, play an
important role in the provision of assurance to the Board and
senior management that a sound internal risk mechanism is
implemented, maintained and adhered to.

(a) Market Risk

(i)  Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available for investment
in the marketplace. The Group’s key business
undertaking is investing in equity. Market risk
arising from equity investments is driven by the daily
fluctuations in market prices or fair values. The ability
to mitigate such risk depends on the availability
of hedging instruments and the diversification
level of the investment portfolios undertaken by
the Group. More importantly, the knowledge and
experience of the trading staff managing the risk
are also vital to ensure exposure is being properly
hedged and rebalanced in the most timely manner.
Trading activities, including market-making and
proprietary trading, across the Group are subject
to limits approved by the RMC. These limits are
recommended and proposed by Risks Control
after consulting with the relevant Trading Heads
to understand their risk appetite. Risks Control
independently monitors and reports risk positions
of all the Group’s trading activities, including cash
equities and equity derivatives. Valuation of these
instruments are measured on both “mark-to-market”
and “mark-to-fair” basis depending on whether they
are listed or unlisted. Value at Risk (“VaR”) and
stress tests are employed in the assessment of risk.
Meanwhile other non-VaR limits such as “maximum
loss” and “position” limits are also set out to restrict
excessive risk undertakings. VaR and stress tests
are approaches widely used in the financial industry
as tools to quantify risk by combining the size of
a position and the extent of a potential market
movement into a potential financial impact.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2008

56. SR AMEE &)

ExeRERNED  BAEZERRE
BHHKEn EFEEE TR ETNHE
T HEIZRERRUAREERERKE
REMIT BEREEOE  TERBERZE
BUM ZEFelUERREEZESERE
REZBE  mEBENEREZEAEZ/RIHE
BRERE nMEBEERK I EA B
MEBEAR URFREERRGIERNE
E-EEZREERNESTEETHTLESE
I UREREBARENEHNZ S Y
FRREE - SEM @B EES P - B
ZoERRRRERE -BEE2MNBE £
ExeaREEERS [ BREZHNR
ERECIR B E S RAT - MR AEH -

(a) TEER

0 BREEE
MHAELEFZAHKRENEESR
Bl e REZEZEBERAEKE -
AR EFREE ZTIHRER
FEREMBERIAFESTEN
B o RE IR 8 - RT
EEAHEETMEHATARKERS
ZETIEKFE - FEEHNZE BE
ERRRIZHABE 2 A#H KL
B hERABERZEHPIL
BRBZARNETER -£BZE
B (RREEEMSEREEER)
AXEREEZESEM ZRER
#l o AR ERAREEISHEE
BRI T RO AT ERNIEE - #
MEBRERELREE - RERER
MEEBYERKEREEMBE
ERE (BEREBAMBALTE
TH) ZRBARKR BT AR
Biz [MHERE] R [ATFERS] &
B ORFTARE L™ o &
1 B\ B Ry 75 2 (58 AR L B 1 K JBE 0 A
o R IR EAMIERREREE
e ERR] RI3FA] BREIMN
PR 5 RESNEL R IR o [BLBR (E K JBE
A, - EERE 2 RERETETS
EBHMREEZBETE Ui
PEttRE  EeRAEZEAZ
TA-



56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Market Risk (continued)

(i)

(@ ™

Equity Risk (continued) )
The Group’s market-making and proprietary trading

positions and their financial performance are reported

daily to senior management for review. Internal

Audit also performs sanity checks to ensure there is

adequate compliance in accordance with established

market risk limits and guidelines.

The table below summarises the overall financial
impact on the Group arising from market movements
in global equity indices. The analysis is based on
the assumption that equity indices move +15%
with all other variables being held constant and all
equity instruments undertaken by the Group moving
simultaneously. Declines in the indices are expressed

as negatives.

56. SR AMEE (&)

SRk (&)

KA ()
SEZmEREMSEREEEEA
BRFARREMBERR HEAR
= ARE TR FE I AL RB] - FERRAD
NEFHEES  BRZZENKE
BRET 2 G A R Mgl -

TRBARBR G T B e H £
MEEBYBTE - B ITERER
TN EE +15% © MEMIIE
BHREFTE  WREEBOE
AT EEHRAERES - T K
LBERR -

At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
R2008512A31H 20075124318

Potential impact Potential impact on other Potential impact Potential impact on other

for the year components of equity for the year components of equity

RHMEEERDD YERERANTS

FRERYE HEEZ S ENEETE MEETE

15% -15% 15% -15% 15% -15% 15% -15%
HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Milion ~ HKS Milion  HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion
BEEn HE®n BEBRT  EE%n  ABET EEEn BERT EEER
Local Index KipiEg 26.3 (26.3) 31.2 (87.2) 81.0 (158.0) 184.8 (184.8)
Overseas Index BIMER 29 (229) - - 1003 0.3 - -

There is no material financial impact arising from
market movements in the global equity indices on
the Group’s performance for the year. Futures,
options and knock-out options are hedged by other
derivatives in view of the volatile markets and wide

trading ranges.

R MESNEZ B EAEENE
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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(@) Market Risk (continued)

(if)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk results mainly from timing differences
in the re-pricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities
and commitments. It is also considered as the
opportunity cost of holding interest bearing assets
and commitments while benchmark interest rates of
the similar assets and commitments are rising.

The Group’s interest rate risk exposure arises
predominately from the undertakings of margin
financing, term financing and other lending activities.
The Group possesses the legal capacity to initiate
recalls efficiently which enables timely re-pricing of
margin loans to appropriate levels, in which those
particularly large sensitive positions can readily be
identified. Interest rates paid by the Group are
managed with the objective of maximising spreads
to remain consistent with liquidity and funding
obligations.

At 31 December 2008, assuming that Hong Kong
market interest rates moved by 50 basis points,
with all other variables held constant, a potential
financial impact for the year for the Group would
have been HK$0.4 million higher or HK$3.6 million
higher (2007: HK$0.4 million higher or HK$2.6 million
higher), mainly as a result of interest expenses on
denominated floating rate borrowings compensated
by interest income on floating rate loans and
advances to consumer finance customers and margin
loans. The Company’s exposure to financial risk is
immaterial.
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings or

capital arising from movements in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises
from currency exposures originating from its
leveraged foreign exchange business and purchases
of foreign securities on behalf of clients. Foreign
exchange risk is managed and monitored by the
respective businesses in accordance with the limits
approved by the Board and RMC. In relation to
the Group’s leveraged foreign exchange activity,
its position is that of a market-maker. Hence, the
risk relates to open currency positions which are
subject to management approved limits and are
monitored and reported daily. The other source of
foreign exchange risk arises from clients’ inability to
meet margin calls following a period of substantial
currency turbulence.

At 31 December 2008, assuming that the foreign
exchange rates moved +5% with all other variables
held constant, a potential financial impact for the
year for the Group would have been HK$13.2
million (2007: HK$28.4 million) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of Group’s asset holdings in Australian
dollars.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or
counterparty to meet its settlement obligations. As long
as the Group lends, trades and deals with third parties,
there will always be credit risk exposure.

The credit policy, governed by the Credco, sets out the
credit approval processes and monitoring procedures,
which are established in accordance with sound business
practices, the requirements and provisions of the relevant
ordinances, and where applicable, the codes or guidelines
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

Day-to-day credit management is performed by Credit
with reference to the aforementioned criteria including
creditworthiness, type and amount of collateral pledged,
and risk concentration of the counterparties. Decisions
being made daily by Credit are reported and reviewed by
the Executive Directors, senior management and Credco
at its regular meetings.
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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(b) Credit Risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to and
concentration of credit risk for the components of the
balance sheet. The maximum exposure is shown in gross
value before the effect of mitigation though the use of
collateral agreements. The percentage figure next to the

gross value reflects its concentration.

56. SR AMEE &)
(b) FERK (&)

TRETEERBERMAKES D EE N &
REERREEPIZE - RARRIAE
EFUR + AR R N P 4K 19 2 155 R

FERREMR - BEFERTNADLE
?Eﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ%qﬂﬁﬁé °

Group
&8
At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
72008F12H31H 72007412 A31H

HK$ Million % HK$ Million %

Maximum credit exposure B AEERK BEAT BEAT
Trade and other receivables 484 K E i e Y BR 4,417.2 41% 5,811.8 52%

Loans and advances to FATERP
consumer finance customers & R @K 4,331.9 40% 3,620.6 32%
Cash and cash equivalents BeERIBEEEBY 1,738.9 16% 1,639.9 15%
Loans and receivables B % IR 164.2 2% 5.8 0%
Amounts due from associates B4 A TR BE 62.9 1% 137.6 1%
10,715.1 100% 11,215.7 100%
Company
b YN
At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
#2008F12A31H 4200712 A31H

HK$ Million % HK$ Million %

Maximum credit exposure BAEERR BEBTT BEAET
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ff &2 7K 8 4,927.4 99% 4,566.3 95%
Amounts due from associates B4 A &)X B 59.6 1% 138.2 3%
Cash and cash equivalents B RBESZEY 4.1 0% 90.7 2%
Trade and other receivables 4% I E fih fE U Bk 0.4 0% 1.8 0%
4,991.5 100% 4,797.0 100%
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value,
the amounts shown above represent the current credit
risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that
could arise in the future as a result of change of values.
The maximum credit exposure at Group level is spread
evenly between “trade and other receivables” and
“loans and advances to consumer finance customers”,
which represented more than three-quarters of the
total exposure. “Trade and other receivables” consist of
amount receivables from exchanges, brokers and clients,
secured term loans, margin loans and other interest and
receivables items. The breakdown and its aging analysis
are disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements. There
are no major concerns on margin loans, as margin calls
for equity trading have been tightened and most clients
have cut off their positions. The margin loan book of the
Group remains at a low gearing level.

“Loans and advances to consumer finance customers”
are granted by the Company’s principal subsidiary, United
Asia Finance Limited, which consists HK$3,727.3 million
unsecured (2007: HK$3,172.6 million) and HK$604.6
million secured (2007: HK$448.0 million) before taking into
account any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
The table below summarises its credit quality based on
the internal credit rating system employed:

56. SR AMEE (&)
(b) SERE (&)

HWRAFESIENTHIA - B LR
STEARBEYOEERAR - BLIEX

RABEESMALELNTARR -
SEZEAEERBRFEAD AR [EE
MEMBEUER | & [ABBERPER R
2F | HEELRARBRANSZ= -
(e Rk HEmEUWER] sTE BRI ZFT -
w%ﬂ%ﬁ%% - BREAEER
BHERE u&ﬁ@ﬂgﬁﬁwﬁao%
E&%ﬁﬁﬁi%%ﬁﬁwﬁmoﬂ
MR EREETEMTE  AABKWE
BRBLAEERESWNIER - MAZD
BEENMEEH A - EENBEFRAERE
ER K TE o

[IMAMBEFPERKBR] AR
MNEBHBAR — MBS ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé
Al — P& - &K A3,727.38
B8 7T (20074 : 3,172.6E & B T)
AR | B604.68 & & JT (20074 -
448,08 B L) R RF A AR K
s s B E ) o TR
EEFHRNBEETREE -

At 31 At 31
December December
2008 2007
20085 20074
12H31H 12H31H
HK$ Million HK$ Million
Credit quality EEEE BEAT BEBIT
Neither past due nor impaired A IE 8 EA SR B 3,915.4 3,245.8
Past due or individually impaired 10 B =X B s (B 416.5 374.8
4,331.9 3,620.6
Credit exposure at a Company level is mainly concentrated NRINEERBREZEFRMERR
at amounts due from subsidiaries/associates, which are é‘ﬁ%’&T?{ﬁﬁ W% CIVE FUNGIUN
treated as lower credit risk as subsidiaries/associates ERAREKEERR ARHYREEM
are within the Group. There is no concentration risk on {SYE=/N T/Hﬁ%%’&j BAREEEERA
geographical segments as most of the Group’s and the Tmlxiﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé/ﬁ HEIT M
Company’s major business activities are conducted in I B8 A SR HERE
Hong Kong.
MBEBRAT F3R 2008 193



56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

194

56. SR AMEE &)
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(c) Liquidity Risk (c) "BESRAR
The goal of liquidity management is to enable the Group, NBHESEEEEFEERREETR RS
even under adverse market conditions, to actively PSR ETERALRES RANUE
manage and match funds inflow against all maturing NBEIBMERZER  FHREREE
repayment obligations to achieve harmony in cash flow BENSHBAZBRE -
management.
The Group manages its liquidity position to ensure a SEHEEERBESMARR  BREBLE
prudent and adequate liquidity ratio, in strict accordance REEMAB I RBESLLE - DS
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by transparent BTEBZETER - ITEE - UK
and collective monitoring across the Company involving LESHE UKBEREEaEEE
Executive Directors, the Director of Banking & Treasury, AEBRYUAEHAEREEHIAESR
the Chief Financial Officer and other relevant senior ERAIZREBESMKR - LNERETH
managers on a daily basis to ensure there is availability R e EMNSEABTFTEETE
of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations while Sk (PIanE 75 B IR IG5 ©
in compliance with statutory requirements such as the
Financial Resources Rules (“FRR”).
The exposure of the Group’s contractual undiscounted LT ASEEVHaRE ERETRTR
cash flow for the financial liabilities and their contractual ReERELBEMNKOIIEA -
maturity dates are as follows:
Less than 31 days 91 days 1 year Over
31 days to90days to1year tob5years 5 years Total
DRANK NKREWNX NXE-F —FZEF  HELNE o)
HK$ Milion  HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT REAT BEAT BEAT BEBT  RBEER
At 31 December 2008 #2008F12A31H
Bank and other borrowings FROREMER 84.2 13.9 95.3 1,900.9 39.7 2,134.0
Trade and other payables me &ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 1,412.1 - - 1,412.1
Amounts due to fellow RZME R
subsidiaries ¢ 1,408.0 201.0 - - - 1,609.0
Amounts due to associates BEANFER 8.1 - - _ _ 8.1
Bonds &% 15.8 15.8 994.5 - 1,026.1
Financial liabilities at fair value BB HREATEE
through profit or loss JIRAEBERE 37.3 - - - - 37.3
At 31 December 2007 R2007F12A31H
Bank and other borrowings FBIREMER 231.2 305.6 29.8 1,790.5 62.6 2,419.7
Trade and other payables me &ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 2,046.5 - - - - 2,046.5
Amounts due to fellow RZME R
subsidiaries ¢ 19.8 - - - - 19.8
Amounts due to associates HENFER 75 - - - - 7.5
Loan notes ENZER - 70.1 - - - 70.1
Bonds &% - 79.5 79.5 2,959.0 - 3,118.0
Financial liabilities at fair value BN HFEATEE
through profit or loss JIRNEHBAE 59.1 - - - - 59.1
The Company’s exposure to financial risks at the balance RAFRREE HEEH S BRE R I
sheet date is immaterial. BEKXo
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Shanghai

Room 1902-1903, Tian An Centre,

338 Nan Jing Road (West), Shanghai, China
Postal Code: 200003

Tel . (86) 21 6327 6566

Fax . (86) 21 68327 6867

Nanjing

Room 1205, 12/F, Tian An International Mansion,
No0.98 South Zhongshan Road,

Nanjing, China

Postal Code: 210005

Tel . (86) 25 8470 8471

Fax . (86) 25 8471 8482

SINGAPORE

77A Amoy Street, Singapore
Postal Code: 069896

Tel . (65) 6513 1428

Fax :(65) 6220 4179
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UNITED ASIA FINANCE LIMITED
21/F, Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2681 8888

Fax :(852) 2681 8899

www.uaf.com.hk
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